
 

AGENDA | VIRTUAL REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL 
MEETING 

November 09, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

Council Chambers - Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street 
The meeting will adjourn when all business is concluded or 10:00 PM, whichever comes first 

Town Council and Administration 

Mayor: Jacques K. Gilbert  |  Mayor Pro Tem: Nicole L. Dozier 
Council Members: Brett D. Gantt; Audra M. Killingsworth; Cheryl F. Stallings; Terry Mahaffey 
Town Manager: Catherine Crosby |  Assistant Town Managers: Shawn Purvis and Marty Stone 

Town Clerk: Donna B. Hosch, MMC  |  Town Attorney: Laurie L. Hohe 

COMMENCEMENT 

Call to Order | Invocation | Pledge of Allegiance 

PRESENTATIONS 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All Consent Agenda items are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the adoption of the Consent Agenda,  
and without discussion. If a Council Member requests discussion of an item, the item may be removed from the 

 Consent Agenda and considered separately. The Mayor will present the Consent Agenda 
 to be set prior to taking action on the following items: 

CN1 Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the November 23, 2021 Town Council meeting regarding 

Rezoning Application #21CZ21 Beauregard Place at Weddington. The applicant, AG Wimberly 

LLC, seeks to rezone approximately 3.30 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to Low Density 

Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ). The proposed rezoning is located at 0 Wimberly 

Road.  

CN2 Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the November 23, 2021 Town Council meeting regarding 

Rezoning Application #21CZ22 Old Ivey Road. The applicant, Ranjeet Agarwala, Estates at 

White Oak LLC,  seeks to rezone approximately 8.82 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to Low 

Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ). The proposed rezoning is located at 1516 Old 

Ivey Road and 7620 McQueens Road.  

CN3 Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the November 23, 2021 Town Council meeting regarding 

Rezoning Application #21CZ23 Scotts Ridge Office and Veterinary Hospital. The applicant, Jeff 

- Page 1 -



Roach, Peak Engineering and Design, LLC., seeks to rezone approximately 1.45 acres from 

Residential Agricultural (RA) to Neighborhood Business-Conditional Zoning (B1-CZ). The 

proposed rezoning is located at 0 & 6633 Apex Barbecue Road.  

CN4 Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

Motion to set the Public Hearing for the November 23, 2021 Town Council meeting regarding 

Rezoning Application #21CZ25 Villages of Apex PUD Amendment. The applicant, Curteis 

Calhoun with Enclave Holdings, LLC, seeks to rezone approximately 3.62 acres from Planned 

Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ #17CZ11) to Planned Unit Development-

Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). The proposed rezoning is located at 0 Laura Duncan Road. 

CN5 Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and Community Development  

Motion to adopt a resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to 

accept the Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date 

of Public Hearing for November 23, 2021 on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s 

intent to annex Mian Lin property containing 1.14 acres located at 5921 Farmpond Road, 

Annexation #719 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

CN6 Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and Community Development  

Motion to adopt a resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to 

accept the Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date 

of Public Hearing for November 23, 2021 on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s 

intent to annex Linderman Properties, LLC (Triangle Math & Science) property containing 

20.083 acres located at 351 New Hill Olive Chapel Road, Annexation #720 into the Town’s 

corporate limits. 

CN7 Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

Motion to appoint Reginald Skinner as the new Planning Board Chair, Mark Steele as the new 

Planning Board Vice Chair, and Steven A. Rhodes as a new Planning Board member, and to 

reappoint Mark Steele and Tina Sherman to their second terms as Planning Board members.    

CN8 Colleen Merays, Downtown & Small Business Development Coordinator 

Motion to approve the Town’s Special Event Permit for Apex’s Annual Tree Lighting. 

CN9 Dennis Brown, Senior Capital Projects Manager   

Motion to approve contract with Engineered Construction Company, Raleigh, NC in the 

amount of $6,342,500.00 for construction of Public Safety Station #36 on Wimberly Road in 

Apex and authorize Town Manager to sign same to release start of construction. 

CN10 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

- Page 2 -



Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners Sean 

M. Gutowski and wife Erika K. Gutowski, to install a screen porch that will encroach 55 SF, steps 

that will encroach 12 SF, and a paver patio that will encroach 8 SF onto the Town’s 20’ Public 

Utility Sewer Easement and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same.  

CN11 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners 

Taylor Morrison of Carolinas, Inc. to install a concrete door stoop that will encroach 7 S.F. and 

an AC unit that will encroach 9 S.F. onto the 10’ Public Utility Easement and authorize the Town 

Manager to execute the same.  

CN12 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners 

Taylor Morrison of Carolinas, Inc. to install a concrete door stoop that will encroach 7 S.F. and 

an AC unit that will encroach 9 S.F. onto the 10’ Public Utility Easement and authorize the Town 

Manager to execute the same.  

CN13 Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners 

Taylor Morrison of Carolinas, Inc. to install a concrete door stoop that will encroach 7 S.F. and 

an AC unit that will encroach 9 S.F. onto the 10’ Public Utility Easement and authorize the Town 

Manager to execute the same.  

CN14 Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert  

Motion to adopt a resolution requesting that the Wake County Board of Commissioners 

appoint Robert Carmac to the Board of Adjustment as an ETJ Representative. 

CN15 Colleen Merays, Downtown & Small Business Development Coordinator 

Motion to approve the amended Co-Sponsored Special Event Permit request for Apex Rotary 

Christmas Parade, Winter Wonderland and mobile vendor with the approved date of Saturday, 

December 4, 2021. 

CN16 Mitch McKinney, Deputy Chief of Police 

Motion to formally retire Apex Police Department Canine Rocky from police service and allow 

him to remain in Ofc. Scott James’s stewardship for the remainder of Rocky’s life. 

CN17 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Motion to approve the Apex Tax Report dated 10/03/2021 

CN18 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Motion to ratify Resolution No. 21-1101-21 of the Apex Town Council to Name a Portion of the 

Senior Center in honor of Mayor Pro Tem Nicole L. Dozier 

- Page 3 -



CN19 Keith McGee, Fire Chief 

Motion to approve a three-year extension with the Fire Department’s records management 

system vendor, EPR Systems USA, Inc. and authorize the Town Manager to sign.   

CN20 Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 

Introduction to ordinance amendment to comply with Senate Bill 300.   

 

CN21 Steve Adams, Easement Acquisition Specialist 

Motion to approve abandonment of a portion of a public utility easement on PIN 0742-46-6928 

Bovestments LLC  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Mayor Gilbert will call for additional Agenda items from Council or Staff and set the  
Regular Meeting Agenda prior to Council actions. 

PUBLIC FORUM 

Public Forum allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council.  The speaker is requested not to address items 
that appear as Public Hearings scheduled on the Regular Agenda.  The Mayor will recognize those who would like to speak at the  

appropriate time.  Large groups are asked to select a representative to speak for the entire group. 
Comments must be limited to 3 minutes to allow others the opportunity to speak. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PH1 Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Public hearing and possible motion to amend the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map to 

remove Proposed Paved Shoulder along Holt Road, add Proposed Side Path along a section 

of Holt Road, and change the on-road bicycle facility type to Proposed Bike Lanes along 

Holland Road and Friendship Road. 

PH2 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Public hearing and possible motion regarding amendments to the Transportation Plan in the 

vicinity of New Hill Holleman Road and future Richardson Road. 

PH3 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Public hearing and possible resolution regarding the Town-initiated proposed renaming of 

“Lynch Street” within the Town of Apex. 

PH4 Michael Deaton, PE, Director 

Public Hearing and possible motion to approve amendments to Article III of Chapter 12 of the 

Town Code of Ordinances creating a Stormwater Utility. 

 

- Page 4 -



OLD BUSINESS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

NB1 Christopher “C.J.” Valenzuela, Housing Program Manager 

Possible motion to provide financial support to DHIC, Inc. for the affordable housing project 

known as Broadstone Walk in the form of a loan from the Affordable Housing Fund for 

construction contingent upon final project approval, authorize the Town Manager to execute 

loan and compliance project documentation, and approve corresponding Budget Ordinance 

Amendment No. 9. 

UPDATES BY TOWN MANAGER 

CLOSED SESSION 

CS1 Steve Adams, Real Estate & Public Utilities 

Possible motion to go into closed session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(5) to discuss the 

town’s negotiating position with respect to acquisition of real property. 

 

WORK SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 

- Page 5 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the November 23, 2021 Town Council meeting regarding Rezoning 

Application #21CZ21 Beauregard Place at Weddington. The applicant, AG Wimberly LLC, seeks to rezone 

approximately 3.30 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ). 

The proposed rezoning is located at 0 Wimberly Road.  

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval.  

Item Details 

The property to be rezoned is identified as PIN 0723249888. 

 

 

Attachments 

 Vicinity Map  

 Application 

 

- Page 6 -



- Page 7 -



LD-CZ

21CZ21 9/1/2021
$1000.00

- Page 8 -



--

Single-family

21CZ21 9/1/2021

- Page 9 -



PETITION INFORMATION -
Application#: Submittal Date: 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 

The applicant hereby requests that the Town Council of the Town of Apex, pursuant to the Unified Development 

Ordinance, approve the Conditional Zoning for the above listed use(s) subject to the following condition(s). Use additional 

pages as needed. 

Refer to Attachment for the Proposed Conditions. 

LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATIONS - CONDITIONAL ZONING 

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following considerations, 

which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the proposed conditional 

zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest. These considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration 

of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. Use additional pages as needed. 

1) Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use's appropriateness for its

proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.

The proposed Low Density (LD) rezoning request is consistent with the 2045 Land Use Map. 

2) Compatibility. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use's appropriateness for its proposed location and

compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.

The proposed land uses are compatible given the location of the property and the character of 

the surrounding land uses 

s of 11 Rezoning Application Last Updated: June 28, 2021 

21CZ21 9/1/2021

- Page 10 -

john.woodlief
Text Box
LD-CZ



PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS 

1. The development shall have a maximum of five (5) single-family
residential lots.

2. Development shall meet all stormwater reduction requirements listed in
the UDO, including limiting the post-development stormwater flows to
not exceed the pre-development rates. In addition, the post-
development peak runoff rate shall be limited to the pre-development
peak runoff rate for the 2-year, 24-hour, the 10-year, 24-hour and the
25-year, 24-hour storm events.

3. The development shall include signage identifying environmentally
sensitive areas and/or a pet waste station to discourage pet waste and
chemical use in the vicinity of RCA or SCMs. A minimum of one sign
and/or pet waste station shall be provided where appropriate within this
development.

4. Developers shall preserve the existing trees within the RCA and
riparian buffers per the UDO standards.

5. Outdoor lighting shall be full cut off and shielded to prevent glare and
light spill over to minimize impact of neighboring residential properties.
LED fixtures shall be used and the lighting temperature shall be a
maximum of 3000K.

6. There shall be a 15-foot Type A Buffer along the eastern property from
Beauregard Place north to the property boundary.

7. All single-family detached homes shall be pre-configured with conduit
for a solar energy system.

8. Homeowner Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of
accessory dwelling units.

9. The developer shall provide a donation to the Town of Apex!s
AffordableHousing Fund (the "FUND”) in the amount of $500.00 per
residential lot payable at the time of Final Plat.

10. Architectural Standards for Single-Family Homes
a. Garage doors shall have windows, decorative details or carriage-  

 style adornments on them. 
b. The garage shall not protrude more than 1 foot out from the front
façade and front porch.
c. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building
designs.
d. Garages on the front façade of a home that faces the street shall
not exceed 40%of the total width of the house and garage together.

- Page 11 -



e. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the
structure.
f. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the
subdivision to include a minimum of three color families for siding and
shall include varied trim, shutter, and accent colors complementing
the siding color.
g. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages
shall have a prominent covered porch/stoop area leading to the front
door.
h. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the
right-of-way shall have trim around the windows.
i. Front porches shall be a minimum of 6 feet deep.
j. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street
shall contain at least 3 decorative elements such as, but not

 limited to, the following elements: 
• Windows
• Bay window
• Recessed window
• Decorative window
• Trim around the windows
• Wrap around porch or side porch Two or more building materials

Decorative brick/stone Decorative trim
• Decorative shake
• Decorative air vents on gable Decorative gable
• Decorative corniceColumnPortico
• Balcony
• Dormer

- Page 12 -



PETITION INFORMATION -
Application #: Submittal Date: 

----------

3) Zoning district supplemental standards. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use's compliance with Sec 4.4

Supplemental Standards, if applicable.

The proposed CZ District complies with Sec 4.4 Supplemental Standards. 

4) Design minimizes adverse impact. The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use's minimization of

adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and avoidance of significant adverse

impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and

vibration and not create a nuisance.

The design of the proposed  5 lots minimizes any adverse effects to the surrounding area. The 

proposed development with meet UDO standards. There will be no negative impact on trash, 

traffic, service delivery, parking, loading, odors, noise, glare and vibration and will not create a 

nuisance. 

5) Design minimizes environmental impact. The proposed Conditional Zoning District use's minimization of environmental

impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and

other natural resources.

The proposed Conditional Zoning District will comply with all local and state environmental 

regulations.

6) Impact on public facilities. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use's avoidance of having adverse impacts on

public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS

facilities.

The Conditional Zoning District is in the ET J of Apex. The property is adjacent to the Town limits 

of Apex. The Town of Apex can adequately service the property. 

7) Health, safety, and welfare. The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use's effect on the health, safety, or welfare

of the residents of the Town or its ETJ.

The proposed Conditional Zoning request will not negatively impact health, safety , or welfare of 

the residents of the Town or its ET J. 

6 of 11 Rezoning Application Last Updated: June 28, 2021 

 The area of the proposed development has been studied and the lots will not be

affected by the floodplain.

21CZ21 9/1/2021

- Page 13 -



PETITION INFORMATION -
Application #: Submittal Date: 

8) Detrimental to adjacent properties. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is substantially

detrimental to adjacent properties.

The proposed Conditional Zoning request will not be detrimental to adjacent properties. 

The uses are compatible to adjacent properties. 

9) Not constitute nuisance or hazard. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a nuisance

or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning

(CZ) District use.

With only a maximum of five (5) single-family detached homes proposed, the Conditional Zoning 

proposed will not constitute a nuisance or hazard due to traffic impact noise or the number of 

persons living in the new community. 

10) Other relevant standards of this Ordinance. Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use complies with

all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, and general development

characteristics.

The proposed Conditional Zoning will comply with all standards identified in the Town's 

ordinances for use, layout and general development characteristics. 

7 of 11 Rezoning Application Last Updated: June 28, 2021 

21CZ21 9/1/2021

- Page 14 -



21CZ21 9/1/2021

- Page 15 -



21CZ21 9/1/2021

- Page 16 -



Beginning at an existing iron pipe found at the southwest corner of the Sherry S. Johnson 
Parcel, as shown on Book of Maps 2011, Page 1009 of the Wake County Registry, said corner 
being the southeast corner of the NCDOT RR R/W (now American Tobacco Trail), as shown on 
Book of Maps 2011, Page 1009 and recorded in Deed Book 6660, Page 194 of the Wake 
County Registry, thence from said Point of Beginning North 09°41'43” West 463.78 feet along 
the eastern right-of-way of the American Tobacco Trail to a point, thence South 89°08'22” East 
358.95 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence South 00°05'12” East 458.23 feet to an existing iron 
pipe, thence North 88°41'04” West 281.57 feet to the point and place of Beginning containing 
3.36 acres, more or less.    

October 22, 202121CZ21

- Page 17 -



- Page 18 -



- Page 19 -



- Page 20 -



- Page 21 -



- Page 22 -



- Page 23 -



- Page 24 -



- Page 25 -



- Page 26 -



- Page 27 -



- Page 28 -



- Page 29 -



- Page 30 -



- Page 31 -



- Page 32 -



- Page 33 -



- Page 34 -



- Page 35 -



- Page 36 -



- Page 37 -



- Page 38 -



- Page 39 -



- Page 40 -



- Page 41 -



- Page 42 -



- Page 43 -



- Page 44 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Lauren Staudenmaier, Planner II 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the November 23, 2021 Town Council meeting regarding Rezoning 

Application #21CZ22 Old Ivey Road. The applicant, Ranjeet Agarwala, Estates at White Oak LLC,  seeks to 

rezone approximately 8.82 acres from Rural Residential (RR) to Low Density Residential-Conditional Zoning 

(LD-CZ). The proposed rezoning is located at 1516 Old Ivey Road and 7620 McQueens Road.  

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval.  

Item Details 

The properties to be rezoned are identified are PINs 0722890666 and 0722893526. 

 

 

Attachments 

 Vicinity Map  

 Application 

 

- Page 45 -



- Page 46 -



PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to 
third parties. 
Application #: Submittal Date: 

Fee Paid: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

Project Information 

Project Name: 

Address(es): 

PIN(s): 

Acreage: 

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning: 

Current 2045 LUM Classification(s): 

Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the 2045 LUM Classification(s)? Yes No 

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

Area classified as mixed use: Acreage: 

Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage: 

Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent: 

Applicant Information 

Name: 

Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Phone: E-mail:

Owner Information 

Name: 

Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Phone: E-mail:

Agent Information 

Name: 

Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Phone: E-mail:

Other contacts: 

3 of 11 Rezoning Application

21CZ22 9/1/2021

$1000

1516 Old Ivey Rd, 7620 Mcqueens Dr
0722-89-0666
0722-89-3526 8.82

RR LD-CZ
Low Density Residential

N/A
N/A
N/A

Estates at White Oak LLC - attn: Ranjeet Agarwala
2500 Stonington Drive
Apex NC 27523
(361) 228-2071 ragarwala@hotmail.com

Daniel and Susan McMains
7825 Green Level Church Rd
Apex NC 27523

Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC - attn: Jeff Roach, P.E.
1125 Apex Peakway
Apex NC 27502
(919) 439-0100 jroach@peakengineering.com

dwoods@peakengineering.com

✔

Old Ivey Road Residential

- Page 47 -



PETITION INFORMATION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

An application has been duly filed requesting that the property described in this application be rezoned from 
       to                        .  It is understood and acknowledged that if the property is rezoned as requested, the property 

described in this request will be perpetually bound to the use(s) authorized and subject to such conditions as imposed, unless 
subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). It is further understood 
and acknowledged that final plans for any specific development to be made pursuant to any such Conditional Zoning shall 
be submitted for site or subdivision plan approval, as required by the UDO. Use additional pages as needed.  

PROPOSED USES: 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are subject to 
the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated below. For 
convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that other sections of 
the UDO do not apply. 

1 21 

2 22 

3 23 

4 24 

5 25 

6 26 

7 27 

8 28 

9 29 

10 30 

11 31 

12 32 

13 33 

14 34 

15 35 

16 36 

17 37 

18 38 

19 39 

20 40 

4 of 11 Rezoning Application

21CZ22 9/1/2021

RR LD-CZ

Single-family
Accessory apartment
Greenway
Recreation facility, private
Park, active
Park, passive
Utility, minor

- Page 48 -



PETITION INFORMATION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 

The applicant hereby requests that the Town Council of the Town of Apex, pursuant to the Unified Development 
Ordinance, approve the Conditional Zoning for the above listed use(s) subject to the following condition(s). Use additional 
pages as needed. 

LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATIONS - CONDITIONAL ZONING 

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following considerations, 
which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the proposed conditional 
zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration 
of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. Use additional pages as needed. 

1) Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its
proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.

2) Compatibility.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed location and
compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.

5 of 11 Rezoning Application

1CZ2221CZ22

See attached list of zoning conditions.

The proposed single family residential development and additional uses are in
keeping with the adopted 2045 Land Use Map as well as standards associated with

residential development within an LD-CZ district.

The proposed development will provide buffers to the adjacent residential property,

including The Preserve at White Oak Creek and the existing homes along Old Ivey

Road. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding residential properties.

9/1/2021

- Page 49 -



OLD IVEY ROAD RESIDENTIAL 
CONDITIONS OF ZONING 

 
Single-Family Detached Residential: 
 

1. The project density will not exceed 3.00 dwelling units/acre. Maximum number of units is 26 dwelling 
units. All lots shall be greater than 6,000 SF. 
 

2. Setbacks shall be as follows within this development: 
• Front:  Reduce from 25’ minimum to 20’ minimum 
• Side:  Reduce from 8’ minimum with a 20’ aggregate to a 5’ minimum 
• Rear:  Reduce from 25’ minimum to 15’ minimum 
• Corner side: Reduce from 18’ minimum to 15’ minimum 
 

3. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are permitted. 
 

4. Eaves shall project at least 12 inches from the wall of the structure. 
 

5. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 decorative 
elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  
• Windows 
• Bay window 
• Recessed or Decorative window 
• Trim around the window 
• Wrap around porch or side porch 
• Two or more building materials 
• Decorative brick/stone 
• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 
• Decorative gable 
• Decorative air vents on gable 
• Decorative cornice 
• Column 
• Portico 
• Balcony 
• Dormer 

 
6. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision, to include a minimum 

of two (2) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter and accent colors 
complementing the siding color.  
 

7. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 
porch/stoop area leading to the front door. Front façades and porches may encroach up to 5-feet 
into front setback provided the garage is located no closer than 20-feet from the right-of-way. 
 

8. Garage may not protrude more than 5-feet from the front façade or front porch. Garage doors shall 
have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on them. Garage may protrude more 
than 5-feet with J-drives or courtyards for side entry doors. 
 

9. All homes shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 
 
  

- Page 50 -



OLD IVEY ROAD RESIDENTIAL 
CONDITIONS OF ZONING 

(continued) 
 

10. Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict construction of any accessory dwelling unit. 
 

11. The roof shall be pitched at 5:12 or greater for 75% of the building designs. 
 

12. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 
around the windows. 
 

13. Front porches shall be a minimum of 5 feet deep. 
 

14. The overhead Duke Energy electric easement from Jenks Road to Old Ivey Road shall be counted 
towards the required RCA and buffer standards as identified within various UDO sections. 
 

15. Vining Branch Way shall remain closed to construction traffic until dedicated to the Town of Apex. 
 
16. Prior to recordation of the first Final Plat for the property, the developer shall provide a donation 

to the Town of Apex’s Affordable Housing Fund (the “FUND”) in the amount of $215/dwelling 
unit. 

 
The following conditions are provided as a result of the Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) meeting and 
have been incorporated in the rezoning request for the development: 

1. The Development shall meet Apex UDO standards for post-development stormwater runoff rates. 
In addition, the post-development runoff for the 25-year stormwater event shall be mitigated to the 
pre-development rate. 
 

2. SCMs shall not be permitted within riparian buffers. Tree clearing and grading shall only be 
permitted within riparian buffers if it is necessary to install public infrastructure, including but not 
limited to water, sewer, and greenways. 
 

3. The Development shall install at least one (1) sign identifying environmental sensitive areas and/or 
at least one (1) pet waste station to discourage pet waste and chemical usage near RCA and SCMs. 
 

4. A minimum of 50% of the required landscaping outside of RCA and perimeter buffers and all 
supplemental landscaping within RCA and perimeter buffers shall be native species listed in the 
Design & Development Manual or approved by staff to increase the native diversity to reduce 
irrigation and chemical use. This shall not apply to turf grass. 
 

5. Native flora shall be used within the development, a minimum of 50% of the plantings for each 
planting group (tree, shrubs, etc.). 
 

6. Warm season turf grasses shall be planted where turf grass is proposed. 
 

7. Outdoor lighting shall be full cut-off and shielded to prevent glare and light spillover to minimize 
the impact on neighboring residential properties. LED fixtures shall be used and the lighting 
temperature shall be a maximum of 3,000K. 
 

8. A minimum of three (3) native hardwood tree species shall be planted within the development. 

 

- Page 51 -



PETITION INFORMATION   

Application #:  Submittal Date:  

 

 Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

  
 

3)  Zoning district supplemental standards.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s compliance with Sec 4.4 
Supplemental Standards, if applicable. 

 

 

 

 

 

4)  Design minimizes adverse impact.  The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s minimization of 
adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and avoidance of significant adverse 
impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and 
vibration and not create a nuisance. 

 

 

 

 

 

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact.  The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s minimization of environmental 
impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and 
other natural resources. 

 

 

 

 

 

6)  Impact on public facilities.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having adverse impacts on 
public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS 
facilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

7)  Health, safety, and welfare.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, safety, or welfare 
of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 
 

 

 

6 of 11 Rezoning Application

21CZ22

The proposed development will comply with the UDO Section 4.4 Supplemental

Standards as applicable.

Through the installation of perimeter buffers, limited access to Old Ivey Road,
architectural standards, and design standards similar to the adjacent properties, the project

will minimize impacts on surrounding properties.

The site will minimize environmental impacts through perimeter vegetation
avoidance/preservation, SCMs to reduce impact on downstream aquatic function, 

and utilize existing street stubs for access the property. The existing conditions on 

the property area not currently ideal for environmental protections.

There are significant developments near the property with existing infrastructure,

including water, sewer and roadway extensions, street stubs, a proposed fire
station, park land acquisition on Wimberly Road, and other improvements to Town

facilities.

The project will be annexed into the Town's corporate limits for public utilities and 

will have no negative impacts on surrounding property owners and the citizens of

Apex and ETJ members. 

9/1/2021

- Page 52 -



PETITION INFORMATION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

8) Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is substantially
detrimental to adjacent properties.

9) Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a nuisance
or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning
(CZ) District use.

10) Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use complies with
all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, and general development
characteristics.

7 of 11 Rezoning Application

21CZ22

The proposed LD-CZ is in keeping with the residential character of the northwest

portion of Apex. The design will provide residential properties similar to the adjacent

subdivisions recently approved by the Town of Apex.

The proposed list of uses do not constitute nuisance uses or hazardous uses based

upon the size of the property, the number of future homes, and the extension of the

adjacent Preserve at White Oak properties.

The proposed development will comply with various section of the Town of Apex's

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), adopted plans, and standard specifications. 

9/1/2021

- Page 53 -



21CZ22 9/1/2021

- Page 54 -



21CZ22 9/1/2021

- Page 55 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

10 of 11 Rezoning Application

21CZ22 9/1/2021

Parcel One
BEGINNING at a nail in the center line of StateRoad 1601, said nail being the northeast comer ofR. C. Tunstall according to map herein-after 
referred to, and said nail also being South 60 degrees 38 minutes 25 seconds West 39.21 feet from Leslie E. Brown's property; runs thence as 
Tunstall's north line the following courses and distances: North 68 degrees 25 minutes 50 seconds West 300 feet to an iron pipe; North 55 degrees 
17
minutes 10 seconds West 100 feet to an iron pipe; North 40 degrees 07 minutes 05 seconds West 141.48 feet to an iron pipe; North 70 degrees 06 
minutes 25 seconds West
158.80 feet to an iron pipe, the southeast comer of the property of now or formerly J. E. Howard, Jr.; thence as Howard's east line North 00 degrees
02 minutes 30 seconds East
588.83 feet to an iron pipe; thence South 74 degrees 19 minutes East 193.46 feet to a point in the center of a new soil road; thence as the center 
line of said new soil road on a curve to the left having a radius of 985 feet an arc distance of 324.66 feet to a point; thence continuing with said road
South 14 degrees 12 minutes East 102.93 feet to a point; thence continuing as the center line of said road on a curve to the left having a radius of 
603 feet an arc distance of 582 feet to a iron pipe in the right of way of StateRoad 1601; thence South 69 degrees 30 minutes East 24.83 feet to a 
point in the center line of said State Road 1601; thence as the center line of State Road 1601 South 60 degrees 38 minutes 25 seconds West 39.21
feet to the point and place of BEGINNING, and containing 3.82 acres, more or less, according to a map entitled "Plat of Land of Mrs. Evelyn J. 
Patrick, White Oak Township, Wake County, N.C." dated January, 1970, and prepared by Felton Lowman, Registered Engineer. See also Tracts A 
and B in Book of Maps 1983, Page 1293, Wake CountyRegistry.
Parcel Two
BEGINNING at an iron pipe in the eastern line ofR. C. Tunstall, said iron pipe being the southwest comer of the Evelyn J. Patrick property as shown
on map recorded in Book of Maps 1969, Volume 3, Page 320; runs thence as the south line of Evelyn J. Patrick South 86 degrees 15 minutes 25 
seconds East 319.23 feet to an iron pipe; thence South 00 degrees 02 minutes 30 seconds Wet 648.93 feet to an iron pipe in the northern property 
line ofR. C. Tunstall; thence as Tunstall's north line the following courses and distances: North 70 degrees 06 minutes 25 seconds West 141.20 feet
to an iron stake; North 89 degrees 35 minutes 25 seconds West 200 feet to an iron stake; and North 64 degrees 40 minutes 25 seconds West 56 
feet to an iron pipe inR. C. Tunstall's east line; thence as Tunstall's east line North 06 degrees at 09 minutes 35 seconds East 599.80 feet to the 
point and place of BEGINNING, and containing five acres, more or less.
 

- Page 56 -



Wake County Residential Development Notification 

Revised 08/10/2018 

Developer Company Information 
Company Name 
Company Phone Number 
Developer Representative Name 
Developer Representative Phone Number 
Developer Representative Email 

New Residential Subdivision  Information 
Date of Application for Subdivision 
City, Town or Wake County Jurisdiction 
Name of Subdivision 
Address of Subdivision (if unknown enter nearest cross streets) 
REID(s) 
PIN(s) 

Projected Dates Information 
Subdivision Completion Date 
Subdivision Projected First Occupancy Date 

Lot by Lot Development Information 

Unit Type Total # of 
Units 

Se
ni

or
 L

iv
in

g 

St
ud

io
 

1 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

2 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

3 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

4 
Be

dr
oo

m
 

Square Foot  
Range Price Range Anticipated Completion Units & Dates 

Min Max Low High Year # Units Year # Units Year # Units 
Single Family 

Townhomes 

Condos 
Apartments 

Other 

11 of 11 Rezoning Application

26

Town of Apex staff will 
enter this information  
into the online WCPSS 
form.

Please complete each 
section of this form and 
submit with your 
application.

Please send any questions 
about this form to:
studentassignment-gis-
group@wcpss.net

Estates at White Oak, LLC
(919) 333-0701
Ranjeet Agarwala
same
kamalcat@gmail.com or ranjeetagarwala@hotmail.com

September 2021
Town of Apex
Old Ivey Road Residential
8.82 acres
0046520 & 0046521
0722-89-0666 & 0722-89-3526

2023
January 2022

26 2,500 4,500 TBD TBD 2022 7 2023 19

9/1/2021 9/1/2021 9/1/2021

- Page 57 -



NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
August 10, 2021 

Dear Neighbor, 

You are invited to a neighborhood meeting on August 26, 2021 to review and discuss 
the rezoning proposal at: 

1516 Old Ivey Rd, Apex, NC 27523 0722-89-0666 
7620 Mcqueens Dr, Apex, NC 27523 0722-89-3526 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Neighborhood Meeting Procedures. This meeting 
is intended to be a way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed 
plans with adjacent neighbors and neighborhood organizations before the submittal of 
an application to the Town. This provides neighbors an opportunity to raise questions 
and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is officially 
submitted.  

Description of Proposal: 

This meeting will discuss the rezoning of the above parcels from Residential Rural (RR) 
to Low Density Conditional Zoning (LD-CZ) to support the development of single family 
detached subdivision 

Due to COVID-19, the neighborhood meeting will be held via Zoom, see below. If you 
have any questions, please email or call Jeff Roach at jroach@peakengineering.com or 
(919) 439-0100. You may also email Jeff for the link itself.

LINK: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89848288548?pwd=YVYwV21kdnk0QmJYOUMzTllTQj
krUT09 

Estimated Submittal Date:  September 1, 2021 

- Page 58 -

mailto:jroach@peakengineering.com
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89848288548?pwd=YVYwV21kdnk0QmJYOUMzTllTQjkrUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89848288548?pwd=YVYwV21kdnk0QmJYOUMzTllTQjkrUT09


NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
LINK: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89848288548?pwd=YVYwV21kdnk0QmJYOUMzTllTQj
krUT09 

Meeting Information 

Property Owners Names: Daniel and Susan McMains 
Applicants: Abdul Kamalpasha (Spectrum Investment Solution, LLC) 
Contact Information: Jeff Roach,  jroach@peakengineering.com, 919-439-0100 
Meeting Address: Meeting being held via Zoom 
Date of Meeting: 8/26/2021 
Time of Meeting: 5:30 

Meeting Agenda Times 
Welcome: 5:30-5:40 
Project Presentation: 5:40-5:55 
Question & Answer: 5:55- 

- Page 59 -

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89848288548?pwd=YVYwV21kdnk0QmJYOUMzTllTQjkrUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89848288548?pwd=YVYwV21kdnk0QmJYOUMzTllTQjkrUT09
mailto:jroach@peakengineering.com


Disclaimer
iMaps makes every effort to produce and publish 
the most current and accurate information possible.
However, the maps are produced for information purposes,
and are NOT surveys. No warranties, expressed or implied
,are provided for the data therein, its use,or its interpretation.

Old Ivey Rd

0 210 420105 ft

1 inch = 200 feet

±

- Page 60 -



ANNAMALAI, SELVAKUMAR CHELLAMUTHU 
RAMAMOORTHY, SAI SARANYA 
615 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

ARAVETI, VENKATA SUDEEPTH 
THALLAM, SWATHI 
619 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

BALASANI, UGENDER KAKADE, PREETI 
733 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

BANDE, NITIN PATHARE, RAJASHREE 
717 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 275238500 

BASU, SUDEEP PALIT, MANASI 
732 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

BHADORIA, VIKAS CHAUHAN, ASHA 
SINGH 
2540 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

BOBBA, SRIRAMA SATYA KRISH 
KODAVANTI, SWATHI 
725 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

BRASWELL, ROBERT KEITH 
301 GRAND HELTON CT 
APEX NC 27502-4102 

BRASWELL, ROBERT KEITH 
1505 OLD IVEY RD 
APEX NC 27523-5998 

BUCKINGHAM, BRAD A  
BUCKINGHAM, MICHELE L 
7721 JENKS RD 
APEX NC 27523-7819 

CARROLL, JUSTIN CARROLL, JESSICA 
1452 OLD IVEY RD 
APEX NC 27523-8506 

CUI, BO JIN, HAIWEN 
713 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

GREEN, NATHAN GREEN, APRIL 
2568 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

HUSSAIN, AZMAT F HUSSAIN, MERYEM 
2575 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

 KETHIREDDY, PRAVEEN THUMMALA, 
MADHAVI 
718 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

KOKKULA, KIRAN YAGNI, SRIDEVI 
616 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

KONERU, PHANEENDRA KONERU, SRI 
LAKSHMI 
709 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

KORHALE, PADMABHUSHAN THORAT, 
JYOTSNA 
623 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

LANDGE, SACHIN PRASHANT LANDGE, 
SWATI SACHIN 
608 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

LE, ROUX ANDRE 
2531 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

LEE, ERIC LEE, HAE YOUNG 
2556 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

LUI, CHU KUANG LI, HSIANG 
2535 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

LUO, MENGLIN XIONG, YAN 
PO BOX 319 
MORRISVILLE NC 27560-0319 

MAYNARD, IRA HENRY WICKETT 
MAYNARD, LINDA MEADE 
7728 JENKS RD 
APEX NC 27523-7818 

MCMAHON, KEVIN JOSEPH 
MCMAHON, TARA COLLINS 
604 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

MCMAINS, DANIEL M MCMAINS, 
SUSAN D 
7825 GREEN LEVEL CHURCH RD 
APEX NC 27523-9467 

MCMAINS, WORTH W MCMAINS, 
CAREY M 
7809 JENKS RD 
APEX NC 27523-7820 

- Page 61 -



MERAKANAPALLI, SRAVAN KATIKALA, 
SUSHMA 
705 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

MOHANTY, SANJAY CHAND, SUNITA 
2547 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

 MOOLENAAR, GWEN MARIE BERNIER, JAMES 
JR 
2557 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

MUTHYAM, MURALI POODARI, SUSHMA 
RANI 
2561 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

 NARAYANA SETTY, PRASANNA KUMAR 
PRASANNA KUMAR, RAJESHWARI 
2581 VINING BRANCH WAY 
APEX NC 27523-8520 

NARREDDI, SATESH PAVAN KUMAR 
KASIREDDI, CHANDRA KALA 
620 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

NARWAL, NARENDER NARWAL, VINITA 
612 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

 NEWTON, THOMAS JR NEWTON, AMANDA 
2500 SIDEWINDER CT 
APEX NC 27523-8503 

 NGUYEN, NGHI CUONG CAO, JOLENE HA 
2580 WINING BRANCH WAY 
APEX NC 27523-8520 

NIKHARGE, YATEEN LAXMAN GUNDALE, 
ANUJA RAM 
726 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

OVERTON, STEVEN KITCHEL-OVERTON, KARA 
JOAN 
611 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

 PATEL, DHARMESHKUMAR PATEL, HIMA 
2539 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

PATEL, PAREEN 
2560 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

PEABODY, SANDRA 
1513 OLD IVEY RD 
APEX NC 27523-5998 

 PENLEY, SARAH G PENLEY, FRED WINSTON 
1013 SUNSET MEADOWS DR 
APEX NC 27523-6742 

PRAJAPATI, DHRUMIL PRAJAPATI, DEVANSHI 
721 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

RAJAGOPAL, SARAVANAPERUMAL 
RENGASAMY, VIJAYALAKSHMI 
2552 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

REDDY, PRATHAP AMERVAI DEVI, RAMA 
AMERWAI 
729 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

REDER, CHRISTOPHER JOSEPH REDER, 
MEGHANN ELIZABETH 
1028 SUNSET MEADOWS DR 
APEX NC 27523-6742 

SANKO, ANNA 
712 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

SCHULZ, JANE B 
1453 OLD IVEY RD 
APEX NC 27523-8506 

SHETTY, ROHIT S SHETTY, SHARANYA R 
2543 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

SINGH, PRASHANT BAMIL, RENU 
2585 VINING BRANCH WAY 
APEX NC 27523-8520 

SUBRAMANIAN, ANAND 
SIVARAMAKRISHNAN, AARTHY 
2579 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

THAKKAR, KETANKUMAR THAKKAR, 
MARGI KETANKUMAR 
627 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8519 

THE PRESERVE AT WHITE OAK CREEK 
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIA 
15501 WESTON PKWY STE 100 
CARY NC 27513-8636 

TRUNKWALA, ABBASALI TRUNKWALA, 
SHABNAM 
701 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

TUNSTALL, EURA ELIZABETH 
11725 RANBURNE RD 
MINT HILL NC 28227-5647 

VADHERA, GIRIK MEHRISHI, APOORVA 
2548 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

WANG, ZHAOQIANG 
2544 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

- Page 62 -



YAO, JING 
2501 SIDEWINDER CT 
APEX NC 27523-8503 

YIN, JIE YANG, CHEN 
2584 VINING BRANCH WAY 
APEX NC 27523-8520 

TOWN OF APEX 
PO BOX 250 
APEX NC 27502 

CURRENT TENANT 
1516 OLD IVEY RD 
APEX NC 27523 

CURRENT TENANT 
1524 OLD IVEY RD 
APEX NC 27523 

CURRENT TENANT 
1533 OLD IVEY RD 
APEX NC 27523 

CURRENT TENANT 
1537 OLD IVEY RD 
APEX NC 27523 

CURRENT TENANT 
2505 SIDEWINDER CT 
APEX NC 27523 

CURRENT TENANT 
775 WHITE OAK GROVE WAY 
APEX NC 27523 

ALLURI, PRUDHVI KARUTURI, SRI 
HARSHITHA 
708 VINE POND CT 
APEX NC 27523-8500 

AMBALAVANAN, SUBBIAH 
2564 WINDING BRANCH TRL 
APEX NC 27523-8504 

APEX PROPERTIES & RENTALS LLC 
11725 RANBURNE RD 
MINT HILL NC 27227-5647 

- Page 63 -



NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 4 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Date 

Dear Neighbor: 
You are invited to a neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at 

Address(es) PIN(s) 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended to be a 
way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors and 
neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors an 
opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is officially 
submitted. If you are unable to attend, please refer to the Project Contact Information page for ways to 
contact the applicant. Notified neighbors may request that the applicant provide updates and send plans via 
email or mail. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive 
Development Map or the Apex Development Report located on the Town of Apex website at 
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning-Community-Development.  

A Neighborhood Meeting is required because this project includes (check all that apply): 

Application Type Approving Authority 

☐ Rezoning (including Planned Unit Development) Town Council 

☐ Major Site Plan Town Council (QJPH*) 

☐ Special Use Permit Town Council (QJPH*) 

☐ Residential Master Subdivision Plan (excludes exempt subdivisions) 
Technical Review 
Committee (staff) 

*Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: The Town Council cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing.

The following is a description of the proposal (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)): 

Estimated submittal date: 

MEETING INFORMATION: 

Property Owner(s) name(s): 

Applicant(s): 

Contact information (email/phone):  

Meeting Address:  

Date/Time of meeting**:  

MEETING AGENDA TIMES: 

Welcome:  _____________    Project Presentation:  _____________    Question & Answer:  _____________ 

**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized 
holidays). If you have questions about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning and 
Community Development Department at 919-249-3426. You may also find information about the Apex Planning 
Department and on-going planning efforts at http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning-Community-Development. 

8/10/2021

1516 OLD IVEY RD, APEX, NC 27523
7620 MCQUEENS DR, APEX, NC 27523

0722-89-3526
0722-89-0666

✔

✔

Rezoning for the 8.82 acres owned by Daniel M. and Susan D. McMains. 
The development will be new single family residential homes.

September 1, 2021

August 26, 2021 @ 5:30

5:30 5:40-5:55 5:55-

Daniel M. and Susan D. McMains
Abdul Kamalpasha (Estates at White Oak, LLC)

Meeting held via zoom. Refer to other sheet for link
Jeff Roach, jroach@peakengineering.com, (919) 439-0100

- Page 64 -

http://apexnc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/OnePane/basicviewer/index.html?appid=fa9ba2017b784030b15ef4da27d9e795
http://apexnc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/OnePane/basicviewer/index.html?appid=fa9ba2017b784030b15ef4da27d9e795
http://www.apexnc.org/documentcenter/view/405
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning-Community-Development
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning-Community-Development


PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 5 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Development Contacts:  

Project Name: Zoning: 

Location:  

Property PIN(s): Acreage/Square Feet: 

Property Owner: 

Address:  

City:  State: Zip: 

Phone: Email: 

Developer: 

Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Phone: Fax: Email: 

Engineer: 

Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Phone: Fax: Email: 

Builder (if known): 

Address:  

City:  State: Zip: 

Phone: Fax: Email: 

Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 
they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

Town of Apex Department Contacts 
Planning and Community Development Department Main Number 

(Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) (919) 249-3426

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 
Angela Reincke, Parks and Greenways Planner  (919) 249-7468

Public Works - Transportation 
Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer (919) 249-3358

Water Resources Department 
Jessica Bolin, Environmental Engineering Manager (Stormwater, Sedimentation & 

Erosion Control) 
James Gregg, Utility Engineering Manager (Water & Sewer) 

(919) 249-3537

(919) 249-3324

Electric Utilities Division 
Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager (919) 249-3342

Old Ivey Road Residential
7620 McQueen Dr, 1516 Old Ivey Rd

RR to LD-CZ

0722-89-066, 0722-89-3526 8.82

Daniel M. and Susan D. McMains

Spectrum Investment Solutions, LLC, Attn: Abdul Kamalpasha

Peak Engineering & Design, attn: Jeff Roach

unknown

7825 Green Level Church Rd
Apex NC 27523

109 Elway Drive
Clayton NC 27560

(919) 333-0701 kamalcat@gmail.com

1125 Apex Peakway
Apex NC 27502

919-439-0100 jroach@peakengineering.com

- Page 65 -



NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SIGN-IN SHEET 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 8 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Meeting Address:   _______________________________________________________________
Date of meeting:  ______________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________

Property Owner(s) name(s):  _________________________________________________________
Applicant(s):  ___________________________________________________________________

Please print your name below, state your address and/or affiliation with a neighborhood group, and provide your phone number and email address. 
Providing your name below does not represent support or opposition to the project; it is for documentation purposes only. For virtual meetings, applicants 
must include all known participants and request the information below. 

NAME/ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE # EMAIL 
SEND PLANS 
& UPDATES 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

Use additional sheets, if necessary. 

A list of the residents in attendance is included within the neighborhood meeting report

Daniel M. and Susan D. McMains
Abdul Kamalpasha (Estates at White Oak, LLC)

Meeting held via zoom. Refer to other sheet for link
8/26/2021 5:30 pm

- Page 66 -



SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 9 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Property Owner(s) name(s): _____________________________________________________
Applicant(s):  ______________________________________________________________
Contact information (email/phone):   _______________________________________________
Meeting Address:  ___________________________________________________________
Date of meeting:  __________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________

Please summarize the questions/comments and your responses from the Neighborhood Meeting or 
emails/phone calls received in the spaces below (attach additional sheets, if necessary). Please state if/how the 
project has been modified in response to any concerns. The response should not be “Noted” or “No Response”. 
There has to be documentation of what consideration the neighbor’s concern was given and justification for why 
no change was deemed warranted. 

Question/Concern #1: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Question/Concern #2: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Question/Concern #3: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Question/Concern #4: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________

Daniel M. and Susan D. McMains
Abdul Kamalpasha (Estates at White Oak, LLC)

Meeting held via zoom. Refer to other sheet for link
8/26/2021 5:30 pm

A neighborhood meeting report is attached with the questions and answers provided.

Jeff Roach, jroach@peakengineering.com, (919) 439-0100

- Page 67 -



- Page 68 -



919.439.0100 p 
1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 

Old Ivey Road Residential – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

Old Ivey Road Residential 
Neighborhood Meeting for the Rezoning and Master Subdivision Plan 

5:30 pm August 26, 2021 

The ZOOM meeting for the Old Ivey Road Residential began at 5:32 pm and was hosted by Jeff Roach with 
Peak Engineering & Design. A brief introduction was made for everyone on the call, the participants were 
directed to the CHAT BOX function in ZOOM to type questions, and the virtual meeting protocol was 
discussed to try and keep the meeting moving along. 

A project introduction was then provided, the location within Wake County GIS’ website was shared for 
all to see. After the location of the property was identified for everyone on the call, we walked through 
the existing site conditions, the existing zoning, the purpose of the 2045 Land Use Plan, the current sketch 
plan showing the residential layout (SP-5 to be exact). Everyone was informed that the sketch plan is not 
a final design for the site and is used to show buffers, access points, lot locations, preliminary lot sizes, 
and other site-specific items for the property. Following a discussion related to the above items, the list 
of permitted uses was shown to all with Single Family Residential Lots being the primary (accessory 
apartment, utility minor, parks, and private recreation facility were also included). The discussion 
centered around the proposed buffers and access points. 

After showing the different items, the presentation switched to address the questions which had been 
entered in the CHAT BOX. Below are the questions as well as a summary of the answer that was provided 
with each question. Additional questions were voiced by the adjacent property owners and were 
answered to the best of our knowledge at this point. 

After answering the CHAT BOX questions, the verbal questions, and reviewing the project timeline with 
everyone on the call, Peak’s email address and phone number was again provided to assist with any follow 
up questions post-meeting. The adjacent property owners dropped off the call around 6:30 pm and the 
ZOOM meeting was terminated around 7:30 pm.  

Below is a summary of the questions and discussions which were had. There were a number of discussions 
which were had, many of them answering multiple questions or bringing up additional questions. This 
summary tries to highlight the presentation and discussions as accurately as possible. A copy of this 
meeting summary will be emailed to the participants once the zoning package is submitted. 

- Page 69 -



919.439.0100 p 
1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 

Old Ivey Road Residential – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

Following are the questions which were provide through the ZOOM meeting CHAT BOX features. 
Answers were provided verbally and summarized below. 

Good evening everyone. This is the chat box to type any questions you may have. This makes is easier and 
more orderly to ask questions and for me to record the questions/answers as well.  

From bbuckingham 
With the addition of these homes, would they be proposing sidewalks on Old Ivey? 
Yes, sidewalk will be added along the property’s frontage on Old Ivey Road. 

From Sanjay’s 
Do they have their own community center? 
We have set aside a small area but it is likely too small to support a large pool or clubhouse. 

From bbuckingham 
With the increased traffic resulting from the larger neighborhood, are there proposed changes to the 
intersection of Jenks or Jenks Road itself? 
There are no proposed changes to the intersection of Old Ivey and Jenks Road. 

From Andre 
The barrier states 10ft between the property. Can we increase that to 25 ft? 
We are unable to increase the buffer to 25’. With the existing 20’ buffer and proposed 10’ buffer, there will 
be a 30’ preserved area between the existing Preserve at White Oak lots and the new lots. 

From Girik 
What kind of barrier/s are you going to place for privacy- Trees, fencing, etc.? 
Landscaping is proposed to the Town’s standard between uses. This includes the preservation of existing 
vegetation and supplementing to “fill gaps” in the existing vegetation – fences are not proposed. 

From Sanjay’s 
How many opening roads into Preserve at White Oak? 
Just the one extension of Vining Branch Way into the development. 

From Devanshi 
What will be total buffer between the lots on Vine Pond Ct and new community? 
How many trees will be removed? Will there be a tree buffer between this community and PWO? 
The total buffer width will be 30’ (20’ existing and 10’ additional between the lots). The buffers are 
undisturbed and only work in the area will be to supplement the existing vegetation. 

From bbuckingham 
I saw online that the 2 lots across the street on Old Ivey went through Apex annexation.  Is that in any way 
connected to this neighborhood extension?  Curious if it will become a similar use. 
The two lots on the east side of Old Ivey Road are not part of the proposed development. They have been 
annexed but the reason is unknow. 

- Page 70 -



919.439.0100 p 
1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 

Old Ivey Road Residential – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

From Padmabhushan Korhale 
How much buffer will there be between existing houses near vining branch way house & a storm water 
pond? And will there be any fence around storm water pond? 
A proposed 10’ buffer along with the existing 20’ buffer will be adjacent to the lots and the SCM. We are 
looking into a fence around the top of the pond. 

From Carol Li 
What is “proposed RCA on the right lower lots? 
RCA stands for Resource Conservation Area [an explanation of RCA was then provided] 

From KT_iPhone 
Would Vinning Branch kept closed to construction traffic? 
That is the plan during construction. Once the streets are accepted, the opening of the street will be the 
Town’s decision. 

From Eura 
For those who asked about the 2 acres near the deal..NO. I am building a food forest and sanctuary for 
REAL FOOD. Could you please walk through how this will impact the property at 1537 Old Ivey...the 2 acre 
corner property? 
The project will not impact the existing 2 acres in SW corner of the proposed development (PIN 0722-89-
5121) as this lot is adjacent to proposed RCA. 
Please talk through the buffers and protections my food forest and sanctuary will receive? 
Discussed the proposed site buffer and what they are. 
In addition to a sidewalk, what are the other uses the little strip along ivey? 
The only items along Old Ivey is the sidewalk, curb and gutter, and improvement to ½ of the pavement 
section to bring it up to Town of Apex standards. 
What about mcqueens road?  will there be traffic on that? 
There may be temporary construction traffic until the access to Old Ivey Road is constructed. Once the 
main entrance to Old Ivey is complete, McQueens Road will be abandoned/left in place for the adjacent 
property owner (if they want it). 
great question about mosquitoes!  I always notice how FEW mosquitoes I deal with in Apex versus here 
in Charlotte.  Probably because my 2 acres is a natural area...and enough beneficial insects exist to eat the 
mosquitoes.  I have a good ecosystem working on that property. 

From Pareen Patel  
Within the 10-foot buffer that will be provided, you mentioned existing vegetation, and Type B shrubland. 
Is there a possibility to supplement with fast-growing privacy trees (Leyland cypress, green giant etc) to 
ensure privacy and the maintain the integrity of a wooded lot? 
Yes. The existing vegetation in the 10’ buffer will be evaluated during Master Subdivision and Construction 
Document design to supplement as needed to meet the Type B standards. If evergreens are required, we 
will specify fast growing within the Town’s “list of native species” within the development. But not Leyland 
cypresses. 

From bbuckingham 
(Pareen, You may not want Leylands.  We planted over a dozen and none survived) 
But there are some nice fast growing trees that may be more disease resistant. 

- Page 71 -



919.439.0100 p 
1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 

Old Ivey Road Residential – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

From Pareen Patel 
Excellent point, it’s the only fast-growing privacy tree I could think of from the top of my head ���� 
From KT_iPhone 
What is the timeline for construction? 
Went through the entire timeline from zoning submittal, to Master Subdivision Plan, to CDs, construction 
and the start of home construction. The overall time line was very high level to avoid confusion. 

From Eura 
NO TO LELANDS!!!! THEY ARE NOT THE RIGHT TREES FOR NC...THEY DIE!!!! USE YAUPON HOLLIES...GREAT 
FOR TEA...only native tree for US with caffeine 
lelands ALWAYS turn into EYESORES...every aborist KNOWS THIS... 
Agree with Eura and will not specify Leylands within the development. 

From KT_iPhone 
Has a traffic study been done for impact on existing community? 
A TIA has not be completed as the project does not meet Town or NCDOT thresholds for a study. 

From bbuckingham 
I like the idea of close park and fire station! 
A side conversation began with the future phases of the Preserve at White Oak, the Town’s plan for a park, 
a future fire station, and eventually access to the American Tobacco Trail. 

From Pareen Patel 
Could you go over the proposed lot sizes of the new community again? 
Reviewed the sketch plan with the neighbors from the 6,000 SF lots to the 13,000 Sf lot within the 
development. 

From KT_iPhone 
Who is the builder? 
A builder has not been included in the development. The buyers are going to decide if they want a “family 
compound” or sell to a local building or deal with Toll Brothers/Taylor Morrison next door.  

From Pareen Patel 
Appreciate the info 

From KT_iPhone 
Thank you! Appreciate all the answers. 

- Page 72 -



919.439.0100 p 
1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 

Old Ivey Road Residential – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

Following are questions asked after the presentation and/or during the review of the above “CHAT 
BOX” questions. 

A discussion was held about reasonable traffic patterns and possible cut through traffic from The Preserve 
at White Oak through the new development to Old Ivey Road. 
By providing multiple access points with plenty of twists and turns, no one route should be traveled by all. 
Stop signs and turns will also help to control traffic speed. 

Following are emails which were received prior to or after the neighborhood meeting 

No emails were received prior to submittal to the Town of Apex for the Rezoning Package. 

- Page 73 -



- Page 74 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Sarah Van Every, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to set Public Hearing for the November 23, 2021 Town Council meeting regarding Rezoning 

Application #21CZ23 Scotts Ridge Office and Veterinary Hospital. The applicant, Jeff Roach, Peak 

Engineering and Design, LLC., seeks to rezone approximately 1.45 acres from Residential Agricultural (RA) 

to Neighborhood Business-Conditional Zoning (B1-CZ). The proposed rezoning is located at 0 & 6633 Apex 

Barbecue Road.  

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval.  

Item Details 

The properties to be rezoned are identified as PINs 0731487012 & 0731475977. 

 

 

Attachments 

 Vicinity Map  

 Application 

 

- Page 75 -



- Page 76 -



(REZONING) PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP  

 
 

 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

REZONING PETITION SUBMISSION:   
Applications and fees are due by 12:00 pm on the 
first business day of each month. See the Rezoning 
Schedule on the website for details. 
LATE FEE: $300  

REZONING PETITION FEES:   
Conditional Zoning: $1,000.00 
Rezoning: $700.00* 
*No zoning conditions may be added to address concerns of staff, 
adjacent property owners, Planning Board, or Town Council 

PRE-APPLICATION MEETING: Separate pre-application meetings with the Technical Review Committee (TRC) and the 
Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) are required to be scheduled prior to the submittal of a PD Plan for PUD-CZ.  

Pre-application meetings with the TRC are typically scheduled during regular business hours on the 1st, 2nd, and 5th Thursdays 
of the month and pre-application meetings with the EAB are held at 6 p.m. on the 3rd Thursday of the month during the 
regularly scheduled EAB meeting. 

To schedule a meeting, applicants must e-mail a pdf map of the parcel(s) to be rezoned and a completed Rezoning Pre-
Application Meeting Request form to Planner Lauren Staudenmaier (lauren.staudenmaier@apexnc.org) no later than five 
(5) working days prior to the desired meeting day. 

PURPOSE OF A CONDITIONAL ZONING: Conditional Zoning (CZ) Districts are zoning districts in which the development and 
use of property is subject to the ordinance standards applicable to the corresponding general use district as well as additional 
rules, regulations, and conditions that are imposed as part of the legislative decision creating the district. A Conditional 
Zoning (CZ) District allows particular uses to be established only in accordance with site specific standards and conditions 
pertaining to each individual development project. All site-specific standards and conditions must be consistent with the 
objectives of these regulations, the adopted 2045 Land Use Map, and adopted area plans. The review process established in 
this part provides for the accommodation of such uses by a reclassification of property into a CZ District, subject to site-
specific standards and conditions.  

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING: Neighborhood meetings are required per UDO Sec. 2.2.7 prior to application submission. The 
applicant is required to notify property owners, tenants, and any neighborhood association that represents citizens that are 
abutting or within 300 feet of the subject property via first class mail a minimum of 14 days in advance of the neighborhood 
meeting. The notification list must be obtained by emailing addressing.team@apexnc.org and will be provided within 5-10 
business days of the initial request. The applicant shall use their own return address on the envelopes as the meeting is a 
private meeting between the developer and the neighbors. The applicant shall submit “Neighborhood Meeting Packet” 
forms included in this application packet with their initial submittal.  

ANNEXATION REQUIREMENTS: If a property or portion thereof subject to this rezoning is outside the corporate limits and 
ETJ, an annexation petition is required to be submitted on the same day as this application.  

Electronic Submittal Requirements (submit in IDT):  Click here to access IDT Plans Website  
• Upload one full copy of the application and other sheets listed below via IDT.  

Hard Copy Submittal Requirements:  Submit to Planning Department  
• One (1) original Rezoning Petition Application 

• Legal Description (metes and bounds) 

• Agent Authorization Form 

• Affidavit of Ownership 

• Neighborhood Meeting Packet 

• If applicable: Annexation Petition, map, legal description, 
and $200.00 fee 

• Notification list including property owners of the land subject 
to the application, all property owners and tenants abutting 
and located within 300 feet of the land subject to the 
application, and any neighborhood association that represents 
citizens within the notification area. This list must be obtained 
by emailing addressing.team@apexnc.org and will be 
provided within 5-10 business days of the initial request. 

• Two (2) sets of envelopes addressed to property 
owners subject to the application and to those on the 
notification list. 
o Addresses must be from the notification list 

obtained by emailing addressing.team@apexnc.org 
o Affixed with first class stamps and the following 

return address: 
Town of Apex 
Planning and Community Development 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC  27502 

• Petition Fee by one of the following forms of payment: 
o In person with Visa or Master Card;  
o Cash (exact amount only); or  
o Check payable to ‘Town of Apex’ 

1 of 11 Rezoning Application
- Page 77 -



(REZONING) PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP   

 

 Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING:  Neighborhood meetings are required per UDO Sec. 2.2.7 prior to application submission. The 
applicant is required to notify property owners, tenants, and any neighborhood association that represents citizens that are 
abutting or within 300 feet of the subject property via first class mail a minimum of 14 days in advance of the neighborhood 
meeting. The notification list must be obtained by emailing addressing.team@apexnc.org and will be provided within 5-10 
business days of the initial request. The applicant shall use their own return address on the envelopes as the meeting is a 
private meeting between the developer and the neighbors. In their initial submittal, the applicant shall submit the 
“Neighborhood Meeting Packet” forms included in this application packet. The Neighborhood Meeting Packet is located at 
the very end of this document. 

REVIEW FOR SUFFICIENCY:  Incomplete plans will be returned to the applicant and sufficiently complete applications are 
forwarded to TRC staff for review.   

REVIEW BY STAFF:  TRC staff reviews the application to determine compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). 
If the application is determined not to be compliant with the UDO, comments will be sent to the applicant. The applicant 
must address all staff comments before any public hearings are scheduled. 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTIFICATION:  Notification of the public hearing will take place by three different methods.   
1. A written notice will be prepared by Planning staff and sent to property owners, tenants, and neighborhood 

associations abutting and within 300 feet of the land subject to the application not more than 25 days nor less than 
10 days prior to the public hearings, as required by the UDO.  

2. A notice will be published on the Town of Apex website (www.apexnc.org) no less than 10 days, but not more than 
25 days, prior to the public hearings.  

3. A public hearing sign will be posted at the land subject to the application at least 10 days prior to the public hearings.  

1ST PUBLIC HEARING/PLANNING BOARD MEETING:  The Planning Board will consider the application, relevant support materials, 
the Staff Report, and public testimony given at the public hearing. After the public hearing the Planning Board will make a 
recommendation to the Town Council. The Planning Board may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or 
disapproval. The application is then forwarded to the Town Council. The Planning Board meets at 4:30 p.m. in the Town Hall 
Council Chambers on the date indicated on the Rezoning Schedule. 

2ND PUBLIC HEARING/TOWN COUNCIL MEETING:  The Town Council will consider the application, relevant support materials, the 
Staff Report, the Planning Board recommendation, and public testimony given at the public hearing. After the public 
hearing the Town Council will vote to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the rezoning. The Town Council 
meets at 6:00 p.m. in the Town Council Chambers on the date indicated on the Rezoning Schedule. 

2 of 11 Rezoning Application
- Page 78 -



PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to 
third parties. 
Application #: Submittal Date: 

Fee Paid: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

Project Information 

Project Name:  

Address(es):  

PIN(s):  

 Acreage:  

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning:  

Current 2045 LUM Classification(s):  

Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the 2045 LUM Classification(s)? Yes No 

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

Area classified as mixed use: Acreage: 

Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage: 

Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent: 

Applicant Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Owner Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone: E-mail:

Agent Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Other contacts: 

 

 

 

3 of 11 Rezoning Application

Scotts Ridge Office and Veterinary Hospital

6633 & 0 Apex Barbecue Road

0731-48-7012

0731-47-5977 1.448 ac

RA B1 - CZ

Medium Density Residential

Peak Engineering & Design for Kethamakka & Emmadi Properties, LLC

1125 Apex Peakway

Apex NC 27502

(919) 439-0100 jroach@peakengineering.com

Kethamakka & Emmadi Properties, LLC

6633 Apex Barbecue Road

Apex NC 27502

Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC - Jeff Roach

1125 Apex Peakway

Apex NC 27502

(919) 439-0100 jroach@peakengineering.com

Sudhir Kethamakka (skethama@me.com)

Dhanu Emmadi (dhanu.emmadi@gmail.com)

dwoods@peakengineering.com

✔

#21CZ23 09/01/2021

- Page 79 -



PETITION INFORMATION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

An application has been duly filed requesting that the property described in this application be rezoned from 
          to                        .  It is understood and acknowledged that if the property is rezoned as requested, the property 
described in this request will be perpetually bound to the use(s) authorized and subject to such conditions as imposed, unless 
subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). It is further understood 
and acknowledged that final plans for any specific development to be made pursuant to any such Conditional Zoning shall 
be submitted for site or subdivision plan approval, as required by the UDO. Use additional pages as needed.  

PROPOSED USES: 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are subject to 
the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated below. For 
convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that other sections of 
the UDO do not apply. 

1 21  

2 22  

3  23  

4  24  

5  25  

6  26  

7  27  

8  28  

9  29  

10  30 

11 31 

12  32 

13  33  

14  34 

15  35 

16  36 

17  37 

18  38 

19  39 

20  40 

4 of 11 Rezoning Application

RA B1 - CZ

School, public or private **

Veterinary clinic or hospital

Vocational school **

Utility, minor

Botanical garden

Greenway

Park, active

Park, passive

Medical or dental office or clinic

Medical or dental laboratory (S)

Office, business or professional

Barber and beauty shop

Book store

Financial institution

Floral shop

Greenhouse or nursery, retail

Health/fitness center or spa

Newsstand or gift shop

Personal service

Printing and copying services

Real estate sales

Retail sales, general

Studio for art

Tailor shop

Upholstery service

Pet services

** with a condition

#21CZ23

- Page 80 -



PETITION INFORMATION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 

The applicant hereby requests that the Town Council of the Town of Apex, pursuant to the Unified Development 
Ordinance, approve the Conditional Zoning for the above listed use(s) subject to the following condition(s). Use additional 
pages as needed. 

 

LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATIONS - CONDITIONAL ZONING 

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following considerations, 
which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the proposed conditional 
zoning district rezoning request is in the public interest.  These considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration 
of any other factor that is relevant to the public interest. Use additional pages as needed. 

1) Consistency with 2045 Land Use Map.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its
proposed location and consistency with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the 2045 Land Use Map.

 

 

 

 

2) Compatibility.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s appropriateness for its proposed location and
compatibility with the character of surrounding land uses.

 

 

 

5 of 11 Rezoning Application

See attached list of conditions

The proposed non-residential development is not consistent with the 2045 LUM.

Surrounded by Scotts Ridge Elementary School with limited access, the long-term

use as residential is not appropriate. The change to the non-residential with the 

restricted uses is compatible with a neighborhood business and is appropriate for the area.

The proposed neighborhood business on the small site is in keeping with the surrounding

developments. The proposed buffers and other conditions will provide a property

which will serve the surrounding communities.

#21CZ23

- Page 81 -



Scotts Ridge Office & Veterinary Hospital 
Conditions of Zoning 

1. The building exterior shall be high quality materials, including but not limited to brick, wood, stacked

stone, other native stone, and tinted/textured concrete masonry units. Standards shall comply with

UDO Section 9.3.5.

2. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be used in the first forty inches (40”) above grade.

3. The building exterior shall have more than one material color.

4. The building shall have more than one parapet height.

5. Only full cut-off lighting fixtures and fixtures with external house-side shields shall be allowed where

non-residential properties are adjacent to residential properties.

6. The parcels shall be served exclusively by a single right-in/right-out access to Apex Barbecue Road.

The access shall be subject to approval by the Town of Apex and NCDOT.

7. All non-residential buildings shall provide solar conduit for future installation of rooftop solar panels.

8. The property may be used as a “School, public or private” or “Vocation school” land use only if

recombined with the Scotts Ridge Elementary School site.

The following conditions are being added per discussions with the Environmental Advisory Board (EAB): 

Planting and Landscaping 

1. Existing large trees onsite shall be evaluated for possible preservation. Tree canopy shall be

prioritized medium to large, healthy, desirable species. Preservation will be coordinated with staff

during the Minor Site Plan review.

2. Plant trees as designed for efficiency, including:

o Plant deciduous shade trees on southern side of buildings.

o Plant evergreen trees as a windbreak on northern side of buildings.

3. Increase biodiversity.

o Plant native flora (Refer to the Apex Design & Development Manual for approved native

species).

4. Include landscaping that requires less irrigation and chemical use.

o Plant warm season grasses for drought-resistance.

Waste Reduction 

5. Install one (1) pet waste station within the development.

Clean Energy 

6. Include solar conduit in building design.

Lighting Efficiency 

7. Lighting with a color temperature of 3000K or less shall be used for outside installations.

- Page 82 -



PETITION INFORMATION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

3) Zoning district supplemental standards.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s compliance with Sec 4.4
Supplemental Standards, if applicable.

 

 

4) Design minimizes adverse impact.  The design of the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s minimization of
adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and avoidance of significant adverse
impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and
vibration and not create a nuisance.

 

 

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact.  The proposed Conditional Zoning District use’s minimization of environmental
impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and
other natural resources.

 

 

 

 

6) Impact on public facilities.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s avoidance of having adverse impacts on
public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and EMS
facilities.

 

 

 

 

7) Health, safety, and welfare.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use’s effect on the health, safety, or welfare
of the residents of the Town or its ETJ.
 

 

 

6 of 11 Rezoning Application

The proposed use(s) will comply with UDO Section 4.4 - Supplemental Standards - 

as they apply.

The design will provide perimeter buffers, limited uses, architectural conditions, and

utility connections to avoid negative impacts on surrounding properties.

The site will meet UDO standards for design controls including the minimization of

grading/clearing of site, installation of perimeter landscaping to supplement existing

landscape materials, and will coordinate with staff to provide certain lighting controls

to minimize spill-over for neighbors.

The is located adjacent to or within a reasonable distance to existing public facilities

including water, sewer, gas, electric, and communications. The site is alslo located

along Apex Barbecue Road provide quick response options for Town emergency

service providers.

The proposed use(s) will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of Apex

residents and will provide community service(s) needed adjacent to residential

homes and a large WCPSS elementary school.

#21CZ23

- Page 83 -



PETITION INFORMATION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

8) Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is substantially
detrimental to adjacent properties.

 

 

9) Not constitute nuisance or hazard.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use constitutes a nuisance
or hazard due to traffic impact or noise, or because of the number of persons who will be using the Conditional Zoning
(CZ) District use.

 

 

 

10) Other relevant standards of this Ordinance.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use complies with
all standards imposed on it by all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance for use, layout, and general development
characteristics.

 

 

 

7 of 11 Rezoning Application

The proposed uses are all neighborhood non-residential businesses which do not

have significant impact on surrounding property owners.

The proposed list of uses within the B1-CZ request has been evaluated to remove

any possible nuisance or hazardous uses for either residential uses or the existing

elementary school.

The proposed development will meet the standards outlined within various sections

of the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance unless specifically noted within

the zoning conditions.

#21CZ23

- Page 84 -



#21CZ23

- Page 85 -



21CZ23

- Page 86 -



21CZ23

- Page 87 -



21CZ23

- Page 88 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

 

10 of 11 Rezoning Application

Information from Wake County Registry Deed Book 018609 Pages 0855 - 0857 

Tract 1:  
Address: 6633 Apex Barbecue Road, Apex, NC 27502 
REID: 0052359 

BEGINNING at a point in the center of State Road #1162, said point being 286 feet East, measured along the 
center line of said State Road, Robert Wade Clark's northwest comer, said point also being referenced by a stake 
in the southern right of way of said State Road; runs thence South 7 degrees 20 minutes East 210.0 feet to a 
stake, a new corner for said Clark; thence North 82 degrees 40 minutes East 210.0 feet to a stake, another new 
comer for said Clark; thence North 07 degrees 20 minutes West, another new line for said Clark, 210.00 feet to a 
point in the center line of said State Road #1162; this point also being referenced by a stake in the southern right 
of way line of said State Road; thence South 82 degrees 40 minutes West 210.0 feet along the center of said State 
Road to the point of BEGINNING, containing 1.01 acres, according to survey by Smith and Smith Surveyors, 
dated November 13, 1961, and being a part of the lands conveyed to Robert Wade Clark and wife, Metta B. 
Clark, by W. E. Morgan and wife, Bessie S. Morgan, by deed dated April 17, 1961, and recorded in Book 1450, 
page 237, Wake County Registry.  

Tract 2:  
Address: 0 Apex Barbecue Road, Apex, NC 27502  
REID 0440557  
That certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situate in White Oak Township, Wake County, North 
Carolina:  
COMMENCING at NGS "FUNERAL 2", said point having (NAO 83-2011) PUBLISHED NC Grid Coordinates 
of Northing = 722,875.90 feet, and Easting = 2,040,786.12 feet; thence from said point, 
S51°23'40"W a distance of 7,629.39 feet (a grid distance) to an Iron Rebar Set (5/8") (IRS) CONTROL 
CORNER, said point having (NAO 83/2011) NC Grid Coordinates of Northing: 718,115.50 feet, and Easting: 
2,034,824.05 feet, said point being in the southern right-of-way of Apex Barbeque Road (S.R. 1162) and the 
northeastern most comer of the tract herein described, and the POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING.  
Thence, from said POINT OF BEGINNING, leaving Apex Barbecue Road, S10°28'09"E a distance of 114.89 
feet to an IRS; thence, S31°11'06"W, a distance of 68.79 feet to an IRS; thence, S79°11'06"W a distance of 
256.70 feet to an IRS; thence, N50°48'54"W a distance of 98.85 feet to an IRS; thence, N35°05'54"E a distance 
of 49.58 feet to an IRS; thence, N10°25'42"W a distance of 32.25 feet to an IRS in the southern right-of-way of 
Apex Barbeque Road (S.R. 1162); thence, with said right-of-way N77°27'03"E a distance of 67 .00 feet to an 
IRS; thence, continuing with said right-of-way N62°36'05"E a distance of 3.19 feet to an Existing Iron Pin (EIP); 
thence, S10°25'42"E a distance of 140.41 feet to an EIP; thence, N79°l l'06"E a distance of 21 l.08 feet to an EIP; 
thence, N10°28'09"W a distance of 159.65 feet to an IRS in the southern right-of-way of Apex Barbeque Road 
(S.R. 1162); thence, N77°38'07"E a distance of 50.03 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, and containing ± 
0.438 acres (19,070 square feet), all as shown on that certain plat prepared by SEPI Engineering & Construction 
dated 7/27/2016, and entitled "Recombination Plat, on the Properties of David F. Marshall and wife Karen G. 
Marshall and The Wake County Board of Education, for Scotts Ridge Elementary School, Prepared for The 
Wake County Board of Education", said survey plat being recorded in Book of Maps 2016, Pages 1658-1659, 
Wake County Registry. 

21CZ23

- Page 89 -



Page 1 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Instruction Packet and Affidavit for 

Neighborhood Meetings 

This packet consists of instructions and templates for conducting a required 
Neighborhood Meeting. Planning staff are available to advise you in the preparation 
of these materials. Call the Department of Planning and Community Development at 
(919) 249-3426 for more information.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF A NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING? 
A neighborhood meeting is a required form of community outreach to receive initial feedback 
regarding certain project types prior to submittal to the Department of Planning and Community 
Development per the standards found in UDO Sec. 2.2.7. The intention of the meeting is to initiate 
neighbor communication and identify issues and concerns early on and provide the applicant an 
opportunity to address neighbor concerns about the potential impacts of the project prior to 
submitting an application. A neighborhood meeting is valid for six (6) months prior to the 
submission of an application; a delay in submission requires a new neighborhood meeting. 

WHEN IS A NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING REQUIRED? 

• Rezonings (including Planned Unit Developments);

• Major Site Plans;

• Residential Master Subdivision Plans (excluding exempt subdivisions); or

• Special Use Permits

INSTRUCTIONS 
Prior to submitting an application for a Rezoning, Major Site Plan, residential Master Subdivision 
Plan (excluding exempt subdivisions), or Special Use Permit, the applicant must conduct at least 
one (1) Neighborhood Meeting. This meeting may be held in-person or virtually. Virtual meetings 
shall provide a dial-in option in addition to a link to participate by internet. The applicant shall 
submit all forms included in this packet with the initial application submittal.  

The Neighborhood Meeting must be held in accordance with the following rules: 

These groups and individuals must be invited to the meeting: 

• The applicant is required to notify the Department of Planning and Community
Development, all property owners and tenants abutting and within 300 feet of the subject
property, and any neighborhood association that represents citizens in the notification area
via first class mail a minimum of 14 days in advance of the neighborhood meeting, not
including the day of mailing. The applicant shall send an email to
addressing.team@apexnc.org to request the notification list as early as possible in order to
receive the list in time for the mailing. The list will be provided within 5-10 business days of
the initial request. The applicant shall use their own return address on the envelopes as the
meeting is a private meeting between the applicant and the neighbors.

• The applicant shall include with the meeting notice a vicinity map in addition to the
materials listed under “Mailing and handout requirements” below.

Town of Apex  
Dept of Planning and 
Community 
Development 
PO Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502 

T: 919-249-3426 
F: 919-249-3338 

- Page 90 -



Page 2 of 10 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

The meeting must be held within specific timeframes and meet certain requirements: 

• The meeting must be held for a minimum of two (2) hours, Monday through Thursday, during
the 5:00 p.m. - 9:00 p.m. time period. The meeting cannot be held on Town recognized
holidays (https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/34245/).

• In-person meetings:

o Meeting shall be held at a place that is generally accessible to neighbors that reside in
close proximity to the land subject to the application.

o A sign-in sheet must be used in order to verify attendance. Ensure each attendee signs
in. Please note if any person(s) refuses to sign in. Note if no one attended.

• Virtual meetings:

o Meeting shall be held via an interactive online video conferencing software such as
Microsoft Teams, Zoom, WebEx, or any similar platform of the applicant’s choice. A dial-
in option shall be provided.

o An attendance sheet must be used to log known attendees at the virtual meeting. Note
if no one attended.

• Mailing and handout requirements:

o For rezonings (excluding rezonings to PUD-CZ, TND-CZ and MEC-CZ): a vicinity map and
existing zoning map of the area must be provided to help facilitate discussion.

o For rezonings to PUD-CZ, TND-CZ and MEC-CZ; Major Site Plans; residential Master
Subdivision Plans; and Special Use Permits: a vicinity map and preliminary plans of the
proposed development must be provided to help facilitate discussion. Neighbors may
request emailed/mailed copies of the maps or plans from the applicant by checking the
“send plans” box on the sign-in sheet; applicant shall provide reduced copies upon
request. For virtual meetings, the applicant must ask meeting participants if they would
like any materials mailed to them.

o Printed copies must equal the number of notices required to be sent.

o Contact information for the applicant’s representative and Town Staff must be provided
on the attached “Project Contact Information” form.

o “Common Construction Issues & Who to Call” sheet (attached) must be included as part
of the handout.

o A copy of the handout must be included as part of the Neighborhood Meeting report.

• The agenda of the meeting shall include:

o Explanation of all processes the meeting is being held for (rezoning, subdivision, etc.).

o Explanation of future meetings (additional neighborhood meetings, Planning Board,
Town Council, etc.).

o Explanation of development proposal – uses and conditions for rezonings, layout for
subdivision and site plans, and builder/end user if known/public knowledge.

• Questions or concerns by attendees, and responses by the applicant, if any, must be noted.
For in person meetings, provide blank comment sheets or notecards for neighbors to submit
written comments. For virtual meetings, copy all questions and answers entered into the
meeting’s chat feature before closing the meeting and save them into a document. The
applicant shall also include any questions and concerns received via written
correspondence (such as email) or phone call along with responses provided by the
applicant.

• The applicant shall be responsible for notifying any neighbors who check the “Send Plans &
Updates” box on the sign-in sheet of any additional neighborhood meetings and the actual
submittal date to the Town with a link to the Town of Apex’s Interactive Development Map.

- Page 91 -



Page 3 of 10 Instruction Packet & Affidavit of Neighborhood Meetings Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

For accountability purposes, please submit the following with your application: 

• A copy of the letter mailed to neighbors and neighborhood organizations (use attached
invitation template);

• A list of those persons and neighborhood organizations invited to the meeting;

• A copy of the sign-in sheet (use attached sign-in sheet template);

• A summary of the meeting and a list of any changes made to the project as a result of the
neighborhood comments (use attached meeting summary template);

• The affidavit, signed, dated, and notarized (use attached affidavit template); and

• One (1) reduced copy of the maps and/or plans presented to the neighbors at the
Neighborhood Meeting.

- Page 92 -



NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website 
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 4 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

 

Date 

Dear Neighbor: 
You are invited to a neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at 

 

Address(es) PIN(s) 

in accordance with the Town of Apex Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended to be a 
way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors and 
neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors an 
opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is officially 
submitted. If you are unable to attend, please refer to the Project Contact Information page for ways to 
contact the applicant. Notified neighbors may request that the applicant provide updates and send plans via 
email or mail. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive 
Development Map or the Apex Development Report located on the Town of Apex website at 
http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning-Community-Development.  

A Neighborhood Meeting is required because this project includes (check all that apply): 

Application Type Approving Authority 

☐ Rezoning (including Planned Unit Development) Town Council 

☐ Major Site Plan Town Council (QJPH*) 

☐ Special Use Permit Town Council (QJPH*) 

☐ Residential Master Subdivision Plan (excludes exempt subdivisions) 
Technical Review 
Committee (staff) 

*Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: The Town Council cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing.

The following is a description of the proposal (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)):  

 

 

Estimated submittal date:  

MEETING INFORMATION: 

Property Owner(s) name(s):  

Applicant(s):  

Contact information (email/phone):    

Meeting Address:   

Date/Time of meeting**:   

MEETING AGENDA TIMES: 

Welcome:  _____________    Project Presentation:  _____________    Question & Answer:  _____________ 

**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized 
holidays). If you have questions about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning and 
Community Development Department at 919-249-3426. You may also find information about the Apex Planning 
Department and on-going planning efforts at http://www.apexnc.org/180/Planning-Community-Development. 

August 10, 2021

6633 Apex Barbecue Road
0 Apex Barbecue Road

0731-48-7012
0731-47-5977

✔

Development of a new office building to house office space with a veterinary hospital/clinic on

the 1.22 acre assembly.

September 1, 2021

Sudhir Kethamakka and Dhanu Emmadi
same

Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC (Jeff Roach)

ZOOM meeting

August 30, 2021

5:30 5:30 - 5:45   5:45 - 

- Page 93 -



 

NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING  
August 10, 2021 

Dear Neighbor, 

You are invited to a neighborhood meeting on August 30, 2021 to review and discuss 
the rezoning proposal at: 

6633 Apex Barbecue Rd, Apex, NC 27502 0731-48-7012 
 0731-47-5977 

 
in accordance with the Town of Apex Neighborhood Meeting Procedures. This meeting 
is intended to be a way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed 
plans with adjacent neighbors and neighborhood organizations before the submittal of 
an application to the Town. This provides neighbors an opportunity to raise questions 
and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is officially 
submitted.  

 

  Description of Proposal:  

This meeting will discuss the rezoning of the above parcels from Residential Agriculture 
(RA) to B1 Conditional Zoning (B1-CZ) to support the development of the proposed 
office building and veterinary hospital. 

Due to COVID-19, the neighborhood meeting will be held via Zoom, see link below. If 
you have any questions, please email or call Jeff Roach at jroach@peakengineering.com 
or (919) 439-0100. You may also email Jeff for the link to the meeting.  

LINK: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87086232477?pwd=QnBMSk93QmJRTWFzbzJCdU01b2Jxdz
09 

Estimated Submittal Date:  September 1, 2021 

 

 

 

- Page 94 -



 

NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING  
LINK: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87086232477?pwd=QnBMSk93QmJRTWFzbzJCdU01b2Jxdz
09 

 Meeting Information 

Property Owners Names: Kethamakka & Emmadi Properties, LLC 
Applicants: Brandon Lucas – Guru Realty 
Contact Information: Jeff Roach, jroach@peakengineering.com, 919-439-0100 
Meeting Address: Meeting being held via Zoom 
Date of Meeting: August 30, 2021 
Time of Meeting: 5:30 

 

 

 

Meeting Agenda Times 
Welcome:  5:30-5:40 
Project Presentation: 5:40-5:55 
Question & Answer: 5:55- 

 

- Page 95 -



Scott’s Ridge Office and Veterinary Hospital 
List of Adjacent Property Owners 
(provided by the Town of Apex) 

     

     

     

     

CRANEY, CHELSEA 
1104 MILK PAINT ALY 
APEX NC 27502-8489 

 D'ALESSANDRO, PHILIP A D'ALESSANDRO, 
ANNA MARIA 
311 WIDDINGTON LN 
CARY NC 27519-6698 

 
 

 DAPKEVICH, JASON 
1210 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-8489 

DECESS, DENNIS W 
1102 MILK PAINT ALY 
APEX NC 27502-8489 

 DEMCOVICI, MERI ANN 
1220 SCOTTS RIDGE TRL 
APEX NC 27502-3912 

 HUDNETT, NANCY E 
1207 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-8099 

HUGHES, ANGELA K 
1054 MILK PAINT ALY 
APEX NC 27502-4977 

 IMLER, ANDREW JOEL VINIKOOR-
IMLER, LISA CAROLYN 
1202 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-8098 

 IRONS, KATHRINE 
1226 SCOTTS RIDGE TRL 
APEX NC 27502-3912 

IVANOVA, SVETLANA 
2309 REDBUD TREE DR 
APEX NC 27539-6254 
 

 LEVIN, ANNA 
2415 MADIERA CT 
BUFFALO GROVE IL 60089-4672 

 LOFTIN, LARRY SCOTT LOFTIN, JOAN 
TAYLOR 
2700 SOUTHWINDS RUN 
APEX NC 27502-6515 
 

MAHER, DENNIS MAHER, MILA 
1156 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-4981 

 MAJKOWSKI, KAREN ANN 
1208 BUNGALOW PARK DR  
APEX NC 27502-8098 

 MARSHALL, DAVID F MARSHALL, 
KAREN G 
6633 APEX BARBECUE RD 
APEX NC 27502-7776 

- Page 96 -



Scott’s Ridge Office and Veterinary Hospital 
List of Adjacent Property Owners 
(provided by the Town of Apex) 

MCKINNON, DARREN MICHAEL 
MCKINNON, JANETTE L 
1001 HANDHEWN ST 
APEX NC 27502-4985 

 MCMANUS, CHRISTOPHER C 
1052 MILK PAINT ALY 
APEX NC 27502-4977 

 MCMANUS, LISA RODRIGUEZ, 
NICHOLAS 
1216 SCOTTS RIDGE TRL 
APEX NC 27502-3912 

MFALILA, CHELU 
1209 BUNGALOW PARKS DR 
APEX NC 27502-8099 

 NC DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION TURNPIKE 
AUTHORITY 
LAUREN M CLEMMONS, ASST ATTY GEN 
1505 MAIL SERVICE CTR 
RALEIGH, NC 27699-1505 
 

 PALENICK, AMANDA 
1203 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-8099 

PFITZNER, DEBORAH A 
1056 MILK PAINT ALY 
APEX NC 27502-4977 

 SCHAEFER, JOHN M 
1050 MILK PAINT ALY 
APEX NC 27502-4977 

 CURRENT TENANT 
1222 SCOTTS RIDGE TRL 
APEX NC 27502 

THISTLE, LINDA L 
1154 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-4981 

 TUCKER, SHIRLEY F TUCKER, JOHN 
1215 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-8099 

 WAGEMAKER, MARINA WAGEMAKER, 
ANDREW 
1204 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-8098 

WAKE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
RE SERVICES DIRECTOR 
1551 ROCK QUARRY RD 
RALEIGH NC 27610-4145 
 

 WHITE, ROBIN K 
1005 HANDHEWN ST 
APEX NC 27502-4985 

 WHITEHEAD, CHRISTOPHER 
WHITEHEAD, JOELLE 
1205 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-8099 

ZAROW, EMILY N 
1152 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-4981 

 TOWN OF APEX 
PO BOX 250 
APEX NC 27502 

 CURRENT TENANT 
6600 APEX BARBECUE RD 
APEX NC 27502 

CURRENT TENANT 
6601 APEX BARBECUE RD 
APEX NC 27502 

 CURRENT TENANT 
6633 APEX BARBECUE RD 
APEX NC 27502 

 CURRENT TENANT 
1201 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502 

CURRENT TENANT 
1206 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502 

 CURRENT TENANT 
1211 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502 

 CURRENT TENANT 
1217 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502 

CURRENT TENANT 
1100 MILK PAINT ALY 
APEX NC 27502 

 CURRENT TENANT 
1106 MILK PAINT ALY 
APEX NC 27502 

 CURRENT TENANT 
1218 SCOTTS RIDGE TRL 
APEX NC 27502 

- Page 97 -



Scott’s Ridge Office and Veterinary Hospital 
List of Adjacent Property Owners 
(provided by the Town of Apex) 

AADCOX, LORETTA 
1150 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-4981 

 ALLEN, SUSAN RICE, MATTHEW 
LINDA RICE 
1106 MILK PAINT ALY 
APEX NC 27502-8489 

 AMICO, SARAH M 
1212 SCOTTS RIDGE TRL 
APEX NC 27502-3912 

BHASI, NAIR SAARIKA RAMACHANDRAN, 
VASUDEV 
1003 HANDHWEN ST 
APEX NC 27502-4985 
 

 BOHLIG, MARY A 
1213 BUNGALOW PARK DR 
APEX NC 27502-8099 
 

 BONIN, WILLIAM O JR 
1224 SCOTTS RIDGE TRL 
APEX NC 27502-3912 

BRAUCKMULLER, BROOKE RIAN 
1214 SCOTTS RIDGE TRL 
APEX NC 27502-3912 

 BUNGALOW PARK TOWNHOME OWNERS 
ASSN INC 
OMEGA ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT INC 
160 NE MAYNARD RD STE 210 
CARY NC 27513-9676 

 BUNGALOW PARK TWNHM OWNERS 
ASSOC INC 
201 SCOTTS RIDGE TRL 
APEX NC 27502-6578 

CIRASOLE, PETER CIRASOLE, CAROLYN 
2921 LANDON RIDGE DR 
NEW HILL NC 27562-9305 

 CLEMENTS, DEBRA ROWLAND 
719 VINCENT LN 
HENRICO NC 27842-9299 

 CORTEZ, RAFAEL CORTEZ, ANNA MARIA 
1120 WOODLANDS CREEK WAY 
APEX NC 27502-5247 

- Page 98 -



PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website  
or disclosed to third parties. 
 

Page 5 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Development Contacts:  
 
Project Name:  Zoning:  

Location:  

Property PIN(s):  Acreage/Square Feet:  
 

Property Owner:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Email:  

  
Developer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

      
Engineer:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

      
Builder (if known):  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

       

Please note that Town staff will not have complete information about a proposed development until the 
application is submitted for review. If you have a question about Town development standards and how 
they relate to the proposed development, please contact the appropriate staff person listed below. 

Town of Apex Department Contacts 
Planning and Community Development Department Main Number 

(Provide development name or location to be routed to correct planner) 
 
(919) 249-3426 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Department 
Angela Reincke, Parks and Greenways Planner  

 
(919) 249-7468 

Public Works - Transportation 
Russell Dalton, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 
(919) 249-3358 

Water Resources Department  
Jessica Bolin, Environmental Engineering Manager (Stormwater, Sedimentation & 

Erosion Control) 
James Gregg, Utility Engineering Manager (Water & Sewer) 

 
(919) 249-3537 
 
(919) 249-3324 

Electric Utilities Division 
Rodney Smith, Electric Technical Services Manager 

 
(919) 249-3342 

Scotts Ridge Office and Veterinary Hospital

6633 & 0 Apex Barbecue Road, Apex, NC 27502

RA to B1-CZ

0731-48-7012 / -47-5977 ~ 1.448 acres

Sudhir Kethamakka and Dhanu Emmadi

same

Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC

Unknown

6633 Apex Barbecue Road

Apex NC 27502

1125 Apex Peakway

Apex NC 27502

(919) 439-0100 jroach@peakengineering.com

- Page 99 -



Page 6 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Providing Input to Town Council:  
Each Town Council meeting agenda includes a Public Forum time when anyone is permitted to speak for 
three (3) minutes on any topic with the exception of items listed as Public Hearings for that meeting. The 
Town Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Tuesdays of each month at 6:00 p.m. (except for holidays, see schedule 
of meetings at http://www.apexnc.org/838/Agendas-Minutes). You may also contact Town Council by e-mail 
at AllCouncil@apexnc.org. 

Private Agreements and Easement Negotiation: 
The Town of Apex cannot enforce private agreements between developers and neighbors and is not a party 
to the easement and right-of-way negotiation that occurs between developers and neighboring property 
owners for easements or rights-of-way that are necessary to build the project.  

It is recommended that all private agreements be made in writing and that if a property owner feels it 
necessary, they should obtain private legal counsel in order to protect their interests in both private 
agreements and during easement negotiations. The only conditions that the Town of Apex can enforce are 
those conditions that are made a part of the conditional zoning of the property by agreement of the 
developer and the Town.  

As an example, if a developer offers to build a fence for a neighbor to mitigate some impact, the Town can 
only enforce the construction of the fence if the fence becomes a condition of the rezoning. This would occur 
by the developer offering the condition as part of their conditional zoning application package or at the Town 
Council public hearing on the conditional zoning and the Town accepting it as a condition. Private agreements 
regarding a fence being constructed will not be enforced by the Town. 

To request that any agreement with a developer is made a part of the conditional zoning at the time of 
approval, you may ask at the Town Council public hearing if the agreement is included in the conditions. If it 
is not, you may request that the Town Council not approve the rezoning without the agreement being 
included in the conditions (note that it is up to Town Council whether to approve or deny the rezoning but 
they cannot impose conditions that the applicant does not agree to add). The developer’s proposed 
conditions can be viewed any time after a rezoning is submitted on the Interactive Development Map at: 
http://apexnc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/OnePane/basicviewer/index.html?appid=fa9ba2017b784030b15ef4d
a27d9e795 

Documentation: 
Neighbors to a requested new development and/or rezoning are strongly encouraged to fully document (such 
as through dated photographs) the condition of their property before any work is initiated for the new 
development. Stormwater controls installed on developed property are not designed to and will likely not 
remove 100% of the soil particles transported by stormwater runoff. As a result, creeks and ponds could 
become cloudy for a period of time after rain events. 

- Page 100 -



COMMON CONSTRUCTION ISSUES & WHO TO CALL 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website  
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 7 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Noise & Hours of Construction: Non-Emergency Police 919-362-8661 
Noise from tree removal, grading, excavating, paving, and building structures is a routine part of the 
construction process. The Town generally limits construction hours from 7:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. so that there 
are quiet times even during the construction process. Note that construction outside of these hours is 
allowed with special permission from the Town when it makes more sense to have the construction occur at 
night, often to avoid traffic issues. In addition, the Town limits hours of blasting rock to Monday through 
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Report violations of construction hours and other noise complaints to the 
Non-Emergency Police phone number at 919-362-8661. 
Construction Traffic: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Construction truck traffic will be heavy throughout the development process, including but not limited to 
removal of trees from site, loads of dirt coming in and/or out of the site, construction materials such as brick 
and wood brought to the site, asphalt and concrete trucks come in to pave, etc. The Town requires a 
construction entrance that is graveled to try to prevent as much dirt from leaving the site as possible. If dirt 
does get into the road, the Town can require they clean the street (see “Dirt in the Road” below).  
Road Damage & Traffic Control: Water Resources – Infrastructure Inspections 919-362-8166 
There can be issues with roadway damage, roadway improvements, and traffic control. Potholes, rutting, 
inadequate lanes/signing/striping, poor traffic control, blocked sidewalks/paths are all common issues that should 
be reported to Water Resources – Infrastructure Inspections at 919-249-3427. The Town will get NCDOT involved 
if needed. 
Parking Violations: Non-Emergency Police 919-362-8661 
Unless a neighbor gives permission, there should be no construction parking in neighbors’ driveways or on their 
property. Note that parking in the right-of-way is allowed, but Town regulations prohibit parking within 15 feet of 
driveways so as not to block sight triangles. Trespassing and parking complaints should be reported to the Non-
Emergency Police phone number at 919-362-8661. 

Dirt in the Road: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Sediment (dirt) and mud gets into the existing roads due to rain events and/or vehicle traffic. These incidents 
should be reported to James Misciagno. He will coordinate the cleaning of the roadways with the developer. 
Dirt on Properties or in Streams: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
 Danny Smith Danny.Smith@ncdenr.gov 
Sediment (dirt) can leave the site and get onto adjacent properties or into streams and stream buffers; it is typically 
transported off-site by rain events. These incidents should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so 
that he can coordinate the appropriate repairs with the developer. Impacts to the streams and stream buffers 
should also be reported to Danny Smith (danny.smith@ncdenr.gov) with the State. 

Dust: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
During dry weather dust often becomes a problem blowing into existing neighborhoods or roadways. These 
incidents should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so that he can coordinate the use of water 
trucks onsite with the grading contractor to help control the dust. 
Trash: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Excessive garbage and construction debris can blow around on a site or even off of the site. These incidents should 
be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470. He will coordinate the cleanup and trash collection with the 
developer/home builder. 
Temporary Sediment Basins: James Misciagno 919-372-7470 
Temporary sediment basins during construction (prior to the conversion to the final stormwater pond) are often 
quite unattractive. Concerns should be reported to James Misciagno at 919-372-7470 so that he can coordinate 
the cleaning and/or mowing of the slopes and bottom of the pond with the developer. 

Stormwater Control Measures: Jessica Bolin 919-249-3537 
Post-construction concerns related to Stormwater Control Measures (typically a stormwater pond) such as 
conversion and long-term maintenance should be reported to Jessica Bolin at 919-249-3537.  
Electric Utility Installation: Rodney Smith 919-249-3342 
Concerns with electric utility installation can be addressed by the Apex Electric Utilities Department. Contact 
Rodney Smith at 919-249-3342. 

- Page 101 -



NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SIGN-IN SHEET 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 8 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

Meeting Address:   _______________________________________________________________
Date of meeting:  ______________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________

Property Owner(s) name(s):  _________________________________________________________
Applicant(s):  ___________________________________________________________________

Please print your name below, state your address and/or affiliation with a neighborhood group, and provide your phone number and email address. 
Providing your name below does not represent support or opposition to the project; it is for documentation purposes only. For virtual meetings, applicants 
must include all known participants and request the information below. 

NAME/ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE # EMAIL 
SEND PLANS 
& UPDATES 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

Use additional sheets, if necessary. 

A list of attendees is provided as  part of the neighborhood meeting report.

Sudhir Kethamakka and Dhanu Emmadi
same

ZOOM meeting
8/30/2021 5:30 pm

- Page 102 -



SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website  
or disclosed to third parties. 

Page 9 of 10 Neighborhood Meeting Instruction Packet & Affidavit  Last Updated: June 21, 2021  

 

Property Owner(s) name(s): _____________________________________________________ 

Applicant(s):  ______________________________________________________________ 

Contact information (email/phone):   _______________________________________________ 

Meeting Address:  ___________________________________________________________ 

Date of meeting:  __________________________ Time of meeting:  ____________________________ 
 

Please summarize the questions/comments and your responses from the Neighborhood Meeting or 
emails/phone calls received in the spaces below (attach additional sheets, if necessary). Please state if/how the 
project has been modified in response to any concerns. The response should not be “Noted” or “No Response”. 
There has to be documentation of what consideration the neighbor’s concern was given and justification for why 
no change was deemed warranted. 
 

Question/Concern #1: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Question/Concern #2: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Question/Concern #3: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Question/Concern #4: 

_________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  

Applicant’s Response: 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________

Sudhir Kethamakka and Dhanu Emmadi

same

ZOOM meeting

8/30/2021 5:30 pm

A meeting report is attached

Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC (Jeff Roach)

- Page 103 -



- Page 104 -



 919.439.0100 p 
 1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 
Scott’s Ridge Office & Vet Hospital – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

Scott’s Ridge Office & Veterinary Hospital 
Rezoning Neighborhood Meeting 

5:30 pm August 30, 2021 
 
The ZOOM meeting for the Scott’s Ridge Office & Veterinary Hospital began at 5:30 pm and was hosted 
by Jeff Roach with Peak Engineering & Design. A brief introduction was made for the people on the call, 
the participants were directed to the CHAT BOX function in ZOOM to type questions, and the virtual 
meeting protocol was discussed to keep the meeting moving along smoothly. 

A project introduction was then provided, the location within Wake County GIS’ website was shared for 
all to see. After the location of the property was identified for everyone on the call, we walked through 
the existing site conditions, the existing zoning, the purpose of the 2045 Land Use Plan, the current sketch 
plan showing a possible location for the non-residential building and parking areas. Everyone was 
informed that the sketch plan is not a final design for the site and is used to show buffers, access points, , 
and other site-specific items for the property. Following a discussion related to the above items, the list 
of permitted uses was shown related to the non-residential zoning for the property. The discussion 
centered around the location of the new building located between driveways to Scott’s Ridge Elementary 
School. 

Below are the questions as well as a summary of the answer that was provided with each question. 
Additional questions were voiced by the adjacent property owners and were answered to the best of our 
knowledge at this point. 

After answering questions from the neighbors on the call, the adjacent property owners dropped off the 
call around 7:10 pm and the ZOOM meeting was terminated around 7:30 pm.  

Below is a summary of the questions and discussions which were had. There were discussions which were 
had, many of them answering multiple questions or bringing up additional questions. This summary tries 
to highlight the presentation and discussions as accurately as possible. 

  

- Page 105 -



 919.439.0100 p 
 1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 
Scott’s Ridge Office & Vet Hospital – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

Following are questions asked after the presentation and/or during the review of the above “CHAT 
BOX” questions. 

 
1. What is the plan for lighting on the property? 

To protect surrounding properties, house side shields will be provided on all lighting. There are 
also conditions from the Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) to reduce lighting spillover as well 
as color at or below 3,000 K. This will be coordinated with the Town of Apex and lighting design 
team. 

2. What are the uses which are being proposed? 
The list of uses was shown to the attendees. The B1 non-residential zoning district is a wide range 
of uses. We have removed businesses which would not fit within this location (specifically the 
microbrewery). 

3. What is the timing of the business? 
Typical Vet hours are 7:00 am – 7:00 pm but that fluctuates. The Vet Hospital hours was also 
discussed that they are required to have “overnight hours” or provide a reference to overnight 
emergency care facilities. Any other business at this location would follow normal business hours 
for that specific use (no adult businesses are proposed at this site). 

4. Will landscaping being installed on the site? What around a fence along Apex Barbecue Road? 
Perimeter landscaping and buffers will be installed along all sides of the property abutting Scott’s 
Ridge Elementary Schools as well as the frontage along Apex Barbecue Road. 

5. Does the veterinarian have cremation services on-site? 
They do not have cremation services onsite. 

6. What is the access onto Apex Barbecue Road and how does that conflict with the Scott’s Ridge 
Elementary School? 
A right-in/right-out onto Apex Barbecue Road is proposed as part of the development. This 
restriction avoids conflict with school traffic. 

7. Will the sign be a blinking neon sign? 
The sign will NOT be a blinking neon sign. The UDO controls the type of sign and we referenced 
other commercial/office buildings in the area which are reasonable expectations of what the UDO 
would permit. 

 
The timing of the project was also discussed with a typical zoning taking ~3-1/2 months; engineering 
designs taking ~ 6 months; and site/building construction taking 12 months. 
 
After the timing discussion, various other sites in and around Apex were discussed, and the neighbors left 
the call. No changes have been made to the zoning application based upon the neighborhood meeting on 
August 30, 2021. 
  

- Page 106 -



919.439.0100 p 
1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 

Scott’s Ridge Office & Vet Hospital – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

SCOTT’S RIDGE OFFICE & VETERINARY HOSPITAL 
REZONING NEIGHBORHOOD ATTENDANCE SHEET 

Name Email address/contact information 
(if provided) 

Address 
(if known) 

City 
(if known) 

Deborah Pfitzner  1056 Milk Paint Alley Apex 
Linda Rice 1106 Milk Paint Alley Apex 

Jeff Roach 
Peak Engineering & Design 

jroach@peakengineering.com 1125 Apex Peakway Apex, NC 

- Page 107 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to set the Public Hearing for the November 23, 2021 Town Council meeting regarding Rezoning 

Application #21CZ25 Villages of Apex PUD Amendment. The applicant, Curteis Calhoun with Enclave 

Holdings, LLC, seeks to rezone approximately 3.62 acres from Planned Unit Development-Conditional 

Zoning (PUD-CZ #17CZ11) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). The proposed 

rezoning is located at 0 Laura Duncan Road. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

The property to be rezoned is identified as PIN 0742621488. 

Attachments 

 Vicinity Map 
 Application 

 

- Page 108 -



- Page 109 -



 

3700 Western Boulevard, Suite B | Raleigh, NC 27606  
www.enclave-holdings.com 

 
September 1, 2021 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
This application proposes to amend Rezoning Case #14CZ04 Trackside PUD in the following ways: 
 

1. From Rezoning Case #14CZ04 Attachment B, Site Layout Plan sheets C2.1 and C2.3 are 
amended to designate this property as Attached Residential, Retail, and/or Office.  

 
2. Any multi-family units shall have a maximum of 2 bedrooms. 
3. The parking and loading requi -CZ Trackside 

 
a. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parking and loading requirements applicable to 

the attached residential section of Trackside South shall be calculated at 1.5 spaces 
per residential unit. This shall not apply to townhomes. 

4. The project shall install light timers, motion sensors, or other smart lighting technology for all 
lighting within the parking lot. 

5. The maximum height for mixed-use buildings with a combination of residential and non-
 

6. First floor residential shall be prohibited along Hunter Street.  
7. The project commits to planting only native plants. Landscaping shall be coordinated with 

and approved by the Planning Department at site or subdivision plan review. 
8. 

easement. A building credit will be provided to the developer as part of the recreation 

Parks and Recreation Master Plan Map. 
 
No further changes are proposed.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Curteis Calhoun 
Managing Partner, Enclave Holdings 

07CZ05 Proposed

- Page 110 -



PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION   
losed to 

third parties.

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
Fee Paid $  Check #  

 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

PETITION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

Project Name:  

Address(es):  

PIN(s)  

  Acreage:  

Current Zoning:  Proposed Zoning:  

Current 2045 LUM Designation:  

Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the 2045 LUM Classification(s)?     Yes                              No                             
 

If any portion of the project is shown as mixed use (3 or more stripes on the 2045 Land Use Map) provide the following: 

 Area classified as mixed use: Acreage:  

 Area proposed as non-residential development: Acreage:  

 Percent of mixed use area proposed as non-residential: Percent:  

Applicant Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
 

Owner Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  
 

Agent Information 

Name:  

Address:  

City:  State:  Zip:  

Phone:  E-mail:  

Other contacts:  

 

 

3 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

21CZ25 9/1/2021

Villages of Apex PUD Amendment

0 Laura Duncan Road Apex, NC 27502

0742621488

3.62

PUD-CZ PUD-CZ attached residential, retail, office

Mixed Use: High Density Residential/Medium Density Residential/Office/Commercial

3.62

22%

Enclave Holdings LLC

3700 Western Boulevard Suite B

Raleigh NC 27606

919-924-1553 curteis@enclave-holdings.com

Hunter Street LLC

227 Franconia Way

Apex NC 27502

415-710-0462 lisa.allencc@gmail.com

Curteis Calhoun

3700 Western Boulevard Suite B

Raleigh NC 27606

919-924-1553 curteis@enclave-holdings.com

- Page 111 -



21CZ25 9/1/2021

- Page 112 -



PETITION PROCESS INFORMATION 

Last Updated: July 1, 2021 

4)  Design minimizes adverse impact.  The design of the proposed Conditional 
adverse effects, including visual impact of the proposed use on adjacent lands; and avoidance of significant adverse 
impacts on surrounding lands regarding trash, traffic, service delivery, parking and loading, odors, noise, glare, and 
vibration and not create a nuisance.

arding
e. 

5)  Design minimizes environmental impact.
environmental impacts and protection from significant deterioration of water and air resources, wildlife habitat, scenic 
resources, and other natural resources. 

6)  Impact on public facilities.  The proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) Distri
on public facilities and services, including roads, potable water and wastewater facilities, parks, schools, police, fire and 
EMS facilities. 

7)  Health, safety, and welfare.  
welfare of the residents of the Town or its ETJ. 

8)  Detrimental to adjacent properties.  Whether the proposed Conditional Zoning (CZ) District use is substantially 
detrimental to adjacent properties. 

5 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

Yes, this specific design of uses is proposed due to the commercial intersection

upon which it is located. Design has taken into consideration the ingress/egress,

placement of trash receptacles and overall aesthetics of the surrounding area.

Yes. There are a stream buffer and wetlands that are being protected in the

proposed use.

Yes, with the proposed density impact on public facilities will be minimized to a

central building location as opposed to a larger land footprint.

Yes, the health safety and welfare will be enhanced and protected given the

proposed use of access to walkable services and recreation.

No. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding uses and does not have a

detrimental affect of adjacent uses.

- Page 113 -



- Page 114 -



21CZ25 9/1/2021

- Page 115 -



21CZ25 9/1/2021

- Page 116 -



21CZ25 9/1/2021

- Page 117 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A LEGAL DESCRIPTION   

Application #:    Submittal Date:  

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

 

19 of 20 Planned Unit Develoment-Conditional Zoning Application

Please see attached.

- Page 118 -



- Page 119 -



- Page 120 -



- Page 121 -



- Page 122 -



- Page 123 -



- Page 124 -



- Page 125 -



- Page 126 -



- Page 127 -



- Page 128 -



- Page 129 -



- Page 130 -



- Page 131 -



- Page 132 -



- Page 133 -



- Page 134 -



- Page 135 -



- Page 136 -



- Page 137 -



- Page 138 -



- Page 139 -



- Page 140 -



- Page 141 -



- Page 142 -



- Page 143 -



- Page 144 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and Community Development  

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing for 

November 23, 2021 on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Mian Lin property 

containing 1.14 acres located at 5921 Farmpond Road, Annexation #719 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes, by the Planning and Community Development Department. 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website. 

 

 

Attachments 

 Annexation Petition 

 Legal Description 
 Vicinity Map 
 Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 

 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 

 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

 

- Page 145 -



    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 
TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 
Annexation Petition# 719 

Mian Lin (5921 Farmpond Road) 
 
 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160-A 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 
take place; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation; 
 
   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of her 
investigation. 
 
This the 9th day of November 2021. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
  

- Page 146 -



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 
 

Annexation Petition #719   
Mian Lin (5921 Farmpond Road) 

 
 
 

 
To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
    I,  Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 
annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 
is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 
accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Town of Apex, North Carolina this 9th day of November 2021. 
 
 

                                                                      
________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

                                                           Town Clerk 
      

    
 
 
 
         (Seal) 
 
 

 
 

 
- Page 147 -



- Page 148 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
719

bbrock
Typewritten Text
200

bbrock
Typewritten Text
9/29/2021

bbrock
Typewritten Text
CC-Visa



- Page 149 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
719

bbrock
Typewritten Text
9/29/2021



                                             Smith & Smith Surveyors, P.A. 

                                                            P.O. Box 457 

                                                      Apex, N.C.  27502 

                                                         (919) 362-7111 

                                                 Firm License No. C-0155 

 

 

Lying and being in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina and being 

described more fully as follows to wit: 

 

BEGINNING at a point in the southern right-of-way of Farmpond Road and being the 

northeastern corner of  Sidney S. Smith; thence with the southern right-of-way of 

Farmpond Road, North 89º11’36” East, 240.63 feet to a calculated point on the aforesaid 

southern right-of-way, being the northwestern corner of Karen Burnette Gaster: thence 

with the western property line of aforesaid Gaster and beyond with the western property 

line of GLS Contracting Custom Homes, Inc., South 12º53’25” West, 258.32 feet to a 

calculated point in the northern property line of Allen Ray Kirk: thence with the northern 

property line of aforesaid Kirk, North 87º16’20” West, 163.00 feet to a calculated point 

in an eastern property line of Sidney S. Smith: thence with an eastern property line of 

aforesaid Smith, North 04º47’20” West, 241.51 feet to the point and place of 

BEGINNING, containing 1.14 Acres more or less.  

 

This legal description was prepared without the benefit of an actual survey for the sole 

purpose of municipal boundary annexation. 

- Page 150 -



- Page 151 -



���� ����	
����	����	������	���� �����������	������� �� 	!�""�#��"	$�%�%�	&'	(()*+(, -&.	/		(0123,)+23	 	4�5�%��6	7889��� -9���9%:	'��59��%��63),;	<��=>?@�	�� A?��BB	B�@�-�6C-�95�"	���%�9:		D��95E	#��F"%�		.�G	D��95E	HIIJKLMNOKPQRPLSTN UVLR NWXXRT YZJMXT Y[VQXT Y\]JMJT Ŷ V_	OPQQY `Va 755�F6%D��95E
-9���9%:	bG6�9Bc@d	=c�@ef��	%E�	'��8�	"�6g	%�	h��G	�6:	�88�%��6�"	�G6�9�ibG6�9j�	���"�6k	7889���0(;	=��c�?@	�l�
��m	@
	,03;2n122* -9���9%:	4�5�%��6	7889���3),;	<��=>?@�	���>�o	@
	,03,2n030+	�p�qq�����qr�	����b"8	���	/ 30(n(((((n((+3���CD5�"� (012	;3stD ,(�>)((t�%:u�9�	'��%9�5% ,2��G6�E�� �Acv�	?�w4�68	t"��� �nx;(nA�$�y �>D��5	'��%e�iz�6�6k �����%�9:	&'	{���%�9:	&'	|759��k� ;};1-�9��%	'�%� ;,~;)~,(;*-�9��%	/ ,(;3n(((2(

v������	c������q�	'��8	'�%� )~,0~,(;)!��g	�	-�k� ;03);		(1)2#�h�6F�	D%���� 	-gk	D�"�	'�%� ;~2~,(;1-gk	D�"�	-9�5� �;0+d3((4�68	D�"�	'�%�4�68	D�"�	-9�5�	 	c����r����	�������	��%�"	f6�%� ;#�5:5"�	f6�%� ;7�%CDt	D��%���%�8	79�� ;d+,(
�������p	l����	4�68	s�"F�	7������8 �;;,d1((!"8k�	s�"F�	7������8 �;33d;12	 		 	�� 	#�"���	 	4�68	f��	s�"F�f��	s�"F�	'���9��6%���%�9�5	'���9��6%��%�"	'���99�8	s�"F� 		f��C���%C�� 	#�"���7������8 	��%�"	s�"F�	7������8� �,*0d312���g�	t�F6%:	�������8	�F�"8�6k	�68	"�68	h�"F��	9��"�5%	%E�	��9g�%	h�"F�	��	��	y�6F�9:	{�	|�|��	GE�5E	��	%E�	8�%�	��	%E�	"��%5�F6%:�G�8�	9�h�"F�%��6�	76:	�6�"�%��6�	8��"�%��6	�9	�%E�9	�5�6���5	5E�6k��	�55F99�6k	��%�9	%E��	8�%�	8���	6�%	����5%	%E��������8	h�"F�	��	%E�	�9���9%:	�68	5�66�%	��	"�G�F"":	5�6��8�9�8	GE�6	9�h��G�6k	%E�	h�"F�	��9	�8�F�%��6%��E�	y�6F�9:	{�	|�|�	h�"F��	G�""	9����6	�6	����5%	F6%�"	%E�	6� %	5�F6%:�G�8�	9�h�"F�%��6�	f6%�"	%E�%	%����	�6:	9��"	��%�%��55�F6%�	59��%�8	�9	6�G	5�6�%9F5%��6	�F�"%	��	�������8	�55�98�6k	%�	%E�	|�|�	D5E�8F"�	��	s�"F���<��	�����q��	�����pq�	���	q������q�	pq������p	�	��q�	�q��d	������	������	���	���������	��	v��	�p�qq�����q���	v�������������r}���	��	����	);)n+3*n31((}

- Page 152 -



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 
Annexation Petition #719 

Mian Lin (5921 Farmpond Road)  
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 
been received; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 
directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 
 
         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 
has been made; 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 
North Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 
described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on November 23, 
2021. 
 
      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 
 
      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 
Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 
of said public hearing. 
 
     This the 9th day of November 2021. 
 

 
                ________________________________________ 
              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:                        
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk  

- Page 153 -



                                             Smith & Smith Surveyors, P.A. 

                                                            P.O. Box 457 

                                                      Apex, N.C.  27502 

                                                         (919) 362-7111 

                                                 Firm License No. C-0155 

 

 

Lying and being in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina and being 

described more fully as follows to wit: 

 

BEGINNING at a point in the southern right-of-way of Farmpond Road and being the 

northeastern corner of  Sidney S. Smith; thence with the southern right-of-way of 

Farmpond Road, North 89º11’36” East, 240.63 feet to a calculated point on the aforesaid 

southern right-of-way, being the northwestern corner of Karen Burnette Gaster: thence 

with the western property line of aforesaid Gaster and beyond with the western property 

line of GLS Contracting Custom Homes, Inc., South 12º53’25” West, 258.32 feet to a 

calculated point in the northern property line of Allen Ray Kirk: thence with the northern 

property line of aforesaid Kirk, North 87º16’20” West, 163.00 feet to a calculated point 

in an eastern property line of Sidney S. Smith: thence with an eastern property line of 

aforesaid Smith, North 04º47’20” West, 241.51 feet to the point and place of 

BEGINNING, containing 1.14 Acres more or less.  

 

This legal description was prepared without the benefit of an actual survey for the sole 

purpose of municipal boundary annexation. 

- Page 154 -



- Page 155 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
719

bbrock
Typewritten Text
200

bbrock
Typewritten Text
9/29/2021

bbrock
Typewritten Text
CC-Visa



- Page 156 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
719

bbrock
Typewritten Text
9/29/2021



                                             Smith & Smith Surveyors, P.A. 

                                                            P.O. Box 457 

                                                      Apex, N.C.  27502 

                                                         (919) 362-7111 

                                                 Firm License No. C-0155 

 

 

Lying and being in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina and being 

described more fully as follows to wit: 

 

BEGINNING at a point in the southern right-of-way of Farmpond Road and being the 

northeastern corner of  Sidney S. Smith; thence with the southern right-of-way of 

Farmpond Road, North 89º11’36” East, 240.63 feet to a calculated point on the aforesaid 

southern right-of-way, being the northwestern corner of Karen Burnette Gaster: thence 

with the western property line of aforesaid Gaster and beyond with the western property 

line of GLS Contracting Custom Homes, Inc., South 12º53’25” West, 258.32 feet to a 

calculated point in the northern property line of Allen Ray Kirk: thence with the northern 

property line of aforesaid Kirk, North 87º16’20” West, 163.00 feet to a calculated point 

in an eastern property line of Sidney S. Smith: thence with an eastern property line of 

aforesaid Smith, North 04º47’20” West, 241.51 feet to the point and place of 

BEGINNING, containing 1.14 Acres more or less.  

 

This legal description was prepared without the benefit of an actual survey for the sole 

purpose of municipal boundary annexation. 

- Page 157 -



- Page 158 -



- Page 159 -



B. Evere
tt Jordan Lake

Annexation #719!(!̂!]

HOLLAND S CHAP EL RD

VERIDEA
PKWY

OPTIMIST FARM RD

S E CARY PKW Y

HO
LL

AN
DR

D E WILLIAMS
ST

JENKS RD

N SALEM ST

NEW
HILLOLIVE

CHAPELRD

CENTER ST

HOLLY

SPRINGS RD

TRYON RD

KILDAIREFARM
RD

TIN
GE

NR

D

W CH
AT

HAM STGREENLEV EL CH URCH RD

HOLT RD

OLD JENKS RD

SUNSET LAKE RD

GREEN LEVEL WEST RD

SSALEM ST

TEN TEN RD

PENNY RD

KELLY RD

HORTO

N RD

JAMES ST

ST
EP

HE
NS

ON
RD

OLD RALEIGH RDAPEXPEAKWAY

DAVIS
DR

HUNTER ST

L O CH
ME

RE
DR

W
E S

TL
A KE

RD

SW CARY PKWY
PIERCE

OLIVE
RD

ED
ER

LEE

DR

TODY G OODWIN RD

EV
AN

SR
D

SE MAYN ARD RD

WOODS CREEK RD

BEAVER CREEK RD

NC
 55

 H
WY

RICHARDSON

RD

N 
MA

IN
 ST

POOLE RD E BARK ER RD HUMIE OLIVE RD

ROBERTS RD

FARRINGTON RD

LUTHER RD

FR
IEN

DS
HIP

RD

W IMBERLY RD

HORTONS PO ND RD

LA KEP

INE DR

GB
ALFO

RD HW
Y

LAURA DU
NC

AN

RD

APEXBA RBECUE RD

W
WILLIAMS STOLIVE CHAPEL RD

OLD US 1 HWY

Prepared by
Town of Apex
Planning Department
October 2021

£¤1

¯0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Miles

CH
AT

H A
M

 C
O

U N
T Y

C H
AT

H A
M

 C
O

U N
T Y

")55

")540
NEW HILL

£¤1

")55
")540

£¤64
£¤64

")751

£¤64

£¤1APEX

B. Evere
tt Jordan Lake

HOLLY
SPRINGS

CARY

- Page 160 -



- Page 161 -



- Page 162 -



                                             Smith & Smith Surveyors, P.A. 

                                                            P.O. Box 457 

                                                      Apex, N.C.  27502 

                                                         (919) 362-7111 

                                                 Firm License No. C-0155 

 

 

Lying and being in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina and being 

described more fully as follows to wit: 

 

BEGINNING at a point in the southern right-of-way of Farmpond Road and being the 

northeastern corner of  Sidney S. Smith; thence with the southern right-of-way of 

Farmpond Road, North 89º11’36” East, 240.63 feet to a calculated point on the aforesaid 

southern right-of-way, being the northwestern corner of Karen Burnette Gaster: thence 

with the western property line of aforesaid Gaster and beyond with the western property 

line of GLS Contracting Custom Homes, Inc., South 12º53’25” West, 258.32 feet to a 

calculated point in the northern property line of Allen Ray Kirk: thence with the northern 

property line of aforesaid Kirk, North 87º16’20” West, 163.00 feet to a calculated point 

in an eastern property line of Sidney S. Smith: thence with an eastern property line of 

aforesaid Smith, North 04º47’20” West, 241.51 feet to the point and place of 

BEGINNING, containing 1.14 Acres more or less.  

 

This legal description was prepared without the benefit of an actual survey for the sole 

purpose of municipal boundary annexation. 

- Page 163 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and Community Development  

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk and to adopt a Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing for 

November 23, 2021 on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town Council’s intent to annex Linderman 

Properties, LLC (Triangle Math & Science) property containing 20.083 acres located at 351 New Hill Olive 

Chapel Road, Annexation #720 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes, by the Planning and Community Development Department. 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website. 

 

 

Attachments 

 Annexation Petition 
 Legal Description 
 Vicinity Map 

 Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 
 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 
 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

 

- Page 164 -



    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 
TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 
Annexation Petition# 720  

Linderman Properties, LLC (Triangle Math & Science) 
 
 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160-A 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 
take place; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation; 
 
   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of her 
investigation. 
 
This the 9th day of November 2021. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
  

- Page 165 -



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 
 

Annexation Petition #720  
Linderman Properties, LLC (Triangle Math & Science) 

 
 

 
To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
    I,  Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 
annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 
is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 
accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Town of Apex, North Carolina this 9th day of November 2021. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                      
________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

                                                           Town Clerk 
      

    
 
 
 
         (Seal) 

 
 

 
 

- Page 166 -



- Page 167 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
720

bbrock
Typewritten Text
200

bbrock
Typewritten Text
CC

bbrock
Typewritten Text
9/30/2021

bbrock
Text Box

bbrock
Typewritten Text
20.083



- Page 168 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
720

bbrock
Typewritten Text
9/30/2021



- Page 169 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text
720

bbrock
Typewritten Text
9/30/2021



- Page 170 -

bbrock
Typewritten Text

bbrock
Typewritten Text
720

bbrock
Typewritten Text
9/30/2021



       Riley Surveying, P.A. 
3326 Durham Chapel Hill Blvd., Ste. B-100 

              Durham, North Carolina 27707 

 
 

Town of Apex Satellite Annexation  
Area 1 

PIN 0712642296 (DB 18297 PG 2076))  
Property of  

Linderman Properties, LLC, et.al. 
September 29, 2021 

 

 
Being all of a certain portion of land situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina, bounded on the north by 
two properties of O. Wayne Abbott (PINS 0712642615 and 0712647694), on the east by Heritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc. 
(PIN 0712649560), on the south by the northern right-of-way of Dropseed Drive (50’ public r/w) and  Amberlight Road (variable 
width public r/w)  and on the west by the eastern right-of-way New Hill Olive Chapel Road (variable width public r/w) and being 
more particularly described as: 
 

Beginning at an existing “Mag” nail on the eastern right-of-way of New Hill Olive Chapel Road, said nail being on the  
southern property line of O. Wayne Abbott, said nail also being on the existing Town of Apex Limits (Annexation # 
616);  thence, with said Town of Apex Limits and said New Hill Olive Chapel Road’s eastern r/w the following four 
calls S 16º38’29” W 304.94’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 1,955.00’ 
(chord of S 16º16’10” W 25.38’) for a length of 25.38’ to an existing iron pipe, S 15º53’51” W 148.34’ to an existing 
iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00’ (chord S 30º10’58” E 28.82’) for a length of 
32.18’ to an existing iron pipe on the northern right-of-way of Amberlight Road;  thence, with the northern right-of-way 
of said Amberlight Road and continuing with said Town of Apex Limits the following four calls:  S 75º11’40” E 110.04’ 
to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 50.00’ (chord S 71º01’24” E 7.27’) for a 
length of 7.28’ to an existing iron pipe, S 66º51’08” E 68.52’ to an existing iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the 
left having a radius of 50.22’ (chord S 71º01’24” E 7.27’) for a length of 7.28’ to an existing iron pipe, said iron pipe 
being on the Town of Apex Limits (Annexation # 561);  thence, with said Town of Apex Annexation Limits and said 
northern r/w of Amberlight Road the following three calls:  S 75º10’35” E 39.67’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of 
a curve to the right having a radius of 445.00’ (chord S 49º43’12” E 356.83’) for a length of 367.16’ to a computed 
point and with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00’ (chord S 70º56’42” E 28.22’) for a length of 
31.32’ to a computed point on the western right-of-way of Dropseed Drive;  thence with said western r/w and 
continuing with said Town of Apex Limits the following five calls:  N 64º11’36” E 62.66’ to a computed point, with the 
arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 374.89’ (chord N 40º09’26” E 305.48’) for a length of 314.63’ to a 
computed point, N 16º07’16” E 28.73’ to a computed point, with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 
425.00’ (chord N 54º24’14” E 526.61’) for a length of 567.93’ to a computed point and S 87º13’06” E 33.17’ to a 
computed, said point being on the western property line of Meritage Homes of Carolinas, Inc.;  thence, with said 
Meritage Homes’ western property line, with said Town of Apex Limits and leaving said Dropseed Drive’s r/w N 
01º21’13” E 146.09’ to an existing rebar, said rebar being on the southern property line of O. Wayne Abbott and 
being a corner of the Town of Apex Limits;  thence, leaving said Town of Apex Limits, with the southern line of said 
Abbott and with the new Town of Apex Limits N 87º10’57” W 280.05’ to an existing iron pipe, the southeast corner of 
another property of O. Wayne Abbott;  thence, with the southern line of said Abbott and with said new Town of Apex 
Limits N 87º14’05” W 847.26’ to the point or place of beginning containing 12.916 acres more or less as shown on a 
Map by Riley Surveying, PA titled “Contiguous Satellite Annexation Map for the Town of Apex property of Linderman 
Properties, LLC et.al.” dated                         , 2021 

 
 

        Phone – (919)667-0742  Fax – (919)402-0234 
Firm License – C-1281 

- Page 171 -



       Riley Surveying, P.A. 
3326 Durham Chapel Hill Blvd., Ste. B-100 

              Durham, North Carolina 27707 

 
 

Town of Apex Satellite Annexation  
Area 2 

PIN 0712642296 (DB 18297 PG 2076))  
Property of  

Linderman Properties, LLC, et.al. 
September 29, 2021 

 

 
Being all of a certain portion of land situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina, bounded on the north and 
west by Dropseed Drive (50’ public r/w), on the east by two properties of Meritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc.(PINS 
0712648264 and 0712638956) and on the south by Antler View Drive  (variable width public r/w) and Amberlight Road (variable 
width public r/w) and being more particularly described as: 
 

Beginning at a computed point on the southern right-of-way of Dropseed Drive, said point being on the western 
property line of Meritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc. and also being a corner of the existing Town of Apex Limits 
(Annexation # 561);  thence, with said southern r/w and with said Town of Apex Limits the following six calls:  N 
87º13’06” W 34.42’ to a computed point, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 375.00’ (chord S 
54º23’53” W 464.59’) for a length of 501.03’ to a computed point, S 16º07’16” W 28.73’ to a computed point, with the 
arc of a curve the right having a radius of 424.94’ (chord S 40º09’29” W 346.20’) for a length of 356.57’ to a 
computed point, S 64º11’36” W 61.42’ to a computed point and with the arc of a curve to left having a radius of 20.02’ 
(chord S 17º28’32” W 29.15’) for a length of 32.65’ to a computed point on the northern r/w of Amberlight Road;  
thence, with said northern r/w, with the northern right-of-way of Antler View Drive and continuing with said Town of 
Apex Limits the following six calls:  with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 355.00’ (chord S 45º51’24” E 
203.01’) for a length of 205.88’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 94.00’ 
(chord S 67º20’32” E 16.60’) for a length of 16.62’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a 
radius of 254.76’ (chord S 81º09’06” E 75.37’) for a length of 75.65’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to 
the left having a radius of 96.62’ (chord N 85º15’09” E 16.63’) for a length of 16.65’ to an existing iron pipe, with the 
arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 244.00’ ( chord N 65º25’53” E 138.69’) for a length of 140.62’ to an 
existing iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 492.13’ (chord N 67º05’34” E 342.49’) for 
a length of 349.81’ to an existing iron pipe, said pipe being the southwest corner of the property of Meritage Homes of 
the Carolinas, Inc.;  thence, leaving said r/w and with the western line of two properties of said Meritage and 
continuing with said Town of Apex Limits N 01º21’13” E 582.71’ to the point or place of beginning containing 7.167 
acres more or less as shown on a Map by Riley Surveying, PA titled “Contiguous Satellite Annexation Map for the 
Town of Apex property of Linderman Properties, LLC et.al.” dated                         , 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Phone – (919)667-0742  Fax – (919)402-0234 
Firm License – C-1281 

- Page 172 -



- Page 173 -



- Page 174 -



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 
Annexation Petition #720 

Linderman Properties, LLC (Triangle Math & Science) 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 
been received; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 
directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 
 
         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 
has been made; 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 
North Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 
described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on November 23, 
2021. 
      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 
 
      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 
Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 
of said public hearing. 
 
     This the 9th day of November 2021. 
 

 
                ________________________________________ 
              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:                        
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk  

- Page 175 -



       Riley Surveying, P.A. 
3326 Durham Chapel Hill Blvd., Ste. B-100 

              Durham, North Carolina 27707 

 
 

Town of Apex Satellite Annexation  
Area 1 

PIN 0712642296 (DB 18297 PG 2076))  
Property of  

Linderman Properties, LLC, et.al. 
September 29, 2021 

 

 
Being all of a certain portion of land situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina, bounded on the north by 
two properties of O. Wayne Abbott (PINS 0712642615 and 0712647694), on the east by Heritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc. 
(PIN 0712649560), on the south by the northern right-of-way of Dropseed Drive (50’ public r/w) and  Amberlight Road (variable 
width public r/w)  and on the west by the eastern right-of-way New Hill Olive Chapel Road (variable width public r/w) and being 
more particularly described as: 
 

Beginning at an existing “Mag” nail on the eastern right-of-way of New Hill Olive Chapel Road, said nail being on the  
southern property line of O. Wayne Abbott, said nail also being on the existing Town of Apex Limits (Annexation # 
616);  thence, with said Town of Apex Limits and said New Hill Olive Chapel Road’s eastern r/w the following four 
calls S 16º38’29” W 304.94’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 1,955.00’ 
(chord of S 16º16’10” W 25.38’) for a length of 25.38’ to an existing iron pipe, S 15º53’51” W 148.34’ to an existing 
iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00’ (chord S 30º10’58” E 28.82’) for a length of 
32.18’ to an existing iron pipe on the northern right-of-way of Amberlight Road;  thence, with the northern right-of-way 
of said Amberlight Road and continuing with said Town of Apex Limits the following four calls:  S 75º11’40” E 110.04’ 
to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 50.00’ (chord S 71º01’24” E 7.27’) for a 
length of 7.28’ to an existing iron pipe, S 66º51’08” E 68.52’ to an existing iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the 
left having a radius of 50.22’ (chord S 71º01’24” E 7.27’) for a length of 7.28’ to an existing iron pipe, said iron pipe 
being on the Town of Apex Limits (Annexation # 561);  thence, with said Town of Apex Annexation Limits and said 
northern r/w of Amberlight Road the following three calls:  S 75º10’35” E 39.67’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of 
a curve to the right having a radius of 445.00’ (chord S 49º43’12” E 356.83’) for a length of 367.16’ to a computed 
point and with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00’ (chord S 70º56’42” E 28.22’) for a length of 
31.32’ to a computed point on the western right-of-way of Dropseed Drive;  thence with said western r/w and 
continuing with said Town of Apex Limits the following five calls:  N 64º11’36” E 62.66’ to a computed point, with the 
arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 374.89’ (chord N 40º09’26” E 305.48’) for a length of 314.63’ to a 
computed point, N 16º07’16” E 28.73’ to a computed point, with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 
425.00’ (chord N 54º24’14” E 526.61’) for a length of 567.93’ to a computed point and S 87º13’06” E 33.17’ to a 
computed, said point being on the western property line of Meritage Homes of Carolinas, Inc.;  thence, with said 
Meritage Homes’ western property line, with said Town of Apex Limits and leaving said Dropseed Drive’s r/w N 
01º21’13” E 146.09’ to an existing rebar, said rebar being on the southern property line of O. Wayne Abbott and 
being a corner of the Town of Apex Limits;  thence, leaving said Town of Apex Limits, with the southern line of said 
Abbott and with the new Town of Apex Limits N 87º10’57” W 280.05’ to an existing iron pipe, the southeast corner of 
another property of O. Wayne Abbott;  thence, with the southern line of said Abbott and with said new Town of Apex 
Limits N 87º14’05” W 847.26’ to the point or place of beginning containing 12.916 acres more or less as shown on a 
Map by Riley Surveying, PA titled “Contiguous Satellite Annexation Map for the Town of Apex property of Linderman 
Properties, LLC et.al.” dated                         , 2021 

 
 

        Phone – (919)667-0742  Fax – (919)402-0234 
Firm License – C-1281 

- Page 176 -



       Riley Surveying, P.A. 
3326 Durham Chapel Hill Blvd., Ste. B-100 

              Durham, North Carolina 27707 

 
 

Town of Apex Satellite Annexation  
Area 2 

PIN 0712642296 (DB 18297 PG 2076))  
Property of  

Linderman Properties, LLC, et.al. 
September 29, 2021 

 

 
Being all of a certain portion of land situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina, bounded on the north and 
west by Dropseed Drive (50’ public r/w), on the east by two properties of Meritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc.(PINS 
0712648264 and 0712638956) and on the south by Antler View Drive  (variable width public r/w) and Amberlight Road (variable 
width public r/w) and being more particularly described as: 
 

Beginning at a computed point on the southern right-of-way of Dropseed Drive, said point being on the western 
property line of Meritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc. and also being a corner of the existing Town of Apex Limits 
(Annexation # 561);  thence, with said southern r/w and with said Town of Apex Limits the following six calls:  N 
87º13’06” W 34.42’ to a computed point, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 375.00’ (chord S 
54º23’53” W 464.59’) for a length of 501.03’ to a computed point, S 16º07’16” W 28.73’ to a computed point, with the 
arc of a curve the right having a radius of 424.94’ (chord S 40º09’29” W 346.20’) for a length of 356.57’ to a 
computed point, S 64º11’36” W 61.42’ to a computed point and with the arc of a curve to left having a radius of 20.02’ 
(chord S 17º28’32” W 29.15’) for a length of 32.65’ to a computed point on the northern r/w of Amberlight Road;  
thence, with said northern r/w, with the northern right-of-way of Antler View Drive and continuing with said Town of 
Apex Limits the following six calls:  with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 355.00’ (chord S 45º51’24” E 
203.01’) for a length of 205.88’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 94.00’ 
(chord S 67º20’32” E 16.60’) for a length of 16.62’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a 
radius of 254.76’ (chord S 81º09’06” E 75.37’) for a length of 75.65’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to 
the left having a radius of 96.62’ (chord N 85º15’09” E 16.63’) for a length of 16.65’ to an existing iron pipe, with the 
arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 244.00’ ( chord N 65º25’53” E 138.69’) for a length of 140.62’ to an 
existing iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 492.13’ (chord N 67º05’34” E 342.49’) for 
a length of 349.81’ to an existing iron pipe, said pipe being the southwest corner of the property of Meritage Homes of 
the Carolinas, Inc.;  thence, leaving said r/w and with the western line of two properties of said Meritage and 
continuing with said Town of Apex Limits N 01º21’13” E 582.71’ to the point or place of beginning containing 7.167 
acres more or less as shown on a Map by Riley Surveying, PA titled “Contiguous Satellite Annexation Map for the 
Town of Apex property of Linderman Properties, LLC et.al.” dated                         , 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Phone – (919)667-0742  Fax – (919)402-0234 
Firm License – C-1281 

- Page 177 -



720

200 CC
9/30/2021

20.083

- Page 178 -



720 9/30/2021

- Page 179 -



720 9/30/2021

- Page 180 -



720 9/30/2021

- Page 181 -



       Riley Surveying, P.A. 
3326 Durham Chapel Hill Blvd., Ste. B-100 

              Durham, North Carolina 27707 
 

 
Town of Apex Satellite Annexation  

Area 1 
PIN 0712642296 (DB 18297 PG 2076))  

Property of  

Linderman Properties, LLC, et.al. 
September 29, 2021 

 
 
Being all of a certain portion of land situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina, bounded on the north by 
two properties of O. Wayne Abbott (PINS 0712642615 and 0712647694), on the east by Heritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc. 
(PIN 0712649560), on the south by the northern right-of-way of Dropseed Drive (50  public r/w) and  Amberlight Road (variable 
width public r/w)  and on the west by the eastern right-of-way New Hill Olive Chapel Road (variable width public r/w) and being 
more particularly described as: 
 

Beginning at an existing Mag  nail on the eastern right-of-way of New Hill Olive Chapel Road, said nail being on the  
southern property line of O. Wayne Abbott, said nail also being on the existing Town of Apex Limits (Annexation # 
616);  thence, with said Town of Apex Limits and said New Hill Olive Chapel Road s eastern r/w the following four 
calls S 16º38 29 304.94  iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 1,955.00  
(chord of S 16º16 10  W 25.38 ) for a length of 25.38  to an existing iron pipe, S 15º53 51  W 148.34  to an existing 
iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00  (chord S 30º10 58  E 28.82 ) for a length of 
32.18  to an existing iron pipe on the northern right-of-way of Amberlight Road;  thence, with the northern right-of-way 
of said Amberlight Road and continuing with said Town of Apex Limits the following four calls:  S 75º11 40  E 110.04  
to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 50.00  (chord S 71º01 24  E 7.27 ) for a 
length of 7.28  to an existing iron pipe, S 66º51 08  E 68.52  to an existing iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the 
left having a radius of 50.22  (chord S 71º01 24  E 7.27 ) for a length of 7.28  to an existing iron pipe, said iron pipe 
being on the Town of Apex Limits (Annexation # 561);  thence, with said Town of Apex Annexation Limits and said 
northern r/w of Amberlight Road the following three calls:  S 75º10 35  E 39.67  to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of 
a curve to the right having a radius of 445.00  (chord S 49º43 12  E 356.83 ) for a length of 367.16  to a computed 
point and with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00  (chord S 70º56 42  E 28.22 ) for a length of 
31.32  to a computed point on the western right-of-way of Dropseed Drive;  thence with said western r/w and 
continuing with said Town of Apex Limits the following five calls:  N 64º11 36  E 62.66  to a computed point, with the 
arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 374.89  (chord N 40º09 26  E 305.48 ) for a length of 314.63  to a 
computed point, N 16º07 16  E 28.73  to a computed point, with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 
425.00  (chord N 54º24 14  E 526.61 ) for a length of 567.93  to a computed point and S 87º13 06  E 33.17  to a 
computed, said point being on the western property line of Meritage Homes of Carolinas, Inc.;  thence, with said 
Meritage Homes  western property line, with said Town of Apex Limits and leaving said Dropseed Drive s r/w N 
01º21 13  E 146.09  to an existing rebar, said rebar being on the southern property line of O. Wayne Abbott and 
being a corner of the Town of Apex Limits;  thence, leaving said Town of Apex Limits, with the southern line of said 
Abbott and with the new Town of Apex Limits N 87º10 57  W 280.05  to an existing iron pipe, the southeast corner of 
another property of O. Wayne Abbott;  thence, with the southern line of said Abbott and with said new Town of Apex 
Limits N 87º14 05  W 847.26  to the point or place of beginning containing 12.916 acres more or less as shown on a 
Map Contiguous Satellite Annexation Map for the Town of Apex property of Linderman 
Properties, LLC et.al. dated                         , 2021 

 
 

        Phone  (919)667-0742  Fax  (919)402-0234 
Firm License  C-1281 

- Page 182 -



       Riley Surveying, P.A. 
3326 Durham Chapel Hill Blvd., Ste. B-100 

              Durham, North Carolina 27707 
 

 
Town of Apex Satellite Annexation  

Area 2 
PIN 0712642296 (DB 18297 PG 2076))  

Property of  

Linderman Properties, LLC, et.al. 
September 29, 2021 

 
 
Being all of a certain portion of land situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina, bounded on the north and 
west by Dropseed Drive (50  public r/w), on the east by two properties of Meritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc.(PINS 
0712648264 and 0712638956) and on the south by Antler View Drive  (variable width public r/w) and Amberlight Road (variable 
width public r/w) and being more particularly described as: 
 

Beginning at a computed point on the southern right-of-way of Dropseed Drive, said point being on the western 
property line of Meritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc. and also being a corner of the existing Town of Apex Limits 
(Annexation # 561);  thence, with said southern r/w and with said Town of Apex Limits the following six calls:  N 
87º13 06  W 34.42  to a computed point, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 375.00  (chord S 
54º23 53  W 464.59 ) for a length of 501.03  to a computed point, S 16º07 16  W 28.73  to a computed point, with the 
arc of a curve the right having a radius of 424.94  (chord S 40º09 29  W 346.20 ) for a length of 356.57  to a 
computed point, S 64º11 36  W 61.42  to a computed point and with the arc of a curve to left having a radius of 20.02  
(chord S 17º28 32  W 29.15 ) for a length of 32.65  to a computed point on the northern r/w of Amberlight Road;  
thence, with said northern r/w, with the northern right-of-way of Antler View Drive and continuing with said Town of 
Apex Limits the following six calls:  with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 355.00  (chord S 45º51 24  E 
203.01 ) for a length of 205.88  to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 94.00  
(chord S 67º20 32  E 16.60 ) for a length of 16.62  to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a 
radius of 254.76  (chord S 81º09 06  E 75.37 ) for a length of 75.65  to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to 
the left having a radius of 96.62  (chord N 85º15 09  E 16.63 ) for a length of 16.65  to an existing iron pipe, with the 
arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 244.00  ( chord N 65º25 53  E 138.69 ) for a length of 140.62  to an 
existing iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 492.13  (chord N 67º05 34  E 342.49 ) for 
a length of 349.81  to an existing iron pipe, said pipe being the southwest corner of the property of Meritage Homes of 
the Carolinas, Inc.;  thence, leaving said r/w and with the western line of two properties of said Meritage and 
continuing with said Town of Apex Limits N 01º21 13  E 582.71  to the point or place of beginning containing 7.167 
acres more or less as shown on a Map Contiguous Satellite Annexation Map for the 
Town of Apex property of Linderman Properties, LLC et.al. dated                         , 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Phone  (919)667-0742  Fax  (919)402-0234 
Firm License  C-1281 

- Page 183 -



- Page 184 -



- Page 185 -



- Page 186 -



- Page 187 -



- Page 188 -



       Riley Surveying, P.A. 
3326 Durham Chapel Hill Blvd., Ste. B-100 

              Durham, North Carolina 27707 

 
 

Town of Apex Satellite Annexation  
Area 1 

PIN 0712642296 (DB 18297 PG 2076))  
Property of  

Linderman Properties, LLC, et.al. 
September 29, 2021 

 

 
Being all of a certain portion of land situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina, bounded on the north by 
two properties of O. Wayne Abbott (PINS 0712642615 and 0712647694), on the east by Heritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc. 
(PIN 0712649560), on the south by the northern right-of-way of Dropseed Drive (50’ public r/w) and  Amberlight Road (variable 
width public r/w)  and on the west by the eastern right-of-way New Hill Olive Chapel Road (variable width public r/w) and being 
more particularly described as: 
 

Beginning at an existing “Mag” nail on the eastern right-of-way of New Hill Olive Chapel Road, said nail being on the  
southern property line of O. Wayne Abbott, said nail also being on the existing Town of Apex Limits (Annexation # 
616);  thence, with said Town of Apex Limits and said New Hill Olive Chapel Road’s eastern r/w the following four 
calls S 16º38’29” W 304.94’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 1,955.00’ 
(chord of S 16º16’10” W 25.38’) for a length of 25.38’ to an existing iron pipe, S 15º53’51” W 148.34’ to an existing 
iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00’ (chord S 30º10’58” E 28.82’) for a length of 
32.18’ to an existing iron pipe on the northern right-of-way of Amberlight Road;  thence, with the northern right-of-way 
of said Amberlight Road and continuing with said Town of Apex Limits the following four calls:  S 75º11’40” E 110.04’ 
to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 50.00’ (chord S 71º01’24” E 7.27’) for a 
length of 7.28’ to an existing iron pipe, S 66º51’08” E 68.52’ to an existing iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the 
left having a radius of 50.22’ (chord S 71º01’24” E 7.27’) for a length of 7.28’ to an existing iron pipe, said iron pipe 
being on the Town of Apex Limits (Annexation # 561);  thence, with said Town of Apex Annexation Limits and said 
northern r/w of Amberlight Road the following three calls:  S 75º10’35” E 39.67’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of 
a curve to the right having a radius of 445.00’ (chord S 49º43’12” E 356.83’) for a length of 367.16’ to a computed 
point and with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00’ (chord S 70º56’42” E 28.22’) for a length of 
31.32’ to a computed point on the western right-of-way of Dropseed Drive;  thence with said western r/w and 
continuing with said Town of Apex Limits the following five calls:  N 64º11’36” E 62.66’ to a computed point, with the 
arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 374.89’ (chord N 40º09’26” E 305.48’) for a length of 314.63’ to a 
computed point, N 16º07’16” E 28.73’ to a computed point, with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 
425.00’ (chord N 54º24’14” E 526.61’) for a length of 567.93’ to a computed point and S 87º13’06” E 33.17’ to a 
computed, said point being on the western property line of Meritage Homes of Carolinas, Inc.;  thence, with said 
Meritage Homes’ western property line, with said Town of Apex Limits and leaving said Dropseed Drive’s r/w N 
01º21’13” E 146.09’ to an existing rebar, said rebar being on the southern property line of O. Wayne Abbott and 
being a corner of the Town of Apex Limits;  thence, leaving said Town of Apex Limits, with the southern line of said 
Abbott and with the new Town of Apex Limits N 87º10’57” W 280.05’ to an existing iron pipe, the southeast corner of 
another property of O. Wayne Abbott;  thence, with the southern line of said Abbott and with said new Town of Apex 
Limits N 87º14’05” W 847.26’ to the point or place of beginning containing 12.916 acres more or less as shown on a 
Map by Riley Surveying, PA titled “Contiguous Satellite Annexation Map for the Town of Apex property of Linderman 
Properties, LLC et.al.” dated                         , 2021 

 
 

        Phone – (919)667-0742  Fax – (919)402-0234 
Firm License – C-1281 

- Page 189 -



       Riley Surveying, P.A. 
3326 Durham Chapel Hill Blvd., Ste. B-100 

              Durham, North Carolina 27707 

 
 

Town of Apex Satellite Annexation  
Area 2 

PIN 0712642296 (DB 18297 PG 2076))  
Property of  

Linderman Properties, LLC, et.al. 
September 29, 2021 

 

 
Being all of a certain portion of land situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina, bounded on the north and 
west by Dropseed Drive (50’ public r/w), on the east by two properties of Meritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc.(PINS 
0712648264 and 0712638956) and on the south by Antler View Drive  (variable width public r/w) and Amberlight Road (variable 
width public r/w) and being more particularly described as: 
 

Beginning at a computed point on the southern right-of-way of Dropseed Drive, said point being on the western 
property line of Meritage Homes of the Carolinas, Inc. and also being a corner of the existing Town of Apex Limits 
(Annexation # 561);  thence, with said southern r/w and with said Town of Apex Limits the following six calls:  N 
87º13’06” W 34.42’ to a computed point, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 375.00’ (chord S 
54º23’53” W 464.59’) for a length of 501.03’ to a computed point, S 16º07’16” W 28.73’ to a computed point, with the 
arc of a curve the right having a radius of 424.94’ (chord S 40º09’29” W 346.20’) for a length of 356.57’ to a 
computed point, S 64º11’36” W 61.42’ to a computed point and with the arc of a curve to left having a radius of 20.02’ 
(chord S 17º28’32” W 29.15’) for a length of 32.65’ to a computed point on the northern r/w of Amberlight Road;  
thence, with said northern r/w, with the northern right-of-way of Antler View Drive and continuing with said Town of 
Apex Limits the following six calls:  with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 355.00’ (chord S 45º51’24” E 
203.01’) for a length of 205.88’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 94.00’ 
(chord S 67º20’32” E 16.60’) for a length of 16.62’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to the left having a 
radius of 254.76’ (chord S 81º09’06” E 75.37’) for a length of 75.65’ to an existing iron pipe, with the arc of a curve to 
the left having a radius of 96.62’ (chord N 85º15’09” E 16.63’) for a length of 16.65’ to an existing iron pipe, with the 
arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 244.00’ ( chord N 65º25’53” E 138.69’) for a length of 140.62’ to an 
existing iron pipe and with the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 492.13’ (chord N 67º05’34” E 342.49’) for 
a length of 349.81’ to an existing iron pipe, said pipe being the southwest corner of the property of Meritage Homes of 
the Carolinas, Inc.;  thence, leaving said r/w and with the western line of two properties of said Meritage and 
continuing with said Town of Apex Limits N 01º21’13” E 582.71’ to the point or place of beginning containing 7.167 
acres more or less as shown on a Map by Riley Surveying, PA titled “Contiguous Satellite Annexation Map for the 
Town of Apex property of Linderman Properties, LLC et.al.” dated                         , 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Phone – (919)667-0742  Fax – (919)402-0234 
Firm License – C-1281 

- Page 190 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

Department(s): Governing Body  

Requested Motion 

Motion to appoint Reginald Skinner as the new Planning Board Chair, Mark Steele as the new Planning Board 

Vice Chair, and Steven A. Rhodes as a new Planning Board member, and to reappoint Mark Steele and Tina 

Sherman to their second terms as Planning Board members.    

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Current Planning Board Chair Michael Marks has reached the term limits allowed by the Unified Development 

Ordinance (UDO) for Planning Board service. Therefore, Mayor Gilbert recommends current Planning Board 

Vice Chair Reginald Skinner be named Chair for his 1st term and member Mark Steele be named Vice Chair 

for his 1st term; the terms shall run from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 

 
Mayor Gilbert recommends Steven A. Rhodes be named to the seat vacated by Mr. Marks, and recommends 

Mark Steele and Tina Sherman be named to their second terms as Planning Board members; all three terms 

shall run from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2023.   

 
Attachments 

 Proposed Planning Board Appointments 2021 

 Cognito Interest Form – Steven A. Rhodes 

 

 

- Page 191 -



TOWN OF APEX 
PROPOSED PLANNING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 2021 
Unified Development Ordinance: 

Section 2.1.2.B.5 Terms. Members shall be appointed for terms of two (2) years. No member of the Planning Board may serve more than five (5) consecutive two (2) year terms. 
 
Section 2.1.2.C.1 Officers. Chair and vice-chair. The chair and vice-chair of the Planning Board shall be appointed by the mayor from the members of the Board and confirmed by the Town Council. The term of the chair and 
vice-chair shall be one year. A past chair or vice-chair may be re-appointed, even though no chair or vice-chair shall serve for more than four consecutive terms. 
 

PLANNING BOARD 

Terms Reginald Skinner Chair Mark Steele Vice Chair Tina Sherman Steven A. Rhodes 

1st  

Appt. 

 

 

01/01/2018  

to 

12/31/2020 

01/01/2019  

to 

12/31/2021 

01/01/2019  

to 

12/31/2021 

01/01/2022 

to 

12/31/2023 

2nd 

Appt. 

 

 

01/01/2021 

To 

12/31/2023 

01/01/2022 

to 

12/31/2023 

01/01/2022 

to 

12/31/2023 

 

 

 
Chair Terms Reginald Skinner, Chair Mark Steele, Vice Chair 

1st appointment 

 

01/01/2022 

to 

12/31/2022 

01/01/2022 

to  

12/31/2022 

 

- Page 192 -



Planning Board
Advisory Board Interest Form

Candidate Contact Information

Legal Name
Steven A Rhodes

Preferred First Name 

Address
107 Downing Place, Apex, North Carolina 27502

Email Mobile Phone Alternate Phone (work/home)

Do you live within the Apex town limits?  
Yes

Background Information

Current Employer
Dominion Energy

Current Job Title
Raleigh Region Sales and Marketing Manager

Tell us why you would like to serve?
I truly enjoy where I live and proud of what it has become. I'm originally from Garner NC, moved back to 
the Apex Area in 2002 and have called it home ever since.  The impressive growth within our town has 
offered many benefits and conveniences to our community.  However, some of these positive impacts can 
create challenges that lead to tough decisions.  As a Planning Board Member, I would work with our Town 
Officials/Professionals to offer solutions and build upon our successes in moving our town forward.  I want 
Apex to be a place where our grandkids want to raise their families.

Please list any education, special skills, or experience you have that would be useful while 
considering this form.
-MBA
-15 years of Utility Experience
-Former HOA Board Member that worked collaboratively with the Town Officials

If you now serve, or have previously served on any town boards, commissions or committees, 
please list the committees and dates served.
none

- Page 193 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Colleen Merays, Downtown & Small Business Development Coordinator 

Department(s): Economic Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Town’s Special Event Permit for Apex’s Annual Tree Lighting. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The first Friday in December is the annual lighting of the Apex Christmas Tree with Mayor Jacques K. 

Gilbert and Apex Town Council with sing-along caroling provided by Apex First Baptist Church. 

 

The Town sponsored event request includes such services as Police, Public Works, Electric, 

Communications, and Park, Recreation and Cultural Services. This event includes the closure of public 

streets and parking lot as detailed in the attachment. Approval is contingent upon adhering to all rules and 

regulations as detailed in the Town of Apex Special Events Guide. 

 

Attachments 

 Sponsored Special Event Application Cover Sheet 

 

- Page 194 -



 

Town of Apex 
2021 Sponsored Special Event Applications 

 
Event Name: Town of Apex Annual Tree Lighting 
 
Event Date & Time:  

 Friday, December 3, 2021 (4:30 PM – 6:00 PM)  
 
Roads & Parking Closed Date & Time:  

 The Depot Parking Lot & Plaza - from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM 

 Seaboard Street from (N. Salem to Caboose) - from 4:00 AM to 6:30 PM 
 

Rain Date: NA 
 
Event Organizer: Town of Apex 
 
2021 Sposonsorship Request: NA 
 
2021 Estimated Town of Apex Cost: NA 
 
Event Description: The first Friday in December is the annual lighting of the Apex Christmas 
Tree with Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert and Apex Town Council with sing-along caroling provided by 
Apex First Baptist Church. 
 
Questions to Consider: None 

 

 

 

 

- Page 195 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Dennis Brown, Senior Capital Projects Manager   

Department(s): Administration  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve contract with Engineered Construction Company, Raleigh, NC in the amount of 

$6,342,500.00 for construction of Public Safety Station #36 on Wimberly Road in Apex and authorize Town 

Manager to sign same to release start of construction. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Contract is for sitework, grading, building and improvements for the Public Safety Station #36. 

 

Attachments 

 AIA General Contract signed by Engineered Construction Company 

 

- Page 196 -



- Page 197 -



- Page 198 -



- Page 199 -



- Page 200 -



- Page 201 -



- Page 202 -



- Page 203 -



- Page 204 -



- Page 205 -



- Page 206 -



- Page 207 -



- Page 208 -



- Page 209 -



- Page 210 -



- Page 211 -



- Page 212 -



- Page 213 -



- Page 214 -



- Page 215 -



- Page 216 -



- Page 217 -



- Page 218 -



- Page 219 -



- Page 220 -



- Page 221 -



- Page 222 -



- Page 223 -



- Page 224 -



- Page 225 -



- Page 226 -



- Page 227 -



- Page 228 -



- Page 229 -



- Page 230 -



- Page 231 -



- Page 232 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

Department(s): Administration  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners Sean M. Gutowski 

and wife Erika K. Gutowski, to install a screen porch that will encroach 55 SF, steps that will encroach 12 SF, 

and a paver patio that will encroach 8 SF onto the Town’s 20’ Public Utility Sewer Easement and authorize the 

Town Manager to execute the same.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The proposed Encroachment Agreement is between the Town and property owners Sean M. Gutowski and 

wife Erika K. Gutowski (Grantees) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake County PIN 

#0721-72-2178, Book of Maps 2012, Page 01318, lot is also known as 2081 Tordelo Place, Apex, NC 27502.  

Grantees wish to install certain improvements, more particularly described as a screen porch that will 

encroach 55 SF, steps that will encroach 12 SF, and a paver patio that will encroach 8 SF onto the Town’s 

20’ Public Utility Sewer Easement.    

 

 

Attachments 

 Encroachment Agreement  
 Exhibit A 

 

- Page 233 -



- Page 234 -



- Page 235 -



- Page 236 -



- Page 237 -



- Page 238 -



- Page 239 -



- Page 240 -

nmaynard
Polygon

nmaynard
Polygon

nmaynard
Text Box
EXHIBIT A2081 TORDELO PLACE 

nmaynard
Text Box
NOTE:THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 

nmaynard
Text Box
8 SF of Paver Patio to encroach onto the Town's 20' Public Utility Sewer Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
12 SF of Steps to encroach onto the Town's 20' Public Utility Sewer Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
55 SF of Screened Porch to encroach onto the Town's Public Utility Sewer Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Polygon



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

Department(s): Administration  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners Taylor Morrison of 

Carolinas, Inc. to install a concrete door stoop that will encroach 7 S.F. and an AC unit that will encroach 9 

S.F. onto the 10’ Public Utility Easement and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Approve Encroachment Agreement between the Town and property owner Taylor Morrison of Carolinas, 

Inc. (Grantee) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake County PIN #0722-87-1075, 

Book of Maps 2021, Page 363, lot is also known as 2491 Hutch Lane, Apex, NC 27523.  Grantee wishes to 

install certain improvements, more particularly described as a concrete door stoop that will encroach 7 S.F. 

and an AC unit that will encroach 9 S.F. onto the 10’ Public Utility Easement.  

 

 

Attachments 

 Encroachment Agreement  
 Exhibit A 

 

- Page 241 -



- Page 242 -



- Page 243 -



- Page 244 -



- Page 245 -



- Page 246 -



- Page 247 -



SCALE:
1" = 20 ft.

Bateman Civil Survey Company
Engineers     Surveyors     Planners

2524 Reliance Avenue, Apex, NC 27539   Ph: 919.577.1080  Fax: 919.577.1081

www.batemancivilsurvey.com         info@batemancivilsurvey.com

NCBELS Firm No. C-2378

TOWNES AT WESTFORD PH. 3A - LOTS 255-257
 HUTCH LANE, APEX, NC

WHITE OAK TOWNSHIP, WAKE COUNTY

DATE: 8/18/21 DRAWN BY: HTC CHECKED BY: SPC

REFERENCE: BM 2021, PG. 360-364     BCS# 190363    SCALE: 1" = 20'

HUTCH LANE
PUBLIC 60' R/W

SIDEWALK

VICINITY MAP
(Not to Scale)

M
A
G
N
E
T
I
C

SITE
I-540

U.S. HWY 64

CLAUDE E. POPE

MEMORIAL HWY

LOT 256 INFORMATION:
PIN:  0722871075
ADDRESS: 2491 HUTCH LANE
TOTAL LOT AREA = 0.063 AC = 2,730 SF

HOUSE = 1,692 SF
PORCH = 35 SF
SIDEWALK = 84 SF
DRIVEWAY = 363 SF
STOOP = 9 SF
AC PAD = 9 SF

TOTAL PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS = 2,192 SF
PERCENT IMPERVIOUS = 80.3%

NOTES:

1. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED BY BATEMAN CIVIL
SURVEY CO., UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEVEN
P. CARSON, PLS.

2. THIS PLAN HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR LAYOUT AND
PERMITTING PURPOSES ONLY.

3. PROPERTY LINES SHOWN WERE TAKEN FROM
EXISTING FIELD EVIDENCE, EXISTING DEEDS
AND/OR PLATS OF PUBLIC RECORD, AND
INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE SURVEYOR BY
THE CLIENT.

4. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND
DISTANCES AND ALL BEARINGS ARE NORTH
CAROLINA  STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM
UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN.

5. THIS MAP IS NOT FOR RECORDATION AND SHOULD
BE REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY
FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS.

6. THE BASIS OF NORTH AND ALL EASEMENTS,
RIGHTS-OF-WAYS, BUFFERS, SETBACKS AND
ADJOINERS, ETC. REFERENCED IN TITLE BLOCK.

7. NO INVESTIGATION INTO THE EXISTENCE OF
JURISDICTIONAL WETLANDS OR RIPARIAN BUFFERS
PERFORMED BY THIS FIRM.

8. SURVEYOR HAS MADE NO INVESTIGATION OR
INDEPENDENT SEARCH FOR EASEMENTS OF
RECORD, ENCUMBRANCES, RESTRICTIVE
COVENANTS, OWNERSHIP TITLE EVIDENCE OR ANY
OTHER FACTS THAT AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT
TITLE SEARCH MAY DISCLOSE.

9. THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED IN A SPECIAL
FLOOD HAZARD ZONE. IT IS LOCATED IN ZONE "X"
AS DEFINED BY HUD F.I.R.M. MAP  3720072200J
DATED MAY 2, 2006.

10. ZONING IS :  PUD-CZ
11. PROPERTY OWNER:  TAYLOR MORRISON
                                             15501 WESTON 

                       PARKWAY,   SUITE 100
                                             CARY, NC   27513

3.5' R
(TYP)

SW

PO

E G

256
2,730 SF
0.063 AC

SP

DW

5
.0

'

5' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT

CB

258

5
0
.0

'

CARDINAL EXTENSION
COMPANY, LLC
50' EASEMENT

W
IM

B
E

R
L

Y
 R

O
A

D

P
U

B
L

IC
 6

0
' R

/W

2
0
.0

'
CB

CB

20' PUBLIC
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

C47

YI

SIDEWALK
RAMP

SIGHT
DISTANCE
TRIANGLE

1
0
. 0

'

10' PUBLIC
UTILITY

EASEMENT

PROPOSED
FORTUNA 'A'

SLAB
2 CAR - RIGHT

DWDW

SW
SW

AC

PO

PO

3.5' R
(TYP)

CB

SP

S

CURVE RADIUS LENGTH CHORD DIRECTION CHORD

CURVE TABLE

C47 41.96' 37.21'S47°28'26"E25.00'

19.5'
23.1'

15.9'

1
5
. 2

'

1
0
. 7

'

1
5
. 2

'

8.8'

8.8'

2
0
. 3

'

E G

E G

2
2
. 3

'

2
0
. 3

'

S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

16.3' 16.3' 16.3'

5
.0

'

P
:\

2
0

1
9

 P
ro

je
ct

s\
1

9
0

3
6

3
 T

o
w

n
e
s 

a
t 

W
e
st

fo
rd

\d
w

g
\1

9
0

3
6

3
 W

e
st

fo
rd

 p
h

 3
 A

.d
w

g
, 8

/2
0
/2

0
2
1
 8

:3
7
:3

5
 A

M
, F

o
xi

t 
R

ea
d

er
 P

D
F 

P
ri

n
te

r

- Page 248 -

nmaynard
Rectangle

nmaynard
Text Box
AC Unit will encroach 9 SF into the Public Utility Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
Concrete Door Stoop will encroach 7 SF into the Public Utility Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
EXHIBIT A

nmaynard
Text Box
NOTE:THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

Department(s): Administration  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners Taylor Morrison of 

Carolinas, Inc. to install a concrete door stoop that will encroach 7 S.F. and an AC unit that will encroach 9 

S.F. onto the 10’ Public Utility Easement and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Approve Encroachment Agreement between the Town and property owner Taylor Morrison of Carolinas, 

Inc. (Grantee) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake County PIN #0722-87-1175, 

Book of Maps 2021, Page 363, lot is also known as 2483 Hutch Lane, Apex, NC 27523.  Grantee wishes to 

install certain improvements, more particularly described as a concrete door stoop that will encroach 7 S.F. 

and an AC unit that will encroach 9 S.F. onto the 10’ Public Utility Easement.  

 

 

Attachments 

 Encroachment Agreement  
 Exhibit A 

 

- Page 249 -



- Page 250 -



- Page 251 -



- Page 252 -



- Page 253 -



- Page 254 -



- Page 255 -



- Page 256 -

nmaynard
Polygon

nmaynard
Polygon

nmaynard
Text Box
EXHIBIT A

nmaynard
Text Box

nmaynard
Text Box
AC Unit will encroach 9 SF onto the Public Utility Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
Concrete Door Stoop will encroach 7 SF onto the Public Utility Easement 

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
NOTE:THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager   

Department(s): Administration  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners Taylor Morrison of 

Carolinas, Inc. to install a concrete door stoop that will encroach 7 S.F. and an AC unit that will encroach 9 

S.F. onto the 10’ Public Utility Easement and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Approve Encroachment Agreement between the Town and property owner Taylor Morrison of Carolinas, 

Inc. (Grantee) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake County PIN #0722-87-1188, 

Book of Maps 2021, Page 363, lot is also known as 2481 Hutch Lane, Apex, NC 27523.  Grantee wishes to 

install certain improvements, more particularly described as a concrete door stoop that will encroach 7 S.F. 

and an AC unit that will encroach 9 S.F. onto the 10’ Public Utility Easement.  

 

 

Attachments 

 Encroachment Agreement  
 Exhibit A 

 

- Page 257 -



- Page 258 -



- Page 259 -



- Page 260 -



- Page 261 -



- Page 262 -



- Page 263 -



- Page 264 -

nmaynard
Rectangle

nmaynard
Polygon

nmaynard
Text Box
AC Unit will encroach 9 SF onto the Public Utility Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
Concrete Door Stoop will encroach 7 SF onto the Public Utility Easement

nmaynard
Arrow

nmaynard
Text Box
EXHIBIT A

nmaynard
Text Box
NOTE:THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert  

Department(s): Governing Body  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a resolution requesting that the Wake County Board of Commissioners appoint Robert 

Carmac to the Board of Adjustment as an ETJ Representative. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes  

Item Details 

The Governing Body recommends approval of the following appointment: 

To the Board of Adjustment: Robert Carmac  

                                                     Term:  1/1/2022-12/31/2024 

Robert Carmac expressed interest via our on-line interest form and has agreed to serve on the Board of 

Adjustment 

 

Attachments 

 Resolution  

 Interest Form  

 

- Page 265 -



RESOLUTION NO. 21-1109-22 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE WAKE COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS TO APPOINT EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION (ETJ) 

MEMBER TO THE APEX BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
 WHEREAS, Sections 2.1.2 and 2.1.3 of the Apex Unified Development Ordinances 
require the membership of the Planning Board and of the Board of Adjustment reflect a 
proportional representation between the population of the Town’s corporate limit and  the 
Town’s extraterritorial jurisdiction; and  
 

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. §160A-362 states that as a result of extraterritorial jurisdiction, a 
means of proportional representation based on population for residents of the extraterritorial area 
shall be provided, which requires that the local Board of County Commissioners serves to 
appoint members living in the Town’s extraterritorial jurisdiction; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Apex is requesting the appointment of the following individual 
to serve as Extraterritorial Jurisdiction representative to the following board: 
 
To the Board of Adjustment:  
 

 Robert Carmac  
 1020 N. Salem Street 
 Apex, NC 275 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of the Town of 
Apex hereby requests the Wake County Board of County Commissioners appoint Robert Carmac 
to the Apex Board of Adjustment, in accordance with the Apex Unified Development 
Ordinances and N.C.G.S. §160A-362. 
 

 This the 9th day of November, 2021. 

        
       ______________________________ 
       Jacques K. Gilbert 
       Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

- Page 266 -



Board of Adjustment
Advisory Board Interest Form

Candidate Contact Information

Legal Name
Robert  Carmac

Preferred First Name 

Address
1020 N Salem St., Apex, North Carolina 27502

Email Mobile Phone Alternate Phone (work/home)

Do you live within the Apex town limits?  
No

Background Information

Current Employer
Smith Sinnett Architecture

Current Job Title
Principal / Architect

Tell us why you would like to serve?
I started my first project, as an Architect, in 2004 when we were hired to design the Community Center 
Expansion. Since that point, I have taken an active interest in watching how the Town has grown and 
expanded. In 2007, I purchased my first home in Apex and currently reside in the ETJ. I am a member of 
the Apex Rotary Club and enjoy serving this community every chance I get. I would value taking another 
step in serving my local community by being a member of this committee. I understand the importance and 
value of the Board of Adjustment. As a business owner, I have the flexibility in my schedule to ensure I can 
make every meeting. I want to be an active part of the committee and will demonstrate that by my effort, 
input, and attendance at every meeting. I also understand that it is critical to understand the issues and 
topics being brought forward for consideration to the committee. So spending time to review the provided 
information is critical in making the most informed decision possible. I intent to dedicate the time and effort 
necessary to understand each item brought before the committee. As an Architect, I am very experienced 
in reading and understanding site plans, building plans, codes, construction issue, etc. This experience will 
help me to discern the information quicker and provide better responses and enhance the decision making 
process. My experience in working within the Town of Apex, and working with my other Municipal clients, 
gives me a critical insight into the process and will help me make sound decisions that continue to benefit 
and enhance our community. I feel my experience and passion for this community will help me be a 
valuable member for this committee.

Please list any education, special skills, or experience you have that would be useful while 
considering this form.
I have a Professional, 5 Year, Bachelor's Degree in Architecture. I am a licensed Architect with over 15 
years' experience. I am familiar with the Town and live in the ETJ for the Town of Apex. As an Architect, I 
understand construction and building codes. I have completed numerous projects that were submitted to 
planning departments, ensure compliance with zoning codes, and have presented at zoning, planning and 
council meetings. Additionally, I am very familiar with Town of Apex Planning Department's UDO. Most 
recently, I have just completed the new Senior Center for the Town of Apex, opening this month. In total, I 
have worked on (9) projects as the Architect for the Town of Apex. They include the Community Center 
Expansion, Senior Center Addition, Parks Maintenance Building at the Nature Park, and Restroom facilities 

- Page 267 -



at Seagrove Farms Park, Hunter Street Park, Kelly Road Park, and Nature Park. In each of these projects, 
I actively engaged with the Planning Department for submittals and approvals. So I am very familiar with 
the process. I have been associated with the Town and have watched it grow since 2004. Being an 
Architect with experience on successfully completing projects in the Town of Apex gives me a unique 
prospective that I feel will bring value to this Committee. 

Currently I am a member of the Apex Rotary Club and actively managing the registration and entries for 
the Annual Christmas Parade.

If you now serve, or have previously served on any town boards, commissions or committees, 
please list the committees and dates served.
I have not served on any Town Boards or Committees. As the Architect for the new Senior Center for the 
Town of Apex, I was a member and manager of the Steering Committee that helped develop the building 
program. This Steering Committee started and completed its work in 2016.

- Page 268 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9,2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Colleen Merays, Downtown & Small Business Development Coordinator 

Department(s): Economic Development  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the amended Co-Sponsored Special Event Permit request for Apex Rotary Christmas 

Parade, Winter Wonderland and mobile vendor with the approved date of Saturday, December 4, 2021. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Name Of Event                      Event Date(s)               Event Times            Event Organizer/Sponsor 

Apex Rotary Christmas Parade      Sat., Dec. 4, 2021    5PM – 7:30PM         Apex Rotary 

Apex Parade Winter Wonderland   Sat., Dec. 4, 2021            12PM – 8:00PM 

Parade Mobile Vendors                  Sat., Dec. 4, 2021            3PM – 8:00PM                                                                           

 

Estimated Town Expenditures $20,152.00 

 

This Co-Sponsored special event request totals $20,152.00 and include such services as Police, Public 

Works, Electric and Park, Recreation and Cultural Services. These events include closure of public streets, 

parking lots and use of the Town Hall campus parking as detailed in the attachment. Approval of 

Sponsorship is contingent upon event coordinators adhering to all rules and regulations as details in the 

Town of Apex Special Events Guide and Special Event Permit Application. 

 

 

Attachments 

 Amended Co-Sponsored Special Event Description and Request 
 Parade Route and Staging Maps 

 Winter Wonderland Map 
 Mobile Vendor Map 

 
- Page 269 -



 
Town of Apex 

2021 Cosponsored Special Event Applications 
 

Event Name: Apex Christmas Parade & Winter Wonderland 
 
Event Organizer: Apex Rotary Club 
 
Event Date & Time:  

 Parade - Saturday, December 4, 2021 from 5:00 PM to 8:00 PM 

 Winter Wonderland – Saturday, December 4, 2021 from 12 PM – 8:00 PM 

 Mobile Food Vendors – Saturday, December 4, 2021 from 3:00 PM to 8:00 PM 
 
Roads & Parking Closed Date & Time:  
 

 Parade - Saturday, December 4, 2021 from 2:30 PM to 11:00 PM 

 N. Salem from (Peakway to Williams)  

 Peakway from (Laura Duncan to N. Salem)  

 Hunter from (Laura Duncan to Salem)  

 Ambergate Station from (Hunter to Peakway)  

 Upchurch Street (Willams to Holleman) 

 W. Moore St (N. Salem to Upchurch St.) 
 

 Winter Wonderland – Saturday, December 4, 2021 from 8 AM – 11:00 PM 

 The Depot Parking Lot & Plaza  
 

 Mobile Food Vendors - Saturday, December 4, 2021 from 2:00 PM - 11:00 PM 

 N. Salem at (Peakway)  

 N. Salem at (Hunter) 

 N. Salem at (Thompson) 

 The Depot 

 S. Salem at (Holleman) 
 
Rain Date: N/A 
 
2021 Co-Sposonsorship Request: Barricades to block N. Salem St from (Hunter to Chatham) and Depot 
Parking Lot 
 
2021 Estimated Town of Apex Cost: $20,152.00 
 
Event Description:  
Parade - Staging on Ambergate Station and Apex Peakway. Parade proceeds down Salem St to the Public Works 
parking lot and disbands there. 
 
Winter Wonderland – Held in The Depot Parking Lot & Plaza, businesses will create festive spaces to promote 
their businesses while providing child-centered activities (face painting, giveaways, ornament decorating, etc.) All 
proceeds, less costs, will be donated to Western Wake Crisis Ministry. 
 
Mobile food vendors – Space along the parade route for food vendors to park and sell coffee, hot chocolate, 
smoothies, grab and go food to parade goers.  
 
Questions to Consider: None - Page 270 -



 

- Page 271 -



- Page 272 -



Parade walker drop-off.
Vehicles IN parade only
are allowed beyond
this point. .Control 

Point
A

X
Close neighborhood access.

Redirect to Laura Duncan
Entrance.

X
Drop
off

Exhibit for:
STAGING &
ROAD CLOSURES
Hunter Street at 
Old Raleigh Road
(TOWN HALL) 

- Page 273 -



X

Beginning
of parade

X

Exit through
Neighborhood

only
Exhibit for:
STAGING &
ROAD CLOSURES
Apex Peakway at 
Ambergate Station 

Parade Staging
Area

Parking for
Rotarians only

- Page 274 -



Entry route, drop off and line up area 
for school bands at Ample Storage Center

Line up area for walkers and 
homemade floats along Ambergate Station

Entry checkpoint for walkers and parade vehicles only
(Have your parade entry # displayed on your windshield!)

Line up area for commercial floats along
Apex Peakway, disband on Salem Street just before East Williams 
street intersection (HWY 55). See solid blue arrow at bottom of map.

Route into Town from Old Raleigh Road
for parade participants.

Please use designated routes only!

Parking and drop off area for 
parade participants at 
Town Hall/Community Center complex

Band Exit (Band members turn left on East Moore Street 
right after Holland’s Jewelers)

Band Parking (315 South Salem Street office complex
parking lot)

Exit for all other parade participants and floats
(Exit right onto West Moore St.)

Pick up area for ALL participants 
(Sovereign Grace Church)

Parking areas at CC Jones Community Center 
and Apex Public Works

South

East

Ambergate
Pool

X!
X!

X!

Apex
High School

Food
Lion

Parade Route along North Salem Street

Bathroom locations (Ballfields at Ambergate, Community Center 
at Town Hall, Corner of North Salem and South Saunders, 
Corner of Moore and Upchurch, Moore and Salem Street)

B

B

B

B

B

x! X!

X!

Entry
Check
Point

B

No parade participant 
access from these 
intersections.
Use designated
routes only!

x!

Ample
Self 

Storage

APEX CHRISTMAS PARADE MAP
- Page 275 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November, 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Mitch McKinney, Deputy Chief of Police 

Department(s): Police 

Requested Motion 

Motion to formally retire Apex Police Department Canine Rocky from police service and allow him to remain 

in Ofc. Scott James’s stewardship for the remainder of Rocky’s life. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Canine Rocky has served almost a decade with his partner Ofc. Scott James, and with Council's permission, 

will have the distinguished honor of being Apex Police Department's first Canine retiree. Initially, we 

anticipated making this request in June associated with a health concern; however, Rocky's handler worked 

with the canine veterinarian to resolve the issue. As a result, we agreed to postpone the date for Rocky's 

retirement after determining that no decline in quality of life for Rocky was identified,  and his service 

continued to benefit the community. Additionally, this decision allowed us to acquire another canine and 

supplement our existing resources. After some recent conversations, we are confident the community will 

have their new canine available without delay. Also, after assessing and reviewing Rocky's physical 

capability and considering what is in his best interest, we have decided to begin the process of retiring him 

from service with the Town of Apex to support a peaceful and relaxing quality of life for Rocky's remaining 

years. . Rocky will have a formal retirement at the police department with the date TBD. 

 

Attachments 

 None 

 

- Page 276 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Office of the Town Clerk 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Apex Tax Report dated 10/03/2021 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

At its regular meeting held on November 1, 2021, the Wake County Board of Commissioners approved the 

Apex Tax Report dated 10/03/2021 

 

Attachments 

 Tax Report 

 

- Page 277 -



- Page 278 -



- Page 279 -



- Page 280 -



- Page 281 -



- Page 282 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Office of the Town Clerk 

Requested Motion 

Motion to ratify Resolution No. 21-1101-21 of the Apex Town Council to Name a Portion of the Senior Center 

in honor of Mayor Pro Tem Nicole L. Dozier 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

This Resolution was presented at the ribbon cutting of the Senior Center on November 1, 2021.  This action 

will ratify that on November 1, 2021 Council was in agreement with this action. 

 

Attachments 

 Resolution No. 21-1101-21 

 

- Page 283 -



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 21-1101-21 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL TO NAME A PORTION OF  
THE SENIOR CENTER IN HONOR OF MAYOR PRO TEM NICOLE L. DOZIER 

 

WHEREAS, Ms. Dozier’s commitment to the residents of Apex led to the Town of Apex building 
a $15 million Senior Center which encompasses 29,475 square feet of program, activity, and 
support space; and 

WHEREAS, to support senior residents, the Senior Center consists of multi-purpose rooms, 
classrooms, and activity areas for programs; exercise rooms; an arts and crafts room with kiln; a 
reception area; office space for outside agency consultation and programs; a catering kitchen; and 
informal activity space; and  

WHEREAS, Ms. Dozier’s professional background in healthcare has given voice, clarity, and 
understanding to the need for initiatives that are crucial to perpetuate the physical and mental 
states of being, particularly in our senior community; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Dozier’s response to Apex’s elderly population will ensure that our Town’s 
residents will have the opportunity to enjoy the benefits of physical and creative activities to 
enhance the quality of their lives, and in sending the message that Apex includes them in our 
wishes to be healthy, happy, and contributory members in our community. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that in recognition of Nicole L. Dozier’s dedication to service 
and her visionary contributions to the Town of Apex and to the community at large, the Town 
Council of the Town of Apex does hereby name the lounge area of the Apex Senior Center in the 
name of Nicole L. Dozier. 

This the first day of November 2021. 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________ 
 Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
 Town Clerk 
 
 

- Page 284 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Keith McGee, Fire Chief 

Department(s): Fire 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a three-year extension with the Fire Department’s records management system vendor, 

EPR Systems USA, Inc. and authorize the Town Manager to sign.   

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

This three-year price quote will enable the fire department to continue to utilize the Fireworks records 

management system that has been utilized since 2019.  This platform houses our incident reporting, pre-

plans, fire inspections, inventory and maintenance records.  The three year quote locks in our pricing for the 

next three years.   

 

Attachments 

 EPR Systems Quote# 2021-112A- 

 

- Page 285 -



EPR Systems USA Inc.
We do IT  all

DATE:

1016 LaSalle Street Quotation #: 2021-112A-

Jacksonville, FL 32207 Customer ID:  Apex Fire Dept

Phone: 941-209-4357

Bill To:  Apex Fire Dept Quotation valid until:

Name: Chief Keith McGee Prepared by: Avi Wach

Comments or special instructions: FireWorks Modules

Description Included Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

NFIRS 5.0 Incident Reporting 4,220$           4,431$            4,653$            

Inspections & Property Management 7,200$           7,560$            7,938$            

Investigations 563$              591$               621$               

Preplan 2,378$           2,496$            2,621$            

Inventory & Maintenance 1,500$           1,575$            1,654$            

Analytics [BI] Reporting Tool 2,100$           2,205$            2,315$            

CAD interface 1,200$           1,260$            1,323$            

Cloud licensing - Unlimited users         3,500$           3,675$            3,859$            

22,660$      23,793$        24,984$        

Payable via credit card, with a 3% price increase 

 Apex Fire Dept

Name

January 12, 2021

Accepted by:

February 11, 2021

Signature

Annual Cost

- Page 286 -



tro |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

 Mee t i ng D a te :  No ve mber  9 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  Lau r i e  H ohe ,  To wn At t o rney  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Leg a l  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

I n t roduc t i o n  to  o r d i na nc e a men d men t  to  c o mpl y  w i th  Se na te  B i l l  300 .    

 

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

 

I tem De ta i l s  

 

P r i o r  to  Dec e mber  1 ,  2021 ,  s ta te  l aw  pr o v i d ed th a t  a  v i o l a t i on  o f  a  to wn o r d i nanc e i s  a  

mi s de mean or  un le s s  t he  t o wn c ou nc i l  p r o v i des  o the r w i se .  P ar t  o f  SL  2021 -138  p r o v i de s  th at ,  

e f fec t i ve  Dec e mb er  1 ,  2021 ,  a  v i o l a t i o n  o f  a  to wn o r d i nanc e ma y b e  a  mi s de me an or  as  

p ro v i de d b y  GS  14 -4  on l y  i f  t he  Tow n s pec i f i e s  suc h  i n  the  o r d i nanc e .  SL  2021 -138  fu r t he r  

p ro v i de s  th a t  the  c ou nc i l  may no t  a do p t  th e  o r d i nanc e sp ec i f y i ng a  c r i mi na l  p ena l ty  on  the  

da te  i t  i s  i n t ro duc e d .  The  p r o po se d a men d men ts  t o  the  o r d i nan c e are  po l i c y  neu t r a l .  

The  Ap e x  To wn C ounc i l  w i l l  c ons i de r  an  o rd i nanc e a men d men t  to  spec i f y  c r i mi na l  pe n a l t i e s  t o  

the  f o l lo w i ng  sec t i on s  o f  the  Ap ex  To wn C o de of  Or d i na nc es  a t  t he  N o ve mb er  23 ,  2021  To wn 

Counc i l  mee t i n g :  

 

  Cha p te r  2  

  Cha p te r  4  

  Cha p te r  5  

  Cha p te r  6  

  Cha p te r  7  

  Cha p te r  9  

  Cha p te r  10  

  Cha p te r  12  

  Cha p te r  13  

  Cha p te r  14  

  Cha p te r  15  

  Cha p te r  18  

  Cha p te r  20  

 

- Page 287 -



 

 

 

At t ac h men t s  

  N/ A 

 

- Page 288 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Steve Adams, Easement Acquisition Specialist 

Department(s): Administration 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve abandonment of a portion of a public utility easement on PIN 0742-46-6928 Bovestments 

LLC  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

As part of a remodeling and expansion project the owners of Bovestments LLC requested a realignment of 

the sewer easement on their property dedicated in the 2019 map page 1330-31. 

 

The new alignment serves the same purpose  

All departments impacted by this realignment have approved this new easement area.  

 

Attachments 

 Proposed final plat for Bovestments LLC 

 Resolution of abandonment 

 

- Page 289 -



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-1109-24 

A Resolution to Abandon Portions of an Existing  

Public Sanitary Sewer Easement 

 
WHEREAS, Bovestments, LLC is the Owner of a certain tract of land in or near the 

Town of Apex which is described in the deed recorded in Deed Book 16547, Page 1437, Wake 

County Registry (the “Subject Property”);  

 

WHEREAS, public sanitary sewer easement interests across the Subject Property were 

conveyed to the Town by an instrument recorded in Book of Maps 2019, Pages 1330 & 1331, 

Wake County Registry;   

 

WHEREAS, Bovestments, LLC requested that the Town abandon the public sanitary 

sewer easement interests in that certain area of land designated as "AREA C OF EXISTING 

VARIABLE WIDTH TOWN OF APEX PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT 

CONTAINING 0.2825 ACRES ~ 12, 304 SF. (HATCHED AREA)," (herein after “Area C”) on 

the Easement Plat for Bovestments, LLC and Northside Acquisition, LLC by Smith & Smith 

Surveyors, P.A. and attached hereto as Exhibit A;  

 

 WHEREAS, Area C is more particularly described as: 

 

Lying and being in the Town of Apex, White Oak Township, Wake County, 

North Carolina and described more fully as follows to wit: 

 

BEGINNING at an existing 12” metal spike being a southern corner of 

“Variable Width Town of Apex Public Sewer Easement” (B.M. 2019, PG. 

1331) where L181 ends and L182 begins, also located South 45 20’ 07” West, 

952.77 feet from an existing concrete R/W monument “A” bearing NAD 83 

(2011) coordinate values of North 727,549.60 feet, East 2,045,075.54 feet 

(B.M. 2018, PG. 8); thence North 66 03’ 47” East, 22.24 feet to a 12” metal 

spike set; thence North 03 43’ 41” West, 53.28 feet to a point; thence North 

66 03’ 47” East, 4.05 feet to an existing 12” metal spike; thence South 30 

20’ 57” East, 63.32 feet to an existing 12” metal spike; thence North 59 39’ 

03” East, 174.97 feet to a point; thence North 88 21’ 11” East, 83.29 feet to a 

point; thence South 59 39’ 03” West, 248.03 feet to an existing 12” metal 

spike; thence South 30 20’ 57” East, 5.00 feet to an existing 12” metal spike; 

thence South 59 39’ 03” West, 50.00 feet to a 12” metal spike; thence North 

30 20’ 57” West, 63.62 feet to the BEGINNING, being all of Area “C” 

(hatched) containing 0.2825 total acres more or less (12,304 square feet more 

or less) being a portion of an existing “Existing Variable Width Town of Apex 

Public Sewer Easement” as shown on a map prepared by Smith & Smith 

- Page 290 -



 2 

Surveyors, P.A. entitled “Easement Plat for Bovestments, LLC and Northside 

Acquisition, LLC”, dated October 1, 2021. 

 

WHEREAS, all existing sewer line facilities within the Area C to be abandoned have 

been removed or relocated; 

 

WHEREAS, the Bovestments intends to dedicate a “New Variable Width Town of Apex 

Sanitary Sewer Easement “B” 0.6512 Acre ~ 28, 366 SF (SHADED)” as shown on Exhibit A. 

(“New Easement Area B”). 

 

WHEREAS, Northside Acquisition, LLC is the Owner of a certain tract of land in or near 

the Town of Apex which is described in the deed recorded in Deed Book 16547, Page 1429, 

Wake County Registry. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Northside Acquisition, LLC intends to dedicate a “New Variable Width 

Town of Apex Sanitary Sewer Easement “A” 0.0144 Acre ~ 629 SF (SHADED)” as shown on 

Exhibit A. (“New Easement Area A”). 

 

WHEREAS, upon dedication of a New Easement Area “A” & New Easement Area “B,” 

the Town no longer has any need of Area C and it has no market value; 

  

WHEREAS, the Town Council considers it advisable to abandon the Area C. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council as follows: 

(1) The Town Council hereby approves the abandonment of the portion of existing 

variable width Town of Apex public sanitary sewer easement Area C as more 

particularly described above and containing 0.2825 acres ~ 12, 304 sf. (hatched 

area) as shown on Exhibit A. 

(2) This abandonment shall be effective upon, and only upon, the recording of the 

Easement Plat attached as Exhibit A at the Wake County Register of Deeds and 

dedicating to the Town of Apex the New Easement Area “A” & New Easement 

Area “B” referenced on Exhibit A.   

 
Upon motion duly made by Council Member__________________, and duly seconded 

by Council Member _______________________, the above Resolution was duly adopted by the 

Apex Town Council at the meeting held on the ___ day of November 2021, in the Town Hall.  

 Upon call for a vote the following Council Members voted in the affirmative:   

 _____________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________ 

- Page 291 -



 3 

 

 and the following Council Members voted in the negative:  

 _____________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

  This the ____ day of November, 2021.  

 

        TOWN OF APEX 

              

        Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 

 ATTEST:  

       

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, Town Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Toa\Bovestments, LLC Public Sanitary Sewer Easement Abandonemnt (2021-035)\resolution abandon public sanitary sewer easement 

- Page 292 -



- Page 293 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible motion to amend the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map to remove 

Proposed Paved Shoulder along Holt Road, add Proposed Side Path along a section of Holt Road, and 

change the on-road bicycle facility type to Proposed Bike Lanes along Holland Road and Friendship Road. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning and Community Development Department staff recommend approval of the proposed 

amendments. 

 

Planning and Community Development Department staff will present these items to the Planning Board at 

their November 8, 2021 meeting. The Planning Board's recommendation will be presented by staff at the 

Town Council meeting. 

Item Details 

The purpose of this hearing is to consider changes to the bicycle and pedestrian network to align the 

planned bicycle facilities with the planned roadway classification as shown on the Thoroughfare and 

Collector Street Plan map. The proposed amendments were designed to align with planned bicycle 

facilities in neighboring jurisdictions.  

 

Attachments 

 Staff Report 

 

- Page 294 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

November 9, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the facts in order to formulate a decision. The Bicycle and 
Pedestrian System Plan map represents a network of current and future facilities that provide guidance on what 
is likely to be suitable for long term growth, connectivity, and recreation. The Plan does not require a schedule 
for implementation nor does it set aside funding for improvements. Instead, it helps the Town establish long term 
priorities and identify requirements for new development. The Plan was last amended on October 12, 2021.    
 
The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the following proposed amendments to the Bicycle and 
Pedestrian System Plan map: 

1. Remove Proposed Paved Shoulder from Holt Road (See Figure 1). 
2. Add Proposed Side Path along Holt Road from Phillips Branch Street to Hasbrouck Drive (See Figure 1). 
3. Remove Proposed Paved Shoulder along Holland Road and Friendship Road (See Figure 3). 
4. Add Proposed Bicycle Lane along Holland Road and Friendship Road (See Figure 3). 

 
Maps of the proposed amendments to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map are displayed in Figure 1 and 
Figure 3. 
 
Proposed Amendments in the Vicinity of Holt Road 

 
Figure 1. Proposed Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendments along Holt Road 

Holt Road is designated as a 3-Lane, Widening Thoroughfare on the Town of Apex Thoroughfare and Collector 
Street Plan map. Holt Road is located within the Suburban context on the Context Areas map in Advance Apex: 
The 2045 Comprehensive Transportation Plan. Development that is proposed with frontage along roadways 
with these classifications is required to provide curb and gutter. The Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map 
currently includes Proposed Paved Shoulder along Holt Road. Paved Shoulder, as a bicycle facility, is typically 

- Page 295 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

November 9, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

used along rural roadways with a shoulder and ditch cross-section. The Town’s standard for a 3-Lane 
Thoroughfare in a suburban context with curb does not include a wide shoulder, so there is a conflict between 
our standard sections and the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map where this is shown. The Town’s typical 
cross-section for a 3-Lane Thoroughfare is displayed below in Figure 2.  
 

 
 

Figure 2. Town of Apex Street Typical Section 3-Lane Thoroughfare 

 
Developments approved prior to the adoption of the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map, as well as more 
recent developments along Holt Road, have installed curb consistent with the Town’s standard, without the 
wide paved shoulder. Curb and gutter has now been set along much of the Apex side (south side) of Holt Road. 
Similarly, the Town of Cary has no plans for on-road bicycle facilities within their jurisdiction, along the north 
side of Holt Road. Based on these factors, staff recommends the removal of the Paved Shoulder designation 
along Holt Road on the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map. 
 
Staff recommends the addition of Proposed Side Path on the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map along the 
south side of Holt Road between Phillips Branch Street and Hasbrouck Drive to complete a bicycle and 
pedestrian connection from the North Beaver Creek Greenway to the White Oak Creek Greenway in the Town 
of Cary. A portion of the North Beaver Creek Greenway is in development as part of The Courtyards on Holt 
residential development. The Town of Cary has existing sidewalk along the east side of Jenks Carpenter Road 
from Holt Road to the White Oak Creek Greenway. The Town of Cary Community Plan includes Proposed 
Striped Bike Lanes along Jenks Carpenter Road. The proposed Side Path along Holt Road, in combination with 
the existing and proposed bicycle and pedestrian facilities along Jenks Carpenter Road in the Town of Cary, will 
complete a pedestrian and bicycle connection to the White Oak Creek Greenway. Further, this route will 
parallel the facility that would have been provided with paved shoulder along Holt Road. 
 

- Page 296 -

https://www.townofcary.org/home/showpublisheddocument/14421/636507369979070000


STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

November 9, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Proposed Amendments in the Vicinity of Holland Road and Friendship Road 

 
Figure 3. Proposed amendments to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map along Holland Road and Friendship Road 

Holland Road is designated as a 3-Lane, Widening Thoroughfare and Friendship Road is designated as a 4-Lane 
with Median, Widening Thoroughfare on the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map. Both Holland Road 
and Friendship Road are located within the Suburban context on the Context Areas map in Advance Apex: The 
2045 Comprehensive Transportation Plan. Similarly to Holt Road, development that is proposed with frontage 
along roadways with these classifications in the Suburban context will be required to provide curb and gutter, 
so there is a conflict between the Town’s standards and the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map. Unlike 
Holt Road, curb has not been set along most of Holland Road and Friendship Road. There is an opportunity to 
upgrade the plans for bicycle facilities along these corridors in advance of future redevelopment and roadway 
widening. Bicycle lanes are proposed along these two roadways to accommodate bicycle travel.  
 
The Town of Holly Springs Comprehensive Transportation Plan includes Bicycle Lanes along their section of 
Friendship Road. The proposed Bicycle Lanes along Friendship Road in Apex are consistent with the planned 
bicycle network in Holly Springs.  
 

Staff Recommendation: 
Planning and Community Development Department staff recommend approval of the proposed amendments.  
 
Public Works and Transportation Department staff and Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Department 
staff are supportive of the proposed amendments. 
 

- Page 297 -

https://www.hollyspringsnc.us/DocumentCenter/View/7760/Figure-43?bidId=


STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

November 9, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
Planning and Community Development Department staff will present these items to the Planning Board at their 
November 8, 2021 meeting. The Planning Board's recommendation will be presented by staff at the Council 
meeting. 

- Page 298 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible motion regarding amendments to the Transportation Plan in the vicinity of New 

Hill Holleman Road and future Richardson Road. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning staff recommends adoption of the proposed amendments. 

The Planning Board will consider the proposed amendments at their November 8, 2021 meeting. Their 

recommendation will be presented at the November 9, 2021 Town Council meeting. 

Item Details 

The amendments to the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map include realigning and upgrading the 

future collector street between New Hill Holleman Road and Richardson Road, south of Old US 1 Highway. 

The alignment changes are intended to plan for a four-way intersection at Church Road and New Hill 

Holleman Road. The upgrade from a Minor Collector street to a Major Collector street is consistent with the 

anticipated function of this future roadway.  

Attachments 

 Staff report 

 

- Page 299 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

November 9, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Page 1 of 2   Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

The Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map (last amended September 28, 2021) represents a network of 
current and future facilities that provide guidance on what is likely to be suitable for long term growth and 
connectivity. The plan does not require a schedule for implementation nor does it set aside funding for 
improvements. The purpose of the public hearing is to consider proposed amendments to the network of 
planned thoroughfare and collector streets in order to formulate a decision.  
 
The proposed amendments are related to the future collector street network between New Hill Holleman Road 
and future Richardson Road. The amendments would revise the planned roadway network as shown in 
Figure 1.  
 
 

Figure 1. Proposed amendments to the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map 
 

The proposed realignment of the future collector street would allow for a future four-way intersection at 
Church Road and New Hill Holleman Road. This shift would also avoid crossing the Town of Cary Force Main 
Easement with the future collector street and would decrease stream impacts. The proposed alignment is 
closer to the New Hill Community Center and could impact some existing parking. The conceptual alignment at 
the New Hill Holleman Road intersection is shown in Figure 2. The figure also shows a concept for replacement 
of parking to the south. This is intended to demonstrate the possibility of mitigation of parking loss if the 
collector street is constructed as shown with the proposed amendment.  

- Page 300 -



Page 2 of 2   Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 
 

 

Figure 2. Proposed collector street alignment at New Hill Holleman Road with conceptual expansion of parking and buildings at the New 
Hill Community Center 
 
The amendments also include upgrading the planned street from a Minor Collector street to a Major Collector 
street. This upgrade is proposed because roadways that connect thoroughfares to thoroughfares are typically 
designated as Major Collectors streets, which are intended to carry more traffic than Minor Collector streets 
and do not allow direct access of residential driveways. In addition, since a grade separation at New Hill 
Holleman Street and the railroad was removed from the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map, the 
surrounding planned roadway network is anticipated to be more important for emergency access and 
evacuation.  
 
Programmed Projects: 

There are no funded or programmed projects to complete construction of the future collector street. This 
roadway would most likely be constructed as part of private development. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Planning staff recommend supporting the proposed amendments to the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan 
map. Staff from Public Works and Transportation, Fire, and Police are also supportive of the proposed 
amendments.  

Planning Board Recommendation: 

The Planning Board will consider the proposed amendments at their November 8, 2021 meeting.   

- Page 301 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible resolution regarding the Town-initiated proposed renaming of “Lynch Street” 

within the Town of Apex. 

Approval Recommended? 

Planning staff recommends approval of the proposed street re-naming. 

Item Details 

The purpose of this public hearing is to consider renaming “Lynch Street” to “Justice Heights Street” within 

the Town of Apex. On September 15, 2020, the Town Council resolved to change the name of “Lynch 

Street” but agreed additional input was needed to determine the new name. Additional outreach was 

conducted and input has been gathered. This process and the preferences that emerged will be presented 

by staff along with a recommendation for Town Council’s consideration to rename “Lynch Street” to “Justice 

Heights Street”. 

Attachments 

 Staff report 

 Resolution of proposed road name change 

 

- Page 302 -



RESOLUTION NO. 21-1109-23 
 

RESOLUTION TO RENAME 
LYNCH STREET 

 
 WHEREAS, Lynch Street is a public right-of-way maintained by the Town of 
Apex and is located entirely within Town of Apex corporate limits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Lynch Street extends approximately 2,640 feet (0.50 miles) 
northwestward from South Salem Street (N.C.S.R. 1011) to its terminus at Wake County 
Parcel # 0741092405; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Lynch Street was evidently named after the William Lynch family, 
which was granted 100 acres by Governor Thomas Bragg in the same vicinity on April 
10, 1855; and 
 
 WHEREAS, local, state, and federal records show no evidence of the Lynch 
family remaining in the area after the remainder of the family land was acquired by the 
T.A. Bullock and Abraham Justice families in 1935; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the street was annexed by the Town of Apex in 1960 and the 
namesake of said street has obscurity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the namesake of “Lynch” remains obscure among residents and has 
become a negative reminder of a time of intimidation and oppression of Black and 
African American citizens; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Apex Address Policy states, “The Town shall have the 
authority to rename streets within its corporate limits as needed for reasons related to 
public safety or inappropriateness”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Apex notified Lynch Street property owners of 
discussion to change the street name, requested feedback and suggested names from 
aforesaid property owners, and posted public notice of a public hearing before the Town 
Council to discuss the matter; and 
 

WHEREAS, input from the public was reviewed by Town Council and matters 
regarding the street renaming were discussed; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of the Town 
of Apex does hereby declare the full extent of Lynch Street to be renamed 
_______________________________ effective the 1st day of February, 2022 and that all 
administrative processes, including mailing notifications to affected property owners and 
ordering street sign replacements, commence immediately upon adoption of this 
resolution. 
 

- Page 303 -



 Adopted and effective the ___ day of ____________, 2021. 
 
      THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
      TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
     BY: ______________________________ 
       Jacques Gilbert 
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

- Page 304 -



STAFF REPORT 
Street Renaming 

November 9, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 
The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the facts and solicit comments in order to formulate a decision 
regarding the Town-initiated renaming of “Lynch Street”. According to the Town of Apex Address Policy, “The 
Town shall have the authority to rename streets within its corporate limits as needed for reasons related to 
public safety or inappropriateness.” An overview of the process used to inform and gather input from the 
community is summarized in this staff report. Based on this process, Planning and Community Development 
staff recommends renaming “Lynch Street” to “Justice Heights Street”. 
 
In September 2020, in accordance with the documented procedures, the Town initiated the process of 
renaming “Lynch Street” by proposing a suitable road name, “Lynn Council Street,” to replace the name of 
concern.  The Town notified affected property owners of the intent to change the road name and requested 
input regarding the matter.  
 
In a letter from the Town Manager, property owners were asked to designate their preference regarding the 
proposed renaming of “Lynch Street” to “Lynn Council Street” and were given an opportunity to suggest 
alternative names.  Twenty-four responses were received with the following preferences indicated (one 
respondent checked both “Lynn Council Street” and “Other”, and is tallied twice).  

• 1 respondent preferred no road name change; 
• 12 respondents preferred “Lynn Council Street”; and 
• 12 respondents preferred other road names. 

 
The other road names suggested, along with a reason for the suggestion, are summarized below. Each of the 
suggested names was evaluated to determine if it is an approvable name. A name is not approvable if it is an 
existing road name used in Wake County. A notice of the public hearing was sent to all property owners, with a 
summary of all responses received by August 28, 2020. “Lynn Justice Street” is an additional alternative 
suggested since that time.  
 
Table 1. Suggested Names for Lynch Street prior to September 15, 2020 Public Hearing 

Other Suggested Name Reason - paraphrased (if provided) Approvable 
Amatour Street Comes from, or a derivative of, Latin meaning “love”. Yes 
Clarice Atwater Street To honor Clarice Atwater - the first Black Mayor-Pro-Tem in 

Apex, a Town Council member for more than 12 years, and a 
visionary who saw and fulfilled the need for a long-term care 
facility in the area by building and operating the Atwater Rest 
Home at 312 Lynch Street.  

Yes 

Commencement Street To honor all those who began their life’s journey on this 
historic street. 

Yes 

Justice Heights Street Inferred reason is because this area has historically been 
known as Justice Heights. See also suggestion for Justice 
Street below. 

Yes 

Lynn Justice Street Lynn Street is preferred, but if two words are needed, Lynn 
Justice is suggested to recognize the history of the Justice 
Family ownership of the property, as well as the meaning of 
the word “Justice”.  

Yes 

Nairobi Street Lynn Council Street is not different enough, it sounds like 
Lynch Street. 

Yes 

- Page 305 -



Page 2 of 3   Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Other Suggested Name Reason - paraphrased (if provided) Approvable 
Name honoring the 
Baldwin family 

The Baldwin Family donated the land for the St. Mary AME 
church and the school where Apex Elementary is now. St. 
Mary AME church is named after Mrs. Mary C. Baldwin. 

Yes, although 
“Baldwin Ridge” 
is an existing 
street name and 
would not be 
approvable. 

Rosewater Place or other 
nature-based name, 
avoiding individual names 

Rosewater Place is one suggestion of a healing or nature-
based name representing reflection and the pleasant gateway 
of the neighborhood it serves. The request reflects a desire to 
avoid naming the street after an individual, which 
necessitates explanation of that individuals’ story by 
residents. There is concern that retelling the story of what 
happened to Lynn Council will be a painful reminder of 
lynching for residents. 

No to Rosewater, 
but other nature-
based names 
may be 
approvable. 

True Way Street  No 
Victory Street  No 
Abraham Street  No 
Atwater Street  To honor the history of the Atwater family in Apex, and 

Clarice Atwater in particular. 
No 

Justice Street Abraham Justice owned and developed the land on Lynch 
Street where he lived. 

No 

Liberty Street  No 
Lynn Street  No 

 
At a public hearing held on September 15, 2020, the Town Council listened to input from the community 
regarding the proposed street naming. The Town Council was supportive of renaming Lynch Street but desired 
additional opportunities for input on the new name before signing the resolution.  
 
One year later, concerns regarding COVID-19 delayed plans to engage the community in a collaborative in-
person setting. On September 1, 2021 property owners and tenants along Lynch Street were sent another letter 
informing them of the next steps in the process to rename Lynch Street. This letter was followed by an 
invitation to the entire Justice Heights community to participate in a neighborhood meeting. The following 
steps were outlined for property owners and tenants and followed prior to this public hearing. 
 

• Step 1: Affected property owners and tenants (those who have legal access to Lynch Street) were 
invited to submit additional names for consideration by September 15, 2021. Names could be 
submitted either by calling the Department of Planning and Community Development or entering 
suggested names in an online survey. Previously-submitted names did not need to be resubmitted. No 
new names were submitted 

• Step 2: Town staff created a final list of eligible names for further community input.  
• Step 3: All eligible names were presented at a community meeting held outdoors at West Street Park 

on September 27, 2021 at 6:00pm. During the meeting, all participants had an opportunity to share 
their preferences among the eligible names. Each participant at the meeting was given three sticker- 
dots to show their preferences among the list of names. 

• Step 4: The top three preferred eligible names were sent by letter to affected property owners and 
tenants along with the public notice for the public hearing.  

 

- Page 306 -



Page 3 of 3   Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

The top three preferred names, based on community feedback regarding preferences during the community 
meeting, are: (1) Justice Heights Street, (2) Mary Baldwin Street, and (3) Amatour Street. The tally of all 
preferences collected during the community meeting using “dot voting” are summarized in Table 2. 
 
Table 2. Community Preferences among Suggested Names for Lynch Street 

Suggested Name Votes – Affected Owners & 
Tenants 

Votes – Other Stakeholders Total 

Justice Heights Street 9 21 30 
Mary Baldwin Street 0 11 11 
Amatour Street 1 7 8 
Clarice Atwater Street 1 5 6 
Lynn Council Street 0 3 3 
Commencement Street 1 1 2 
Lynn Justice Street 0 0 0 
Nairobi Street 0 0 0 

 
According to the Town of Apex Address Policy, following the public hearing, the Town Council will either 
approve the road name change or deny the road name change by resolution.  A resolution for this purpose is 
provided as Attachment A.  
 
Planning and Community Development Staff Recommendation: 
Planning and Community Development staff recommends renaming “Lynch Street” to “Justice Heights Street” 
based on the community input received throughout the street-renaming process. 
 
 

- Page 307 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Michael Deaton, PE, Director 

Department(s): Water Resources 

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion to approve amendments to Article III of Chapter 12 of the Town Code of 

Ordinances creating a Stormwater Utility. 

 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

The Town is required to hold a public hearing to receive comments regarding the proposed stormwater 

utility fee ordinance amendment, pursuant to NCGS 160A-314. 

  

Attachments 

 Stormwater Utility Ordinance 

 

- Page 308 -



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-1109-36 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE III OF CHAPTER 12 OF APEX TOWN 

CODE  

 

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as 

follows: 

 

Section 1. That Article III of Chapter 12 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended as shown immediately below with additions shown by underlined text: 

 

DIVISION 7. - STORMWATER UTILITY 

 

Sec. 12-110. - Findings.  

 

(a) Stormwater poses a threat to the public health, safety, and welfare because it floods 

properties, erodes watercourses and channels, and pollutes streams and rivers. 

 

(b) By mapping, planning, constructing, operating, cleaning, regulating and maintaining 

stormwater management facilities, the Town of Apex (Town) reduces the adverse effects 

of stormwater and improves the quality of groundwater, streams, rivers, and lakes in and 

around the Town. 

 

(c) Providing a stable source of funding for stormwater services, as hereafter defined, can 

best be accomplished through the creation of a stormwater utility fund.  Such a utility 

will benefit owners and occupants of developed land in the Town. 

 

(d) The amount of impervious surface on a property is the single most important factor 

affecting the peak rate of runoff, the total volume discharged, and pollutant loadings of 

stormwater that flows from property.  It is equitable to fund a stormwater utility through 

a system in which service charges are based on the amount of impervious surface on 

developed land. 

 

Sec. 12-111. - Definitions applicable to this Division. 

 

All definitions as used in this division, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, 

shall have the meaning given herein. 

 

Customer or consumer means the person or entity to which a bill for stormwater service 

charges is sent.  This may include the owner, occupant, or tenant of property, a homeowners' 

association with responsibility for property or for common areas associated with property, or a 

person or entity who has requested in writing to be billed for stormwater service charges for a 

property. 

 

- Page 309 -



2 
 

Developed land means property that contains impervious surfaces, and includes improved 

land without structures and land on which improvements are under construction, with the 

exception of public Right-of-Way (ROW). 

 

Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) is 2,700 square feet of impervious surface, which is 

the average amount of impervious surface on a single-family detached property in the Town 

(based on GIS analysis). 

 

Impervious surface means any surface which, because of its composition or compacted 

nature, impedes or prevents natural infiltration of water into the soil, including, but not limited 

to, sidewalks, driveways, rooftops, parking lots, patios, and compacted gravel surfaces not 

meeting the definition of pervious per North Carolina G.S. 143-214.7(b2).  Wooden slatted decks 

and water surfaces of ponds, streams and swimming pools are not considered to be impervious 

surfaces. 

 

Other residential and nonresidential land means any developed land not fitting the 

definition of a residential unit.  It includes, but is not limited to, land upon which there are 

residential structures that contain more than two units, such as townhouses, condominiums, 

apartments, churches; institutional buildings, whether public or private; commercial, office, and 

industrial buildings; parking lots, and land containing improvements under construction or 

impervious surfaces that are not structures, with the exception of public ROW. 

 

Property owner or owner means the owner of a parcel of land as shown on the county tax 

records. 

 

Residential unit means a detached single-family house or a manufactured home or mobile 

home located on an individual lot or parcel of land rather than in a manufactured home park. 

 

Stormwater means the runoff from precipitation that travels over natural or developed 

surfaces to the nearest stream, other conduit, or impoundment and appears in lakes, rivers, ponds, 

or other bodies of water. 

 

Stormwater management system means the system of natural and constructed 

conveyances for collecting and transporting or treating stormwater.  It includes, but is not limited 

to, structural drainage systems such as open swales and ditches, catch basins, pipes, inlets, storm 

sewers, drains, culverts, junction boxes, and other stormwater management facilities that affect 

the quality and quantity of stormwater located within public ROW and permanent storm drainage 

easements conveyed to and accepted by the Town, and all natural stormwater drainage systems. 

 

Stormwater services means Town stormwater management programs designed to protect 

water quality by controlling the level of pollutants in, and the quantity and flow of, stormwater 

and Town service of structural and natural stormwater and drainage systems of all types.  

Stormwater services include any cost necessary to assure that all aspects of stormwater quality 

and quantity are managed in accordance with federal and State laws, regulations and rules, and 

costs related to the construction, operation, maintenance, inspection, management and regulation 

of the stormwater management system. 

- Page 310 -



3 
 

 

Stormwater utility funds mean the stormwater management service charges and the 

interest generated by those charges. 

 

Sec. 12-112. - Creation of stormwater account; activities of the Water Resources 

department. 

 

Stormwater service charges and interest generated by such charges shall be placed in a 

separate Town account and shall be used by the Town solely for the operational costs, 

maintenance costs, indirect costs, capital improvements, debt principal and debt service, and 

establishment of a reserve fund for stormwater services.  The Town may use funds that are not 

stormwater utility funds to provide stormwater services. 

 

Sec. 12-113. - Stormwater service charges. 

 

(a) All developed land in the Town, whether public or private, shall be subject to a 

stormwater service charge set by the Town council.  Exemptions shall not be allowed 

based on age, tax exemption, or other status of an individual or organization. 

 

(b) For property owners and/or customers that receive a water, sewer, or other service fee bill 

from the Town, the stormwater service fees, charges, and penalties will be added to that 

bill.  Stormwater service charges that are shown on this combined utility bill may be for a 

different service period than that used for electric, water and/or sewer service, and 

garbage and recycling service. 

 

(c) Property owners and/or customers that own or occupy improved residential properties 

such as apartments and condominium developments and other similar properties 

containing impervious surface in common ownership shall be charged as a non-

residential customer.  The total impervious surface of all commonly owned property 

within the development shall also be charged under the non-residential rate and shall be 

billed to the property owner. 

 

(d) Stormwater service fees, charges, and penalties for properties that do not receive a bill for 

Town services other than stormwater service fees shall be sent to the record property 

owner according to the county tax records. 

 

(e) Computation of stormwater management service charges. 

 

a. For non-residential property owners, the monthly stormwater service charge is 

calculated by dividing the total impervious surface area of the property by one 

ERU.  The result is then multiplied by the established monthly single-family rate 

as fixed by Town Council resolution. 

 

(f) The following exemptions from stormwater management service fees are allowed: 

 

a. Undeveloped land. 

- Page 311 -



4 
 

 

b. Improved public ROW and greenways. 

 

c. Developed land with less than 400 square feet of impervious surface. 

 

d. Railroad ROW currently in use.  However, railroad stations, maintenance 

buildings or other developed land shall not be exempted from stormwater services 

fees, charges, or penalties. 

 

e. Properties and facilities owned and operated by the Town. 

f. Airport runways and taxiways, provided that the savings realized from this 

exemption are used for attracting business to the airport. 

 

Sec. 12-114. - Payment provisions, utility termination. 

 

(a) Where stormwater service charges appear on a combined utility bill, and a customer 

does not pay the service charges for all the utilities on the bill, the partial payment 

will be applied to the respective service charges in the following order: delinquent 

stormwater charges; delinquent water and/or sewer charges; capital facilities fees; 

current stormwater charges; current water and/or sewer charges. 

 

(b) Stormwater service charges are due within the time period stated on the bill.  Bills not 

paid within this time shall be charged a late fee as set forth in the Town Council 

adopted schedule of charges. 

 

(c) Where a property receives electric, water and/or sewer service, if stormwater service 

charges for that property are not paid, electric, water and/or sewer service to that 

property may be terminated, whether or not the stormwater charges were included on 

a combined utility bill.  Termination will be handled in accordance with standard 

operation provisions of the Town. 

 

(d) No property for which stormwater service charges are outstanding is entitled to 

receive electric, water and/or sewer service until the outstanding stormwater service 

charge on that property is paid.  No customer with a delinquent stormwater service 

account is entitled to open a utility account at the same or different location until the 

delinquency has been satisfied. 

 

(e) If property is incorrectly billed, or not billed, or a bill is sent to the wrong party, the 

Town may backbill a property for up to a three-year period. 

 

(f) Customers with complaints about the accuracy of stormwater service charges are 

entitled to a review as provided in section 12-115.  No charge will be adjusted unless 

the complaining customer has filed a written complaint with the Town within one 

year of the date the Town first sent the customer notice of the charge. 

 

- Page 312 -



5 
 

 

Sec. 12-115. - Appeal. 

 

Any customer who believes the provisions of this chapter have been applied in error may 

appeal in the following manner: 

 

(a) An appeal must be filed in writing with the Water Resources director.  At the discretion 

of the director, the appeal may be required to include a survey prepared by a registered 

land surveyor and such other information that show the total property area, the 

impervious surface area, and any other features or conditions which influence the 

hydrologic response of the property to the stormwater events. 

 

(b) Using the information provided, the Water Resources director shall conduct a technical 

review pursuant to good engineering practices.  The director may adjust the stormwater 

service management charge so long as the adjustment is in conformance with the general 

purpose and intent of this chapter.  At the conclusion of the review, the director shall 

issue a written determination stating whether an adjustment to the stormwater service 

management charge is appropriate, and if so, the percentage of such adjustment.  Any 

approved adjustments must be communicated in writing to the appropriate utility billing 

staff. 

 

(c) An appeal may be taken from any decision of the Water Resources director which is 

adverse to the customer by giving notice of appeal to the Town Manager within thirty 

(30) days after service of the Water Resources director written decision on the customer.  

Notice of appeal shall be given by the customer by delivery of a written statement to the 

Town Manager stating the grounds for the appeal and providing the Town Manager with 

a copy of the written decision of the Water Resources director.  The Water Resources 

director shall transmit to the Town Manager and the customer all documents constituting 

the record upon which the Water Resources director’s decision was made. 

 

(d) All decisions of the Water Resources director and Town Manager shall be served on the 

customer personally or by registered or certified mail. Mailing shall be based upon the 

billing address of the customer. 

 

(e) Following the decision of the Town Manager, the customer may make an appeal to the 

Board of Adjustment (BOA).  The BOA shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of an 

appeal, shall give due notice of such hearing to the customer and the manager, and shall 

render its decision within a reasonable time. 

 

(f) When an appeal is from a decision authorizing an adjustment to the customer’s bill, the 

Water Resources director’s decision shall remain in effect until and unless reversed or 

otherwise modified. 

 

No adjustment to a customer’s bill shall be made which is for more than the three-year 

period immediately preceding the date that the customer’s request is first received by the Town. 

 

- Page 313 -



6 
 

Sec. 12-116. - Limitations of Responsibility.  

 

(a) The Town shall be responsible only for portions of the drainage system which are in 

Town maintained ROW and permanent storm drainage easements conveyed to and 

accepted by the Town.  Repairs and improvements to the drainage system shall be in 

accordance with established standards, policies, and schedules. 

 

(b) The Town’s acquisition of permanent storm drainage easements and/or the construction 

or repair by the Town of stormwater control measures and drainage facilities does not 

constitute a warranty against stormwater hazards including but not limited to flooding, 

erosion, or standing water. 

 

Sec. 12-117. - Severability.  

 

If any section, subsection, paragraph, or clause of this article is held to be invalid or 

unenforceable, all other sections, subsections, paragraphs, and clauses shall nevertheless 

continue in full force and remain in effect. In addition, if the Town's use of funds for any portion 

of its stormwater program is held invalid, all other funded portions of the program shall continue 

in full force and remain in effect. 

 

Section 2. That Article IV of Chapter 12 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended as shown immediately below with deletions shown by strikethrough text 

and additions shown by underlined text: 

- Page 314 -



7 
 

ARTICLE IV. – SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 

Sec. 12-118110. Definition of garbage. 

Sec. 12-119111. Prompt removal of garbage. 

Sec. 12-120112. Garbage container specifications. 

Sec. 12-121113. Wet garbage. 

Sec. 12-122114. Deposit of garbage in public places and on private property. 

Sec. 12-123115. Transportation of garbage by private persons. 

Sec. 12-124116. Collection—Schedule. 

Sec. 12-125117. Same—Regulations. 

Sec. 12-126118. Building materials; tree and lawn trimmings. 

Sec. 12-127119. Burning of leaves and related items. 

Sec. 12-128120. Removal of dead animals. 

Sec. 12-129121. Provision for the aged, handicapped, and disabled. 

Sec. 12-130122. Dumpsters—Use generally. 

Sec. 12-131123. Same—Unauthorized use. 

Sec. 12-132124. Garbage fee. 

 

Section 3. That Article V of Chapter 12 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended as shown immediately below with deletions shown by strikethrough text 

and additions shown by underlined text: 

 

ARTICLE V. – YARD WASTE COLLECTION 

 

Sec. 12-133125. Purpose. 

 

Sec. 12-134126. Definitions. 

 

Sec. 12-135127. Administration and enforcement. 

 

Sec. 12-136128. Pre-collection practices. 

 

- Page 315 -



8 
 

Sec. 12-137129. Limitations on service. 

 

Sec. 12-138130. Disposal of yard waste. 

 

Sec. 12-139131. Right of entry. 

 

Sec. 12-140132. Conflicts with other ordinances. 

 

Sec. 12-141133. Severability. 

 

Secs. 12-142134—12-155. Reserved. 

 

 

Section 4.   The Town Clerk and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to renumber, revise 

formatting, correct typographic errors, to verify and correct cross references, 

indexes and diagrams as necessary to codify, publish, and/or accomplish the 

provisions of this Ordinance or future amendments as long as doing so does not 

alter the terms of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 5.   Severability, Conflict of Laws.  If this Ordinance or application thereof to any 

person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 

provisions or applications of the Ordinance which can be given separate effect 

and to the end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable.  All 

ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby 

repealed. 

 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective January 1, 2022. 

 

Introduced by Council Member _______________________________________ 

 

Seconded by Council Member ________________________________________ 

 

 

Attest:          TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

____________________________      __________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC      Jacques K. Gilbert         

Town Clerk         Mayor 

 

Approved As To Form: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Laurie L. Hohe  

Town Attorney 

- Page 316 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: NEW BUSINESS 

 Meeting Date: November 9, 2021 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Christopher “C.J” Valenzuela, Housing Program Manager 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

Requested Motion 

Possible motion to provide financial support to DHIC, Inc. for the affordable housing project known as 

Broadstone Walk in the form of a loan from the Affordable Housing Fund for construction contingent upon 

final project approval, authorize the Town Manager to execute loan and compliance project documentation, 

and approve corresponding Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 9. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

On December 15, 2020 Town Council approved two prior DHIC, Inc. funding requests in the form of a loan 

in the amount of $1,000,000 for construction and a grant totaling $165,000 to offset water and sewer 

capital reimbursement fees from the Town’s Affordable Housing Fund (AHF) for the Broadstone Walk 

project.  On August 13, 2021 DHIC Inc. was awarded a 4% Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) which 

includes a tax-exempt bond through the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency (NCHFA).  However, due 

to the following conditions: (1) rising construction costs, (2) decrease in equity pricing, (3) first mortgage 

loan interest rate increase, and (4) LIHTC investor income averaging requirements requiring deeper 

affordability, DHIC, Inc. has identified a remaining funding gap necessary to complete the project of 

approximately $1,500,000.  Wake County is considering contributing an additional $500,000 to the project 

and the remaining $1,000,000 of gap funding would propose to come from the Town’s AHF from FY 2021-

22 revenues.  Funding for the Budget Amendment will include reappropriation of $150,000 from the Apex 

Cares Program with the remaining $850,000 pulled from the Fund’s reserves. 

Attachments 

 Staff Report 
 DHIC, Inc. Letter Requesting Support 

 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 9. 

 

- Page 317 -



STAFF REPORT 
Affordable Housing Fund Request 

November 9, 2021 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Page 1 of 3   Prepared by: C.J. Valenzuela, Housing Program Manager 

On December 15, 2020 Town Council approved two prior DHIC, Inc. funding requests from the Town’s 
Affordable Housing Fund (AHF) for the Broadstone Walk project. Those included: (1) a 30-year term, one-
percent (1%) fixed interest rate loan in the amount of $1,000,000 for construction, and (2) a grant totaling 
$165,000 to offset water and sewer capital reimbursement fees.  The DHIC, Inc. Broadstone Walk project will 
include a total of 164 affordable rental units, affordable to those who make between 40% - 60% of the Raleigh, 
NC Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) Area Median Income (AMI).  This proposed project will be the largest 
one-hundred percent (100%) affordable housing project in Town history. Table 1 below provides a summary of 
the Town’s affordable housing projects.  

 
Table 1  

Town Affordable Housing Projects 

Project Name # of Affordable Units Project Date 

*Broadstone Walk Apartments 164 Est. Start – Q1/Q2 2022 

Beechridge Apartments 72 Completed 1999 

West Haven Apartments 72 Completed 1998 

Wake Acres Apartments 48 Completed 1983 

White Oak Villas 16 Completed 2013 

Oak Grove 10 Completed 1963 

Kissena Lane 9 Under Construction 

Total 391  

*Proposed project would be the largest affordable housing project in Town history. 
 
North Carolina General Statute (N.C.G.S.) 160A-20.1 provides authority for the Town to expend funds for public 
purposes, including providing affordable housing, and N.C.G.S. 157-3(12)(e) authorizes the Town “to provide 
grants . . . and other programs of financial assistance to public or private developers of housing for persons of 
low income, or moderate income, or low and moderate income.” 
 
On August 13, 2021 DHIC Inc. was awarded a four-percent (4%) Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) which 
includes a tax-exempt bond through the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency (NCHFA).  Shortly after 
receiving a NCHFA 4% LIHTC award notification, DHIC, Inc. updated their overall project underwriting analysis.  
Due to the following conditions: (1) rising construction costs, (2) a decrease in equity pricing, (3) a first 
mortgage loan interest rate increase, and (4) LIHTC investor income averaging requirements requiring deeper 
affordability; DHIC, Inc. identified a funding gap necessary to complete the project of approximately 
$1,500,000.   
 
LIHTC’s are federal tax incentives given to states who then award developers such as DHIC, Inc. these credits for 
projects that meet certain criteria as outlined by both the state and federal government. DHIC, Inc. once 
awarded, then goes and markets these tax credits to investors who will then purchase them in exchange for 
offsetting taxes otherwise owed over a ten-year period. DHIC, Inc. can then use the funding provided from the 
tax credit investors as equity. However, the disbursement of the tax credit funding is subject to negotiation 

- Page 318 -



Page 2 of 3   Prepared by: C.J. Valenzuela, Housing Program Manager 
 

between DHIC, Inc. and an investor and in most cases, the bulk is only distributed upon stabilization because 
the credits are not officially awarded until the project is up and running.  Because this is a negotiation process 
between DHIC, Inc. and an investor and due to other market factors, DHIC’s equity pricing decreased from 
$0.90 to $0.87 which reflects the current investor market for tax credits.   
 

To-date Wake County has committed $3,000,000 of funding to the project. In addition, Wake County is 
considering contributing an additional $500,000. The remaining $1,000,000 of gap funding is proposed to come 
from the Town’s AHF from fiscal year (FY) 2021-22 revenues.  In the Town’s FY 2021-22 annual operating 
budget regarding the AHF, the initial balance was $1,596,000.  In addition, there was $21,000 of prior year 
carryover which brought the total FY 2021-22 AHF starting balance to $1,617,000.  In the FY 2021-22 AHF 
budget, the Broadstone Walk project was budgeted for $500,000 and Apex Cares Housing Rehabilitation 
Program (Apex Cares Program) for $250,000 which left $867,000 of unallocated funds remaining.  However, to-
date the Apex Cares Program, which is a new program, has only expended $100,000 of their original $250,000 
budget allocation back from FY 2020-21 and does not need the full $250,000 budgeted in FY 2021-22.  As a 
result, a portion of the Apex Cares Program funds can be reappropriated to the Broadstone Walk project in 
order to fully fund the $1,000,000 gap funding request.  This proposed budget amendment would still leave the 
Apex Cares Program with $117,000 of available funding in FY 2021-22.  Table 2 below shows the proposed 
budget amendment and impact to the AHF for FY 2021-22.  

 
Table 2 

Affordable Housing Fund Budget Summary 

Fund 21 – Affordable Housing 

Revenues  

Activity Prior Approved FY 2021-22 Proposed Amended FY 2021-22 

Initial Starting Balance $1,595,000 $1,595,000 

Interest Earned/Prior Year Carryover $22,000 $22,000 

Total Revenues $1,617,000 $1,617,000 

Expenses  

Activity Prior Approved FY 2021-22 Proposed Amended FY 2021-22 

DHIC, Inc. Broadstone Walk $500,000 $,1,500,000 

Apex Cares Program $250,000 $117,000 

Reserved for Future Expenditures $867,000 $0 

Total Expenses $1,617,000 $1,617,000 

 
Table 3 below provides a summary of the estimated total Broadstone Walk project costs itemized by funding 
source, dollar amount and percentage of funding.  

 
 
 
 

- Page 319 -



Page 3 of 3   Prepared by: C.J. Valenzuela, Housing Program Manager 
 

Table 3  
Broadstone Walk Project Budget Summary  

Funding Source Dollar Amount Percentage of Funding 

Permanent Loan $17,619,000 50.67% 

Wake County (FY 2020-21) $3,000,000 8.63% 

*Wake County (FY 2021-22) $500,000 1.44% 

Town of Apex (FY 2020-21) $665,000 1.91% 

Town of Apex (FY 2021-22) $500,000 1.44% 

**Town of Apex (FY 2021-22) $1,000,000 2.88% 

Deferred Developer Fee $1,107,000 3.18% 

Federal LIHTC Equity $10,380,737 29.85% 

Est. Total Project Costs $34,771,737 100.00% 

*Subject to Wake County Board of Commissioners Approval 
**Subject to Town Council Approval 
 
The primary goal of the Town’s AHF is to support affordable housing development.  The Town’s funding to DHIC 
Inc. through this request would come in the form of a 30-year term, one-percent (1%) fixed interest rate loan in 
the amount of $1,000,000 for construction costs.  If DHIC, Inc. is able to obtain the necessary financial 
commitments in order to receive project and underwriting approval, the Town would execute the following 
documents with DHIC, Inc. to ensure compliance and regulatory requirements are carried out: (1) Development 
Agreement, (2) Promissory Note, (3) Deed of Trust and (4) other due diligence documentation.  The Town’s 
funding to DHIC Inc. will also require a 30-year affordability restriction period to ensure rents remain affordable 
long-term, which is consistent with NCHFA LIHTC regulations.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Planning staff recommends approval of the additional $1,000,000 gap funding request to DHIC, Inc. for the 
Broadstone Walk affordable housing project in order to complete the project. 

- Page 320 -



Attachment 1: 
DHIC, Inc. Letter Requesting Support

- Page 321 -



- Page 322 -



21. Affordable Housing Fund

Section 1. Revenues:

$850,000

$850,000

Section 2. Expenditures:

DHIC Loan - Broadstone Walk $850,000

$850,000

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk

Town of Apex 
Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 9

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for
the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

Appropriated Fund Balance

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the
Finance Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 9th day of November, 2021

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

- Page 323 -



 |Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 fo r  c on s i de r a t i on  by  t he  Ap e x  Tow n C ounc i l  

 

 I tem Ty pe :  CLO SE D SE S S I ON  

 Mee t i ng D a te :  No ve mber  9 ,  2021  

Item Details  

P re s en te r (s ) :  S te ve  Ad a ms ,  R e a l  E s t at e  &  Pu b l i c  U t i l i t i e s  

Dep ar t me nt (s ) :  Ad mi n i s t r a t i on  

R eques te d Mo t i on  

Po s s i b le  mo t i on  t o  go  i n to  c l os ed se s s i on  pu r suan t  t o  N C GS 143 -3 18 .11 (a ) (5 )  t o  d i sc u s s  the  t own ’ s  

neg o t i a t i n g po s i t i on  w i th  r e s pec t  to  ac qu i s i t i on  o f  re a l  p ro per ty .  

 

Ap p r o va l  R ec o m men de d?  

N/ A 

I tem De ta i l s  

N/ A 

At t ac h men t s  

  N/ A 

 

- Page 324 -


	Top
	CN1	21CZ21 Beauregard Place at Weddington CN-SPH
	21CZ21 Beauregard Place at Weddington  Cover-CNSPH
	21CZ21 Beauregard Place at Weddington Map-Application

	CN2	21CZ22 Old Ivey Road CN-SPH
	21CZ22 Old Ivey Road  Cover-CNSPH
	21CZ22 Old Ivey Road map-application

	CN3	#21CZ23 Scotts Ridge Veterinary Hospital & Office
	21CZ23 Scotts Ridge Office & Vet Hosp Cover-CNSPH
	21CZ23 Scotts Ridge Office & Vet Hosp Map-Application

	CN4	21CZ25 Villages of Apex PUD Amendment
	21CZ25 VOA PUD Amendment Cover- CN-SPH
	21CZ25 VOA PUD Amendment Map & Application

	CN5	Annexation #719 Mian Lin
	Annex719 CN-Mian Lin
	Annexation 719
	PetitionLegalMaps
	Legal Description

	CN6	Annexation #720 Triangle Math & Science Academy
	Annex 720 CN-SPH
	Annexation 720
	PetitionLegalMaps
	Legal Descriptions

	CN7	Planning Board Appointments
	TC Cover Sheet Planning Board Appointments
	Proposed Planning Board Appointments 2021
	Advisory Board Interest Form -Steven A Rhodes

	CN8	CN Special Event - Town of Apex Annual Tree Lighting
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - Annual Tree Lighting
	Special Event Application Cover Sheets - 11-09-21

	CN9	Apex Public Safety Station 36 Construction Contract
	01 Agenda Cover Sheet PSS 36 Construction Contract
	02 Apex PSS Station 36 Construction Contract

	CN10	2081 Tordelo Place Lot 190 Encroachment Agreement
	01 Agenda Cover Sheet-2081 Tordelo Place Lot 190 Encroachment Agreement
	02 2081 Tordelo Place Lot 190 Encroachment Agreement
	03 2081 Tordelo Place Lot 190 Exhibit A

	CN11	2491 Hutch Lane Lot 256 Encroachment Agreement
	01 Agenda Cover Sheet - 2491 Hutch Lane Lot 256 Encroachment Agreement
	02 2491 Hutch Lane Lot 256 Encroachment Agreement
	03 2491 Hutch Lane Lot 256 Exhibit A

	CN12	2483 Hutch Lane Lot 259 Encroachment Agreement
	01 Agenda Cover Sheet - 2483 Hutch Lane Lot 259 Encroachment Agreement
	02 2483 Hutch Lane Lot 259 Encroachment Agreement
	03 2483 Hutch Lane Lot 259 Exhibit A

	CN13	2481 Hutch Lane Lot 260 Encroachment Agreement
	01 Agenda Cover Sheet - 2481 Hutch Lane Lot 260 Encroachment Agreement
	02 2481 Hutch Lane Lot 260 Encroachment Agreement
	03 2481 Hutch Lane Lot 260 Exhibit A

	CN14	Board of Adjustment Appointment
	CS-Resolution
	Resolution to Appoint ETJ Member to the Board of Adjustment
	Advisory Board Interest Form

	CN15	CN Town Co-Sponsored Event Application Amendment - Apex Rotary Christmas Parade
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet - CN Co-Sponsored Event Amended Application - Apex Christmas Parade
	Amended Christmas Parade Co-Sponsorship Event Description and Request
	Winter Wonderland Map
	Possible Parade Route Mobile Food Vendors Map
	Christmas Parade Maps 2021 Revision
	Entry Participant Directional Map 2021

	CN16	Formal Retirement of Canine Rocky
	CN Retirement of APD Canine Rocky

	CN17	Tax Report
	CS - Tax Report
	APEX-TXREP-NOV2021MTG-DONNA

	CN18	Resolution to Ratify Naming of Senior Center
	CS - Ratificatio of Resolution
	RESOLUTION NO.21-1101-21

	CN19	EPR Systems Quote for Fire
	Agenda Cover Sheet - EPR Systems 3 Year Quote for Fire
	Renewal Quote 2021

	CN20	Introduction to ordinance amendment to comply with Senate Bill 300.
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet SB 300 (revised)

	CN21	Easement abandonment
	Bovestments LLC abandonment COVER SHEET_2021.09.11
	Resolution abandon public sanitary sewer easement
	19-10 Revise Sewer Ease 2021 plat

	PH1	BikePed Amendments - Paved Shoulders
	Cover Sheet_HoltFriendshipHolland_BikePed
	TC_Staff Report_HoltFriendshipHolland_BikePed

	PH2	Transportation Plan Amendments - New Hill Collector
	PH_Cover_TPlan_NewHill
	PH_TC Staff Report_TPlan_NewHill

	PH3	Resolution to Rename Lynch Street
	PH_Cover_LynchStreet
	03_PH_TC_Resolution_RenameLynchStreet
	02_PH_TC Staff Report_Lynch Street

	PH4	Stormwater Utility Fee Ordinance Amendment Public Hearing
	01 CS - Stormwater Utility Ordinance
	Ordinance Amendment - Stormwater Utility REVISED

	NB1	Broadstone Walk-DHIC additional funding
	TC Cover Sheet - Broadstone Walk (New Business Item)
	TC Staff Report & Attachment #1 - Broadstone Walk (New Business Item)
	Attachment #2 - Broadstone Walk Budget Ord. Amend. No. 9 AFH

	CS1	Closed Session
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet Closed session 11092021

	Bottom

